
CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, March 4, 2014 
5:45 P.M. 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
City Council Chambers 

5:45 P.M. CLOSED SESSION (1st floor Council Conference Room, Administration Building) 

Public Comment on these items will be taken prior to adjourning to Closed Session 
CL1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section §54957 to conference with labor 

negotiators regarding labor negotiations with the Police Officers Association (POA) and 
Service Employees International Union (SEIU)  

Attendees:  Alex McIntyre, City Manager, Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City 
Manager, Bill McClure, City Attorney, Gina Donnelly, Human Resources Director, Drew 
Corbett, Finance Director, and Charles Sakai, Labor Attorney 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION  

ROLL CALL – Carlton, Cline, Keith, Ohtaki, Mueller 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS - None

B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS

B1.  Bike Commission quarterly report on the status of their 2 Year Work Plan 

B2. Transportation Commission quarterly report on the status of their 2 Year Work Plan 

C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1 (Limited to 30 minutes)
Under “Public Comment #1”, the public may address the Council on any subject not listed
on the agenda and items listed under the Consent Calendar.  Each speaker may address
the Council once under Public Comment for a limit of three minutes.  Please clearly state
your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live.  The Council cannot act
on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Council cannot respond to non-
agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general
information.

D. CONSENT CALENDAR

D1. Adopt a resolution supporting the City’s Shuttle Program and for the recently submitted 
application for Measure A Shuttle Program Funding (Staff report #14-038) 



March 4, 2014 
Agenda Page 2 

D2. Authorize the City Manager to execute a construction agreement with SC Builders, Inc. 
and Facebook, Inc. for tenant improvements at the property located at 871A and 871 B 
Hamilton Avenue (Neighborhood Service Center and police substation) 
(Staff report #14-040) 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS

E1. Appeal to the City Council of the Planning Commission’s decision on the property located 
at 1015 Atkinson Lane  
The appellant has withdrawn the appeal. There will be no public hearing on this item. 

E2. Consider request for a Conditional Development Permit amendment and heritage tree 
removal permits for the demolition of an existing recreation building, the construction of a 
new recreation building and leasing office, façade improvements to the existing apartment 
buildings, and landscaping located at 350 Sharon Park Drive (Staff report #14-037) 

F. REGULAR BUSINESS

F1. Approve an agreement between the City of Menlo Park and Facebook to fund a Police 
Officer for a three-year term with a two-year option for Facebook, and adding an additional 
full time Police Officer position to the department for the duration of the agreement  
(Staff report #14-039) 

F2. Accept the 2013-14 Mid-Year Financial Summary and approve recommended changes 
to the expenditure appropriation and revenue forecast (Staff report #14-036) 

G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – None

H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION – None

I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – None

J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (Limited to 30 minutes)

Under “Public Comment #2”, the public if unable to address the Council on non-agenda
items during Public Comment #1, may do so at this time.  Each person is limited to three
minutes.  Please clearly state your name and address or jurisdiction in which you live.

L. ADJOURNMENT

Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956.  Members of the public can view electronic 
agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at HHUUhttp://www.menlopark.orgUUHH  and can receive e-mail notification of agenda and staff 
report postings by subscribing to the “Home Delivery” service on the City’s homepage.  Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by 
contacting the City Clerk at (650) 330-6620.  Copies of the entire packet are available at the library for viewing and copying.  (Posted: 
02/27/2014)   

At every Regular Meeting of the City Council, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the right to address the 
City Council on the Consent Calendar and any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right to 
directly address the City Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during the Council’s 
consideration of the item.   
At every Special Meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on any item listed on 
the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during consideration of the item.  

Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public record (subject to 
any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, Menlo Park City Hall, 701 Laurel 
Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.  Members of the public may send communications to members of the City 
Council via the City Council’s e-mail address at HUcity.council@menlopark.orgUH.  These communications are public records and can be viewed 
by any one by clicking on the following link: HUhttp://ccin.menlopark.orgUH   

City Council meetings are televised live on Government Access Television Cable TV Channel 26.  Meetings are re-broadcast on Channel 26 
on Thursdays and Saturdays at 11:00 a.m.  A DVD of each meeting is available for check out at the Menlo Park Library.  Live and archived 
video stream of Council meetings can be accessed at HHUUhttp://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2UUHHUU   

Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s 
Office at (650) 330-6620. 

http://www.menlopark.org/
mailto:Ucity.council@menlopark.orgU
http://ccin.menlopark.org/
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2


 

 PUBLIC WORKS  DEPARTMENT 
  

 Council Meeting Date: March 4, 2014 

Staff Report #: 14-038 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-1 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Adopt a Resolution Supporting the City’s Shuttle 

Program for the Recently Submitted Application 
for Measure A Shuttle Program Funding  

 
 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) in support of 
the Citywide Shuttle Program, for the recently submitted grant application for Measure A 
Shuttle Program to continue funding for operations and administration of the program.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On January 13, 2014, the San Mateo County Transportation Authority (TA) and the San 
Mateo City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) issued a joint call for shuttle 
projects for fiscal years 2014 and 2015. The Program includes $7,000,000 for this two-
year funding cycle, and direct costs for operations, marketing, and administration of 
shuttles are eligible for funding. Applications were due February 14, 2014, and Council 
resolutions required by March 7, 2014. The City’s Shuttle Program is currently 
supported by a grant through this program, expiring June 30, 2014.  
 
The City of Menlo Park manages an extensive shuttle program that provides “around 
town” transportation to many residents, employees, and visitors. The program includes 
the following services: 
 

 Two fixed-route, peak-hour shuttles that travel between the Caltrain station and the 
business parks and office complexes along Marsh Road and Willow Road; 
 

 The Midday shuttle, which provides transportation to medical facilities, Little House, 
Menlo Park Senior Center, downtown Menlo Park, the main library, the Belle Haven 
library, Safeway, the Caltrain station, the Veterans Affairs hospital, Stanford 
Shopping Center, and several senior housing facilities. 

 

 Shoppers’ Shuttle is a curb-to-curb service which operates twice a week providing 
transportation to Little House, Menlo Park Senior Center, downtown Menlo Park, 
the main library, Sharon Heights Shopping Center, Safeway, and the Caltrain 
station. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM D-1



Staff Report #: 14-038 

ANALYSIS 
 

By applying for funds through the Measure A program Call for Projects, the City of 
Menlo Park is seeking to guarantee the continuation of the City’s shuttle program.  
 
Additionally, recent changes to Samtrans service in Sharon Heights and West Menlo 
Park were implemented in January 2014. These changes included the elimination of 
Route 295, which provided a connection to shopping destinations and connections to 
other transit lines for local residents. The route was replaced with new Route 286, which 
runs between Menlo Park Caltrain and Sharon Park during commute hours. Service on 
Route 86 was also expanded to capture some of the demand left by the elimination of 
Route 295. However, these services run only during peak commute and school hours 
(7:00 to 9:00 am and 3:00 to 5:00 pm). Thus, a gap in service remains, creating the 
need for additional shuttles to provide connections for resident, especially seniors, in the 
area to shopping and other transit services.  
 
The City’s proposed application includes continuation of the following services, with 
minor schedule adjustments to account for current travel times and Caltrain schedule: 
 

 Marsh Road and Willow Road Caltrain Shuttles 
 

 Midday Shuttle 
 
To better serve the Sharon Heights and West Menlo Park neighborhoods with the gaps 
in service left by the elimination of Route 295, the City’s proposed application also 
includes an expanded Shoppers’ Shuttle:  

 

 Currently runs Wednesday and Saturdays; pick-ups between 9:30 – 10:30 am; 
drop-offs between 12:00 – 1:00 pm 
 

 Starting FY 14-15, proposed expanded service to include: 
 

o Three days of service (two weekdays and Saturdays; to be determined 
based on feedback and surveys of current and potential riders) 
 

o Offering service as “fixed-route plus”: passengers can call for pick-
ups/trips to specific destinations, as the Shoppers’ Shuttle currently runs. 
When not “on-call”, the shuttle will circulate on a fixed-route between 
Sharon Heights/West Menlo Park and the downtown (shopping, Civic 
Center, Caltrain station, bus connections on El Camino Real) to close the 
gap in service with elimination of Route 295 for transit-dependent riders. 

 
o Service hours between 9:30 am and 2:00 pm 

 
The effectiveness of the City’s Shuttle Program is measured by two performance 
metrics, the average number of riders and the cost per rider, as compared to 



Staff Report #: 14-038 

benchmarks for the type of service. The table below summarizes these metrics for each 
route. The benchmarks for service are set bi-annually by C/CAG and the TA based on 
operations of the current routes in San Mateo County and shuttle management best 
practice information.  
 

Shuttle Route 

Passengers per Service Hour Cost per Rider 

Actual  
(FY 2012-2013) 

Service 
Benchmark 

Actual  
(FY 2012-2013) 

Service 
Benchmark 

Marsh Road Caltrain  35 Above 15 $  4.84 Below $  7.00 

Willow Road Caltrain 49 Above 15 $  4.54 Below $  7.00 

Midday  10.3 Above 10 $  7.70 Below $  9.00 

Shoppers’  18.5 Above   2 $17.00 Below $16.00 
Note: FY2012-13 data is presented as the most recent complete fiscal year.  

 
As shown, the ridership (passengers per service hour) generated by the each route in 
the City’s program exceeds the benchmarks. Additionally, the program’s cost 
effectiveness exceeds the County’s standards for the Marsh, Willow and Midday routes. 
The cost per rider of the Shoppers’ Shuttle is approximately six (6) percent over the 
given benchmark for curb-to-curb service. This is likely due to the fact that the service 
facilitates one-way shopping trips; the shuttle picks up passengers at their residences 
and drops them off at their destination, then waits before making the return trip. This 
results in approximately one hour of shuttle “down-time” where new riders are not being 
generated, but the cost of the shuttle must still be absorbed.  
 
Therefore, in the FY 2014-2015 and 2015-2016 program application, the City is 
proposing to adjust the Shoppers’ Shuttle service to offer “fixed-route plus,” where, 
during operating hours, passengers can call for pick-ups/trips to specific destinations, as 
the Shoppers Shuttle currently runs. When not “on-call”, the shuttle will circulate on a 
fixed-route between Sharon Heights/West Menlo Park and the downtown (shopping, 
civic center, Caltrain station, bus connections on El Camino Real) to close the gap in 
service with elimination of Route 295 for transit-dependent riders. This use of the shuttle 
“down-time” is more cost effective and may help generate additional ridership for the 
route. The proposed service would run three days a week (two weekdays and 
Saturdays).  
 
Similar to the last Measure A Call for Projects for FY 2012-2013 and 2013-2014, the 
program requires a local match of at least 25 percent of the total project cost. The City’s 
program is currently funded through a variety of sources, including grants from C/CAG, 
the Peninsula Joint Powers Board (JPB), the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s 
(MTC) Lifeline Grant Program (through FY 2014-2015), and the City’s Shuttle Developer 
Fee. Table 1 below indicates the estimated program budget for the next two-years (FY 
2014-2015 and 2015-2016), since the Measure A program is administered in a two-year 
cycle. 
  



Staff Report #: 14-038 

 Table 1 – Shuttle Program Total Cost 

Shuttle Route 
FY 2012-13 

Actual 
FY 2013-14 

Budget 
FY 2014-15 

Proposed Budget 
FY 2015-16 

Proposed Budget 

Marsh Road Caltrain  $146,306 $166,326 $162,667 $168,179 

Willow Road Caltrain $117,974 $132,431 $166,9421 $172,5631 

Midday  $174,693 $198,100 $220,6881 $228,1871 

Shoppers’  $  32,212 $  37,600 $  54,9852 $  56,8092 

Total $471,185 $534,457 $605,282 $625,738 
Note: FY 2012-13 data is presented as the most recent complete fiscal year.  
1 
While the City was able to negotiate a discounted rate for all-day service between the Willow Road and Midday Routes 

in FY 2012-13 and 2013-14, this may not continue indefinitely. Therefore, full commute and mid-day rates are assumed 
for budgeting purposes for each shuttle.  
2
 Includes proposed increase in service (adding third route and modifying service type).  

 
Of the proposed FY 2014-15 and 2015-16 budget amounts, if awarded, the Measure A 
program will fund up to 75 percent of the program cost. Additionally, program funds 
come from the sources outlined in Table 2 below:  
 
Table 2 – Allocation of Program Cost by Source Fund 

Fiscal Year 

Source 

Measure A 
Request 

MTC Lifeline 
Award 

JPB 
Award 

Developer 
Fees 

Local 
Match 

Total 

2014-2015 $453,962 $76,562 $  69,084  $  5,6752 --2 $   605,282 

2015-2016 $469,304 --1 $  71,154  $68,3252 $16,9552 $   625,738 

2 Year Total $923,266 $76,562 $140,238 $74,000    $16,955 $1,231,020 
1 

The City’s Lifeline Award from MTC is set to expire after FY 14-15. Although the City plans to reapply for this program, 
no funds are assumed after this timeframe to present a conservative budget estimate.   
2
 The City collects approximately $37,000 per year from developer-required contributions to the City’s shuttle program, 

for a total of approximately $74,000 over this funding period. If the MTC Lifeline funds are not awarded in FY 15-16 or 
thereafter, the Shuttle Program may face a shortfall of approximately $17,000 in FY 15-16. This would require use of 
other City funds (e.g., Measure A or general funds) or locating other funding sources. 

 

 
As described and shown in the table above, the City was awarded a MTC Lifeline Grant 
through FY 2014-15 for the Midday Shuttle which will currently expire after FY 2014-
2015. Although the City plans to reapply for these funds, the award cannot be 
guaranteed. Therefore, no funds are assumed to be awarded through this program, 
which presents a conservative estimate of the City’s contribution towards the FY 2015-
2016 budget. While the City collects annual contributions towards the Shuttle Program 
from developer-required fees, these contributions are not adequate to cover the 
potential shortfall in FY 2015-2016 if the Lifeline funds are lost. Therefore, the shortfall 
would need to be covered through use of other City funds (e.g., Measure A or general 
funds) or locating other funding sources.  
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The estimated total annual cost of the Marsh Road, Willow Road, Midday and 
Shoppers’s Shuttle services is $605,282 in FY 2014-2015 and $625,738 in FY 2015-
2016. The funding for the City’s share of 25 percent comes from the MTC Lifeline Grant 
Program, the City’s Shuttle Developer Fee and potentially Measure A funds.  
 



Staff Report #: 14-038 

POLICY ISSUES 

 
The recommendation does not represent a change to existing City policy.  
 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
This proposed action is categorically exempt under the current California Environmental 
Quality Act Guidelines as this is a service already operated by the City. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 

A. Resolution 

 
Report prepared by: 
Nicole H. Nagaya, P.E. 
Senior Transportation Engineer 

 
 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



RESOLUTION NO.  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
SUPPORTING THE CITY’S SHUTTLE PROGRAM FOR THE RECENTLY 
SUBMITTED APPLICATION FOR MEASURE A SHUTTLE PROGRAM 
FUNDING  

WHEREAS, there is a need for “around town” transportation to serve many residents, 
employees and visitors, and 

WHEREAS, City of Menlo Park manages an extensive Shuttle Program to provide 
commuter service to and from the Menlo Park Caltrain station and community shuttle 
service to link residents to vital community services and destinations, and 

WHEREAS, the cost of the City’s Shuttle Program is estimated to be $1,231,020 over fiscal 
years 2014-2015 and 2015-2016, and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to sponsor the City’s Shuttle Program, and 

WHEREAS, the City seeks $923,266 for the Program in fiscal years 2014-2015 and 2015-
2016, and 

WHEREAS, on June 7, 1988, the voters of San Mateo County approved a ballot measure to 
allow the collection and distribution by the San Mateo County Transportation Authority (TA) 
of a half-cent transactions and use tax in San Mateo County for 25 years, with the tax 
revenues to be used for highway and transit improvements pursuant to the Transportation 
Expenditure Plan presented to the voters (Original Measure A); and 

WHEREAS, on November 2, 2004, the voters of San Mateo County approved the 
continuation of the collection and distribution by the TA the half-cent transactions and use 
tax for an additional 25 years to implement the 2004 Transportation Expenditure Plan 
beginning January 1, 2009 (New Measure A); and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the City/County Association of Governments (C/CAG) 
of San Mateo County  at its February 14, 2002 meeting approved the Congestion Relief 
Plan and subsequently reauthorized the Congestion Relief Plan in 2007 and 2010; and 

WHEREAS, a component of the C/CAG Congestion Relief Plan is to support Local and 
Employer Based Shuttle Programs; and 

WHEREAS, the TA and C/CAG issued a joint Call for Projects for the San Mateo County 
Shuttle Program on January 13, 2014, and 

WHEREAS, the TA and C/CAG require a governing board resolution from the City in 
support of the City’s application for $923,266 from the San Mateo County Shuttle Program 
for the City’s Shuttle Program, and 

WHEREAS, TA and C/CAG require a governing board resolution from the City committing 
the City to the completion of the City’s Shuttle Program, and 

ATTACHMENT A



   Resolution No.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 

1. Directs staff to submit an application for funding from the San Mateo County Shuttle 
Program for $923,266 for the City’s Shuttle Program. 

2. Authorizes the City Manager to execute a funding agreement with the San Mateo 
County Transportation Authority to encumber any Measure A Grade Separation 
Program funds and/or City/County Association of Governments Local Transportation 
Services Program funds awarded. 

3. Let it be known the City of Menlo Park commits to the completion of the City’s Shuttle 
Program if awarded the requested funds from San Mateo County Shuttle Program. 

I, Pamela Aguilar, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said 
Council on this fourth day of March, 2014, by the following votes: 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said 
City on this fourth day of March, 2014. 
 

CITY OF MENLO PARK 

______________________________ 

Name, Title 
 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Name, Title 



 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: March 4, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-040 
 

 Agenda Item #: D-2 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Authorize the City Manager to Execute a 

Construction Agreement with SC Builders, Inc., 
and Facebook, Inc. for Tenant Improvements at 
the Property Located at 871A and 871 B Hamilton 
Avenue (Neighborhood Service Center and police 
substation) 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a 
construction agreement with SC Builders, Inc., and Facebook, Inc., for Tenant 
Improvements at the Property Located at 871A and 871B Hamilton Avenue 
(Neighborhood Service Center and police substation). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

On June 4, 2013, the City Council authorized the City Manager to execute a three year 
renewable lease agreement for the property located at 871A and 871B Hamilton 
Avenue, which would serve as a new home for a neighborhood service center 
incorporating the police substation (previously located at Willow Road and Newbridge 
Street). 
 
Staff from several departments worked to identify potential services and uses for this 
new, larger space.  In addition to the police substation, the new Neighborhood Service 
Center will serve as an information center for the Belle Haven neighborhood. The center 
will provide multipurpose space for use by the police department, community services 
department, neighborhood organizers, and others. 
 
In June 2013, the City entered into an agreement with Facebook Inc. to provide tenant 
improvements to the site.  Using the feedback from the various City departments, and in 
partnership with Facebook, plans were designed to remodel the space accordingly. 
 
The plans developed for the tenant improvements included changes such as addition of 
a public service counter that would meet security requirements of the Department of 
Justice, a modern “Facebook-style” look and feel, and an inviting open space that would 
draw people into the facility and encourage for more interaction and information sharing. 
 

AGENDA ITEM D-2



Staff Report #: 14-040  

ANALYSIS 
 

The construction agreement, and included addendum, was designed to accomplish the 
project while addressing funding and liability concerns. The contractor, SC Builders, 
Inc., assumes responsibility for completing the scope of work for a maximum fixed price 
of $139,635, and Facebook, Inc. assumes responsibility for all payments up to that fixed 
price amount. The City, as occupant/owner, retains responsibility for the facility and 
assumes the associated liabilities in its capacity.  
 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The cost for this construction agreement is $139,635 and will be funded by Facebook, 
Inc., through the included addendum to the standard construction agreement. There will 
be no financial impact to the City for the scope of work identified in the agreement. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
Similar to previous agreements related to construction of the recreation facilities with 
funding provided by the John Arrillaga family, this agreement would be funded by 
Facebook, Inc. and utilize a contractor it selected.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The proposed action does not require environmental review. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Construction Agreement with SC Builders, Inc., and Facebook, Inc. 
 

Report prepared by: 
Clay J. Curtin 
Assistant to the City Manager 



ATTACHMENT A



























































THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: March 4, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-037 
 

 Agenda Item #: E-2 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Request for a Conditional Development 

Permit Amendment and Heritage Tree Removal 
Permits for the Demolition of an Existing 
Recreation Building, the Construction of a New 
Recreation Building and Leasing Office, Façade 
Improvements to the Existing Apartment 
Buildings, and Landscaping Located at 350 
Sharon Park Drive 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council conduct a public hearing and concur with the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission to approve the following actions 
associated with proposed modifications to the existing apartment complex located at 
350 Sharon Park Drive in the R-3-A-X (Garden Apartment, Conditional Development) 
zoning district: 
 

1. Make California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Findings that the project 
is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the 
current CEQA Guidelines. 
 

2. Adopt a Resolution Approving the Conditional Development Permit 
Amendment for the approximately 8,505 square foot increase in building 
coverage at the site, façade improvements, comprehensive landscape 
modifications, and to increase the total maximum building coverage limit to 40 
percent. (Attachment B) 

 
3. Adopt a Resolution Approving the Heritage Tree Removal Permits for up to 

42 heritage size trees. (Attachment C) 
 
The full recommended findings, actions, and conditions of approval are included as 
Attachment A. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The subject property contains 296 units, varying in size from one bedroom to three 
bedrooms, located in 18 multi-story apartment buildings on an approximately 15.6-acre 

AGENDA ITEM F-2



Staff Report #: 14-037  

site. In addition, the site currently contains a combined recreation center and leasing 
office, and three multi-level parking structures. The project site is located in the Sharon 
Heights neighborhood, and more specifically in the subdivision known as Sharon 
Heights Unit 10. The Sharon Heights area was developed through multiple subdivisions 
in the 1960s and 1970s, which were often approved through conditional development 
permits (CDPs). Attachment D identifies the subject site as well as the larger boundary 
of the CDP granted for the Sharon Heights Unit 10 subdivision. The subdivision and 
CDP were originally approved in 1963 and subsequently amended in 1965. The existing 
CDP contains more detailed development and design standards for the area than the 
underlying zoning, specifically with regard to building coverage. The existing CDP 
(Attachment E) limits building coverage for the approximately 64-acre subdivision to 
15.5 acres, and more specifically to a maximum of 30 percent for each individual parcel. 
For development standards not listed in the CDP, the CDP references the R-4-A zoning 
district. In 1974, the R-4 zoned properties were downzoned to R-3 citywide and 
therefore, the R-3-A district currently applies to the CDP. 
 
For the City Council’s reference, the X (Conditional Development) district is a combining 
district that combines special regulations or conditions with one of the Zoning 
Ordinance’s established zoning districts. According to the Zoning Ordinance, a CDP 
“may be issued to allow adjustment of the requirements of the district in order to secure 
special benefits possible through comprehensive planning of such large development. 
Further, such adjustment is intended to allow relief from the monotony of standard 
development; to permit the application of new and desirable development techniques; 
and to encourage more usable open space than would otherwise be provided with 
standard development.”  
 
Planning Commission and Environmental Quality Commission (EQC) Review 
 
The Planning Commission initially reviewed the proposed request at its meeting of 
November 4, 2013. The Commission received a number of public comments on the 
project, generally related to the requested tree removals. The Planning Commission 
voted 5-0 (with Commissioners Onken and Strehl absent) to continue the project, 
specifically requesting that the applicant comprehensively reevaluate the proposed 
heritage tree removal requests, in particular for removals that would not be directly 
construction-related, and to subsequently mark (e.g. place ribbons) the trees proposed 
for removal in order to enable clear on-site review by Commissioners and the public. In 
addition, the Planning Commission directed the applicant to work with Recology to 
determine if on-site trash collection is feasible.  
 
The Planning Commission also discussed the EQC’s role in reviewing the requested 
tree removals. In general, projects for which the Planning Commission acts as the 
decision-making body are subject to appeal to the City Council. If a project includes 
heritage tree removals, the EQC separately reviews the request, which is also 
appealable to the City Council. In a case such as the proposed project at 350 Sharon 
Park Drive that includes a CDP amendment, all required actions are combined since the 
Council is the decision-making body on the land use entitlements as well as on the 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

heritage tree removals. In these cases, the EQC has not traditionally had a role in the 
review. In response to the comments received on this case, staff consulted with the City 
Attorney and determined that projects that do not allow for a typical heritage tree review 
by the EQC and appeal process warrant a review by the EQC since the ordinance does 
not address this particular situation. Therefore, the EQC reviewed the proposed 
heritage tree removals at its meeting on December 18, 2013 and provided a 
recommendation to the Planning Commission and City Council to consider as part of 
their deliberations and actions on the proposed project. The EQC’s recommendation is 
discussed further in the Trees and Landscaping section of the report. 
 
Subsequently, the applicant reevaluated the heritage tree removals, incorporating the 
input from the Planning Commission’s initial review, which is discussed throughout the 
report. In addition, the applicant has worked with Recology and provided additional 
information addressing comments from the Commission and members of the public, 
such as shade issues around the pool and the phasing of the site improvements. The 
applicant’s response to the Planning Commission’s direction, is contained in Attachment 
F, and explains the modifications to the project in more detail.  
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the revised project at its meeting of February 10, 
2014 and voted 5-1, with Commissioner Bressler opposed and Commissioner Riggs 
absent, to recommend approval of the CDP amendment and heritage tree removal 
permits to the City Council. The Planning Commission also added a statement to its 
recommendation identifying that the Commission is concerned that the proposed 
improvements could increase the rental rates for the existing tenants at the site. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 

Existing Site Conditions 
 
The project site is located at 350 Sharon Park Drive, and occupies the entire city block. 
For the purposes of the staff report, Sharon Park Drive is considered to be in an 
east/west orientation. The site is bounded by Sharon Park Drive to the south, Monte 
Rosa Drive to the west, Eastridge Avenue to the north, and Sharon Road to the east.  
 
The subject site contains 18 apartment buildings for a total of 296 units, located on a 
15.6-acre site. In addition, there are three parking structures on site and a combined 
recreation center and leasing office currently located adjacent to the pool, near the 
center of the development. The existing buildings contain approximately 372,306 square 
feet of gross floor area for a total floor area ratio (FAR) of 54.8 percent. The site 
currently contains 263,212 square feet of building coverage, which includes the 
footprints of all dwelling buildings, the parking structures, and accessory structures such 
as trellises, canopies, covered seating area, etc. The existing building coverage 
occupies 38.75 percent of the site, which exceeds the maximum building coverage 
permitted by the CDP. The basis for the increased building coverage is not clear, 
although it may have related to an earlier determination that the parking structures 
(which are partially submerged and which have open top levels) did not count as 
building coverage. Regardless, the 38.75 percent accurately reflects how the City 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

currently calculates building coverage requirements for the R-3 and related zoning 
districts. The site has 289 uncovered parking stalls and 229 covered parking stalls on 
site. The existing parking does not meet the Zoning Ordinance requirement of two 
parking spaces per dwelling unit, one of which must be covered. However, the applicant 
is not proposing to increase the number of dwelling units on-site, and the parking was 
set by the CDP. The tallest buildings on site are 36 feet, ten-and-a-quarter inches above 
grade. 
 
Proposed Project 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of a CDP amendment to exceed the maximum 
building coverage of 30 percent, demolish the existing combined recreation center and 
leasing office building, and to construct a new two-story recreation center building and a 
separate leasing office. The proposed recreation center would be located in the same 
location as the existing building. The applicant is proposing to locate the leasing office 
along Sharon Park Drive, and would construct a new access point to the property 
adjacent to the leasing center. The project plans are included in Attachment G for the 
Council’s reference. 
 
The project is generally focused on refreshing the existing buildings, improving the 
landscaping and on-site amenities, and the construction of a new leasing office and 
recreation center. However, the applicant also intends to upgrade the interiors of the 
units, including the provision of in-unit washing machines and dryers. The unit interiors 
would be upgraded when the units are vacant. The proposed modifications would result 
in a slight increase in floor area, but the additions would generally be contained within 
the existing footprint of the structures. The proposed modifications would result in an 
increase of approximately 7,741 square feet of gross floor area for a total gross floor 
area of 380,047 square feet and an FAR of 56 percent. The CDP does not regulate FAR 
since FAR was not in existence at the time of the approved project. Therefore, there is 
no limit on the FAR at the site. However, the CDP explicitly limits the overall building 
coverage for the subject site to 30 percent, and for the overall area covered by the CDP 
to 15.5 total acres. At this time, the applicant is proposing to increase the building 
coverage at the site from 38.75 percent (263,212 square feet) to 39.52 percent (268,417 
square feet). Additionally, the applicant is requesting to amend the CDP to allow the 
specific parcel to have a maximum building coverage of 40 percent. Therefore, the 
applicant is requesting flexibility to add 3,300 square feet (approximately 0.48 percent) 
in the future. Future building coverage increases would be subject to architectural 
control review by the Planning Commission, but would not require City Council review of 
a CDP amendment for minor alterations and additions. The draft resolution approving 
the CDP amendment and the draft CDP itself are included in Attachments B. 
 
The proposed recreation center would be 30 feet, eight-and-three-quarters inches in 
height and the proposed leasing office would be 29 feet, seven-and-a-half inches in 
height. Both structures would be below the existing maximum height of 36 feet, ten-and-
one-quarter inches. At the November 4 Planning Commission meeting, a member of the 
public and resident of the apartment complex brought up issues related to shade 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

impacts from the proposed recreation center on the existing swimming pool. The 
applicant has reviewed the existing conditions and determined that the existing 
recreation center already shades the pool for the majority of the day. The applicant does 
not believe that the proposed recreation center will significantly affect the existing 
conditions. The applicant’s photographs of the existing conditions are included in 
Attachment H. The applicant is also proposing to upgrade the facades of the existing 
buildings with new colors and materials, which are discussed in more detail in the 
Design and Materials section of the report. The proposed project, as currently 
anticipated, would be constructed in six phases. The applicant provided a detailed 
phasing plan for the project, which is included in Attachment F. The phasing plan 
identifies the amount of work for each phase and the heritage tree removals associated 
with each phase of the project. In addition, the phasing plan identifies that the applicant 
evaluated the possibility of replacing the existing windows prior to constructing the new 
buildings, site improvements, and other exterior modifications, and determined that the 
window replacements would not be feasible in the first phase due to associated stucco 
and siding work. The applicant states that preconstruction “Town Hall” meetings would 
be held with the tenants prior to construction to help keep residents informed. In 
addition, the applicant is proposing to update the site’s signage to be consistent with the 
more contemporary architectural style. The signage would generally replace the existing 
signage, with the exception of additional directional signs near the site entrances. The 
sign modifications would result in an overall reduction in total sign area at the site. The 
applicant’s project description letter describes the proposed project in more detail and is 
included in Attachment I. 
 
Site Layout and Circulation 
 
The existing apartment buildings are located generally towards the perimeter of the site, 
with the pool and recreation center located in the middle of the site. The three parking 
structures all contain individual access points from the public streets bordering the site. 
Currently, Sharon Park Drive does not contain a vehicular access point to the site, while 
Monte Rosa Drive contains two access points, one for the parking structure and one for 
a small uncovered parking lot near the intersection of Monte Rosa Drive and Sharon 
Park Drive. The buildings are generally grouped along internal courtyards and 
walkways, which help to create a more suburban feel to the site. The overall site access 
and configuration is not proposed to change as part of the project, with the exception of 
the proposed access point along Sharon Park Drive, adjacent to the relocated leasing 
office. The applicant is proposing to add 10 uncovered parking spaces near the 
proposed leasing office, and would remove four spaces near the access along Monte 
Rosa Drive. The proposal would result in a net increase of 6 uncovered parking spaces 
for a total uncovered parking space count of 225 spaces. The covered parking space 
count would stay constant at 289 spaces. Therefore, the revised site would contain 514 
total parking spaces.  
 
During public comment at the Planning Commission meeting, concerns were raised 
regarding the existing trash pick-up at the site, specifically with regard to on-street pick-
up along Sharon Road. As part of the continuance, the Planning Commission directed 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

the applicant to work with Recology to determine if on-site collection is feasible. The 
applicant provided a letter from Recology identifying some possible modifications to the 
existing trash service locations that could reduce the amount of time vehicles are on the 
street and/or the need for curb-side pick-up. The applicant has provided a conceptual 
plan of proposed modifications to the location of pick-up in addition to the letter from 
Recology. Both are included in Attachment F, as part of the applicant’s response to the 
Planning Commission’s guidance. Staff has reviewed the proposed modifications and 
believes that the proposed modifications would result in improvements to the existing 
trash pick-up and could help ease concerns from neighboring properties. The 
conceptual plan would relocate the curb-side pick up along Monte Rosa Drive and 
Sharon Road to locations within the site. Along Sharon Road, the uncovered parking 
spaces adjacent to the entrance would be used for trash pick-up. Parking restrictions 
would need to be applied to those parking stalls accordingly to ensure that the spaces 
are available for staging of the bins for pick-up on trash pick-up days. The current 
proposal would retain curb-side pick up along Eastridge Avenue. However, Eastridge 
Avenue contains less vehicular traffic than Monte Rosa Drive and Sharon Road, and 
staff believes that there are no feasible alternatives along Eastridge Avenue. Staff 
believes that the proposed modifications adequately address the Commission’s 
direction relating to the trash pick-up at the site. The Draft CDP (Attachment B, Exhibit 
A) contains requirements for the trash pick-up at the site, based on the applicant’s 
proposed modifications.  
 
Design and Materials 
 
The existing buildings on site contain stucco exteriors (painted beige) and wood trim 
and railings (painted in light brown tones), and are generally reminiscent of the 
midcentury architectural style. The applicant is proposing to upgrade the exteriors of the 
existing buildings, maintaining the existing forms while using more contemporary 
materials for an overall architectural refresh to the site. The facades would be a 
combination of stucco and horizontal cement fiber siding (painted in beige and brown 
tones). The deck railings would be replaced with dark grey metal railings and the 
façades within the recessed deck openings would be stucco painted in a greenish blue 
color. The privacy fences on the ground-level units would be replaced with painted 
wood (dark brown) or cedar fences. To complement the façade modifications, the 
applicant is proposing to modify the roof structure slightly to create parapet roof 
elements above certain portions of the building sides, below the main roof ridge, which 
are more in keeping with a contemporary design. As necessary, the applicant intends to 
replace the existing roof material with 30-year composition shingle roofing.  
 
The recreation center would contain similar materials as the upgraded residential 
buildings, while utilizing architectural elements that echo the existing buildings on site. 
The recreation center would contain a combination of stucco and horizontal cement 
fiber siding. However, to differentiate the recreation center from the residential buildings, 
the applicant is proposing to utilize reddish brown hues on the horizontal siding and 
stucco. The railings and entry doors would be dark grey, and the window trim would be 
a lighter beige color. The proposed leasing office would contain the same colors as the 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

proposed recreation center. However, the leasing center would contain vertical siding 
on the upper portion of the facades and stucco on the lower portion. The stucco would 
be reddish brown, but the vertical siding would be a lighter beige color. The building 
would also contain architectural features, such as wood corbels, a cupola, and trellis 
elements on the main entryway façade.  
 
Trees and Landscaping  
 
As part of the overall site improvements, the applicant is updating the landscaping 
throughout the site and incorporating additional on-site amenities, such as a new dog 
park, bocce ball court, enclosed tot-lot, and a new BBQ courtyard that would replace a 
small, secondary pool. The applicant has submitted a preliminary landscape plan, which 
is included with the project plans. The project plans are included in Attachment G. The 
comprehensive update of the site landscaping initially included the removal of 65 
heritage trees. The applicant submitted an arborist report that inventories the 
approximately 459 heritage and non-heritage trees on site and documents the size, 
heritage status, and tree condition. The report also identified if the tree was proposed to 
be removed, and included tree protection measures to mitigate potential impacts to the 
protected trees during construction. The City’s contract arborist, Fujitrees Consulting, 
reviewed the applicant’s arborist report and preliminary tree removal requests. The 
City’s contract arborist determined that the heritage tree removal requests were 
warranted, with the exception of three heritage trees. The City arborist also reviewed 
the contract arborist’s report. The applicant subsequently reevaluated the three tree 
removals and determined that the three trees could be retained as part of the project. 
Therefore, the applicant requested 62 heritage tree removals instead of the preliminary 
request for 65 tree removals. The City’s contract arborist’s initial review and the project 
arborist’s initial tree inventory are available at the City offices for review. The revised 62 
heritage tree removals are summarized in the following table, based on the reason for 
the removal request (construction-related vs. structure/health) and tree type: 
 

ORIGINAL PROPOSAL (NOVEMBER 2013) 
Construction Related Heritage Tree 

Removals 
Structural/Health Related Heritage Tree 

Removals 
Tree Type (Common 
Name) 

Number of 
Trees 

Tree Type (Common 
Name) 

Number of 
Trees 

Chinese Elm 1 Acacia 2 
Cottonwood Poplar 3 Evergreen Pear 2 
Gum Tree 1 Gum Tree 2 
Juniper 1 Monterey Pine 20 
Monterey Pine 1 Red Gum Tree 2 
Tulip Tree 5 Red Ironbark 6 

Intentionally left blank 

Shamel Ash 6 
Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 9 
Tulip Tree 1 

Total Construction Related 
Tree Removals 

12 Total Structural/Health 
Related Tree Removals 

50 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

 
As part of its continuance, the Planning Commission requested that the applicant 
reevaluate the proposed heritage tree removals in order to limit the number of heritage 
tree removals. The project arborist subsequently determined that 23 additional trees 
could be preserved and provided mitigation measures identified in the reevaluation 
report (Attachment J). Of these 23 trees, 17 are in fair condition and six are in poor 
condition, according to the project arborist. A recurring mitigation for these trees would 
be pruning to reduce branch end-weight. In addition, the project arborist determined that 
three heritage trees could be negatively impacted from the proposed fire water line, 
required by the Menlo Park Fire District. Therefore, the applicant has revised its request 
to remove 42 heritage trees, a 20 tree reduction from the request of 62 heritage tree 
removals. The 23 heritage trees proposed to remain and the three additional tree 
removals are summarized in the table below: 
 

Reevaluated Trees to Remain Additional Trees to be Removed for New 
Fire Line 

Tree Type (Common 
Name) 

Number of 
Trees 

Tree Type (Common 
Name) 

Number of 
Trees 

Monterey Pine 9 Blue Oak 1 
Red Gum 2 Sycamore 1 
Red Ironbark 2 Monterey Pine 1 
Eucalyptus 6 

This portion intentionally left blank Shamel Ash 1 
Cottonwood 3 
Total Trees Preserved 23 Total New Tree Removals 3 
 
The project arborist’s reevaluation provided more detailed information regarding the 
reasons for removal of 21 of the 31 non-construction related removals. In addition, the 
construction related removals, even with the additional three removals for the fire water 
line installation, have been reduced to 11 trees. Therefore, the revised project contains 
11 heritage tree removals due to construction and 31 heritage trees removals due to 
health/structure, for a total of 42 trees. The applicant has placed ribbons on the 
proposed tree removals, as well as the preserved trees for the Council’s review. Orange 
ribbons indicate heritage trees proposed to be removed due to construction, yellow 
ribbons indicate heritage trees proposed to be removed due to the existing 
health/structure of the trees, and green ribbons indicate heritage trees proposed to be 
maintained as part of the comprehensive heritage tree removal reevaluation. (The 
Planning Commission and subsequently City Council were notified of the ribbons ahead 
of the publication of their respective staff reports.) The following table summarizes the 
revised heritage tree removals, based on the reason for the removal request and tree 
type:  
 

CURRENT PROPOSAL (FEBRUARY 2014) 
Construction Related Heritage Tree 

Removals 
Structural/Health Related Heritage Tree 

Removals 
Tree Type (Common Number of Tree Type (Common Number of 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

Name) Trees Name) Trees 

Chinese Elm 1 Acacia 2 
Juniper 1 Evergreen Pear 2 
Monterey Pine 2 Gum Tree 2 
Sycamore 1 Monterey Pine 11 
Tulip Tree 5 Red Gum Tree 1 
Valley Oak 1 Red Ironbark 4 

Intentionally left blank 

Shamel Ash 5 
Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 3 
Tulip Tree 1 

Total Construction Related 
Tree Removals 

11 Total Structural/Health 
Related Tree Removals 

31 

 
The City’s contract arborist reviewed the project arborist’s revised tree removals and 
arborist report and provided comments on the tree protection measures, which have 
been incorporated into the revised arborist report and tree inventory (Attachment K). 
The revised tree inventory lists the proposed heritage tree removals based on 
health/structure and construction, the reevaluated heritage tree removals that will be 
preserved, and non-heritage tree removals. Fujiitrees consulting provided a comment 
letter on the applicant’s revised tree removals and arborist report (Attachment L). 
 
The applicant is proposing to provide 159 heritage tree replacements, which represents 
a greater than three-to-one ratio, where a one to one ratio is required. The proposed 
heritage tree replacements include a combination of valley oak trees, London plane 
trees, and redwood trees. Additionally, the applicant is proposing trees ranging in size 
from 24-inch box trees to 84-inch box trees, which exceed the minimum requirement of 
15 gallons.  
 
The EQC reviewed the proposed heritage tree removals at its meeting on December 18, 
2013. At that meeting, the EQC took public comment and discussed the applicant’s 
proposal, including the reduced number of heritage tree removal requests. The minutes 
from the EQC meeting are included in Attachment M. The EQC voted 7-0 to 
recommend the following prior to approval of the project: 

1. The applicant reconsider trees that will be removed for building construction 
by submitting structure designs that preserve trees; and 

2. As a condition of the development permit, the project and existing/future 
property owners must ensure that there are “N” number of heritage trees on 
the whole property at all times going forward. The number "N" should be 
determined to be no less than the current total of heritage trees on the entire 
site, but also could be set at a higher level or set to increase in future years. A 
certified arborist must confirm and document the total number and locations of 
heritage trees on the property and then annually certify that the number of 
healthy and well maintained heritage trees is equal to or greater than "N." Any 
new trees planted on the site must be from city approved list going forward. 
Particular magnificent specimens should be identified and singled out for 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

special protection. In addition, the development permit should include the 
following: 
a. Property owner should pay for its own oversight and city oversight of 

this permit requirement; and  
b. Ensure this permit standard holds when the property is sold; and 
c. Failure to maintain the required number of trees or proper maintenance 

to keep trees healthy, shall result in a 4-to-1 tree replacement in 
addition to a significant financial penalty (which EQC recommends be 
used to further the city's heritage tree protection and maintenance 
program). 

 
The applicant has evaluated additional designs for the leasing office building to 
determine if any additional heritage trees could be preserved. The applicant determined 
that the best case scenario would be able to retain two heritage trees. However, the 
alternate design would result in a one-way driveway entrance from Sharon Park Drive, 
negatively impact the leasing office’s street presence along Sharon Park Drive, and 
result in the need to construct retaining walls and switchback ramps to meet 
accessibility requirements for the new building. Therefore, the applicant does not 
believe the proposed redesign is feasible.  
 
The applicant has also evaluated the feasibility of utilizing the existing heritage tree 
count as a baseline for the project site. However, utilizing the existing 228 heritage trees 
for the baseline would require that any heritage tree removals be replaced with heritage 
size trees. The applicant has reviewed the possibility of replanting the 42 heritage tree 
removals with heritage trees and determined that replacing the heritage tree removals 
with heritage trees is not feasible, since larger size trees have a reduced chance of long 
term survival and lower growth rate than the tree sizes currently proposed for 
replacements. In addition, heritage size replacement trees would require greater 
excavation and present logistical problems for equipment associated with the 
excavation and planting. The applicant also states that heritage size replacement trees 
would impose a significant financial impact to the project. The applicant also evaluated 
relocating some of the proposed tree removals, but determined that the long term health 
of the trees would be limited. The applicant, however, believes that the baseline could 
be set at the post project heritage tree number (186). The applicant states that they 
would be able to maintain the 186 post-project heritage trees and would provide an 
annual report identifying the number of heritage size trees on-site and the individual 
health of the trees. Staff believes that setting the baseline number for the on-site 
heritage trees as the post-project number is more feasible. Typically heritage tree 
removals are required to be replaced at a one-to-one ratio and with a 15-gallon size 
tree. The applicant is proposing a greater than three-to-one ratio, as well as significantly 
larger box-size trees (24 to 84 inches) than required by the City’s Heritage Tree 
Ordinance. Therefore, staff believes that setting the baseline as the number of trees 
after completion of the project and associated removals is more appropriate. The 
applicant would be required to provide the City with annual reports documenting that the 
heritage trees on-site meet or exceed the baseline (186) number. Staff believes that the 
annual reporting should begin within one year of approval of the CDP amendment. 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

Since heritage tree removals would be done in phases, consistent with the development 
phasing plan, the baseline would not be reached until completion of the entire project. 
The draft CDP (Attachment B, Exhibit A) contains language requiring the applicant to 
provide an annual report to the City for review. The CDP also contains penalties for a 
loss of heritage trees below the baseline number. If the on-site heritage tree count is 
reduced to below the baseline, the applicant is required to replace the loss of heritage 
trees at a four-to-one ratio. The increased number of trees would result in an increased 
cost to the property owner, which represents a financial penalty for failing to maintain 
the baseline number of heritage trees on-site. The four-to-one replacement ratio is 
intended to help incentivize the proper maintenance of the baseline number of heritage 
trees at the site.  
 
While the absolute number of proposed heritage tree removals (42) is large, they 
represent a small portion of the total trees (approximately 459, including heritage and 
non-heritage) currently on what is a fairly large 15.6-acre site. In addition, many of the 
proposed heritage tree removals are Monterey pines (which are susceptible to disease) 
and eucalyptuses (which some landscape professionals no longer consider 
recommended trees for this area). Additionally, the applicant has worked with their 
project arborist to reduce the overall number of heritage tree removals, consistent with 
the Planning Commission’s initial direction. Given that the site was developed in the 
1960s, staff believes that this comprehensive landscaping revision, including the 
replacement plantings of preferred species at larger sizes, is appropriate. In addition, 
the proposed baseline number of trees would help maintain the tree canopy at the site. 
 
Correspondence 
 
Staff has not received any items of correspondence directly on the project since the 
December 18, 2013 Environmental Quality Commission meeting. However, members of 
the public have provided comments directly to the Planning Commission’s email, as well 
as to the City Council’s email log (CCIN). 
 
Conclusion   
 
The proposed project would result in a comprehensive architectural refresh of the 
existing buildings at the site, allow for the construction of an expanded recreation/fitness 
center for the benefit of tenants at the site, enable the construction of a standalone 
leasing office, and provide a comprehensive update to the existing landscaping at the 
site. The proposed project has been reviewed by the applicable departments and found 
to be in compliance with all applicable city requirements. The majority of the proposed 
heritage tree removals are related to the exiting health of the trees, and they represent a 
small proportion of the overall trees on a relatively large site. The project arborist has 
worked diligently to reevaluate the tree removals and has reduced the requested 
number of heritage tree removals. The updated project arborist report contains tree 
protection and mitigation measures for the existing trees proposed to remain at the site. 
Replacement plantings of preferred species would be provided at a greater than three-
to-one ratio and at greater sizes than required. The applicant would also be required to 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

provide an annual report to document the maintenance of the post-construction baseline 
number of trees. Additionally, the applicant has worked with Recology to improve trash 
pick-up at the site. The Planning Commission recommended 5-1, that the City Council 
approve the proposed project. Staff recommends that the City Council approve the 
conditional development permit amendment and heritage tree removal permits for the 
proposed project.  
 

 

IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The project sponsor is required to pay planning permit fees, based on the City’s Master  
Fee Schedule, to fully cover the cost of staff time spent on the review of the project.  
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
CDPs allow adjustment of the requirements of the underlying zoning district in order to 
secure special benefits possible through comprehensive planning of large 
developments and to provide relief from the monotony of standard development, to 
permit the application of new and desirable development techniques, and to encourage 
more usable open space than would otherwise be provided with standard development.  
The proposed project would be consistent with the purposes of a CDP.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, “Existing Facilities”) 
of the current California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public notification consisted of publishing a notice in the local newspaper and 
notification by mail of owners and occupants within 300 feet of the boundary of the 
existing CDP.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Draft Findings, Actions, and Conditions for Approval 
B. Draft Resolution for CDP   
C. Draft Resolution for Heritage Tree Removals  
D. Location Map 
E. Existing CDP, dated approved January 12, 1965 
F. Applicant’s Response to Planning Commission and Environmental Quality 

Commission comments 
G. Project Plans 
H. Photographs of Pool Area Existing Conditions 
I. Applicant’s Project Description Letter 
J. Arborist Reevaluation, prepared by Arborwell, dated December 5, 2013 



Staff Report #: 14-037  

K. Arborist Report and Tree inventory, prepared by Arborwell, dated December 
10, 2013 

L. Peer Review of Arborist Reevaluation and Arborist Report, prepared by 
Fujitrees Consulting, dated December 11, 2013 

M. Minutes from the EQC meeting of December, 18, 2013  
 

Report prepared by: 

Kyle Perata 
Associate Planner 
 
Linda Heineck 
Community Development Director 

 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

 
350 Sharon Park Drive 

Draft Findings, Actions, and Conditions for Approval 
March 4, 2014 

 
 
 
1. Adopt a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 

15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the current CEQA Guidelines. 
 

2. Adopt a Resolution Approving the Conditional Development Permit Amendment for 
the approximately 8,505 square foot increase in building coverage at the site, façade 
improvements, comprehensive landscape modifications, and to increase the total 
maximum building coverage limit to 40 percent. (Attachment B) 

 
3. Adopt a Resolution Approving the Heritage Tree Removal Permits for up to 42 

heritage size trees. (Attachment C) 
 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



ATTACHMENT B 

DRAFT – March 4, 2014 
 

RESOLUTION NO.       
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK, CALIFORNIA APPROVING A CONDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
PERMIT AMENDMENT FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 350 
SHARON PARK DRIVE 

 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Ordinance establishes that a Conditional Development Permit 
(“CDP”) may be issued to allow adjustment of requirements in order to secure special 
benefits possible through comprehensive planning of large development, and that such 
adjustment is intended to allow relief from the monotony of standard development; to 
permit the application of new and desirable development techniques; and to encourage 
more usable open space than would otherwise be provided with standard development; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received an application from BRE FMCA LLC (“Applicant”), to 
amend an existing CDP for an existing multi-family residential development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed development will not be detrimental to the health, safety, 
morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing or working in the 
neighborhood of such proposed development, and will not be detrimental to property 
and improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held 
according to law; and 
 
WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park on February 10, 2014 
whereat all persons interested therein might appear and be heard; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park having fully reviewed, 
considered and evaluated all the testimony and evidence submitted in this matter voted 
affirmatively to recommend to the City Council of the City of Menlo Park to amend the 
CDP; and 
 
WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the City Council of the City of Menlo Park on March 4, 2014 whereat all 
persons interested therein might appear and be heard. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
hereby approves the amendments to the Conditional Development Permit for the 
Property attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.   
 



Resolution No.  

I, Pamela Aguilar, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on _______________, 2014, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
 
 
  
Pamela Aguilar  
City Clerk 



DRAFT – March 4, 2014 
 

CONDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
 

350 Sharon Park Drive (“Sharon Green”) 
 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 

1.1 Applicant: Bob Linder for the BRE FMCA LLC 
 
1.2 Property Owner: BRE FMCA LLC 
 
1.3 Nature of Project: Conditional Development Permit (CDP) Amendment to 

increase the maximum permitted building coverage at the site addressed 350 
Sharon Park Drive, located within the Sharon heights Unit 10 subdivision and 
corresponding CDP (dated approved January 12, 1965), from 30 percent, per 
the previous approved CDP, to 40 percent. The proposed building coverage 
increase is associated with the development of a new leasing center, 
reconstructed recreation building, and other site improvements. The proposed 
increase in building coverage would not allow for an increase in density. As part 
of the approval of the CDP amendment, the applicant is proposing to construct 
approximately 8,505 square feet of additional building coverage, for a current 
total proposed building coverage of 39.52 percent. Any future additions or new 
structures would be subject to architectural control review by the Planning 
Commission. 

 
1.4 Property Location (Project Site): 350 Sharon Park Drive 
 
1.5 Assessor's Parcel Numbers: 074-281-110 and 074-281-120 
 
1.6 Area of Property: 679,266 square feet (15.6 acres) 
 
1.7 Zoning: R-3-A (X) (Garden Apartment, Conditional Development) 
 
1.8 Previous entitlements: The amended Conditional Development Permit for 350 

Sharon Park Drive supersedes the previously granted Conditional Development 
Permit for the site. The amended permit applies only to the property addressed 
350 Sharon Park. All other properties within the boundary of the Sharon 
Heights Unit 10 subdivision are regulated by the CDP approved January 12, 
1965. 

 
2. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: 
 

2.1 The current development contains building coverage of 38.75 percent, which 
exceeds the 30 percent development standard set forth in the 1965 CDP. Per 
this permit, the maximum building coverage for the site shall not exceed 40 
percent through Architectural Control review by the conditions contained 
herein and in accordance with Section 6.1.3 (Major Modifications) of this 
document. 



 

 
2.2 Building setbacks shall be in accordance with the approved plans, which may 

be modified through Architectural Control review by the conditions contained 
herein and in accordance with Section 6.1.3 (Major Modifications) of this 
document. 

 
2.3 Building height shall not exceed 36 feet, ten-and-one-quarter inches. 

 
2.4 All rooftop equipment shall be fully screened and integrated into the design of 

the building.  Rooftop equipment shall comply with noise requirements of the 
Municipal Code. 

 
2.5 For development standards not expressly identified in this CDP, please refer to 

the CDP for Sharon Heights Unit 10, approved January 12, 1965. 
 
3. USES: 
 

3.1 The following uses are permitted at the site: 
 

3.1.1 High rise apartments, garden apartments, townhouses, accessory 
buildings, and appurtenant recreation facilities, consistent with the original 
CDP. Per the amended CDP, administrative facilities are also permitted 
uses at the subject site. 
 

4 SIGNS: 
 

4.1 Signage shall comply with the proposed signage program identified in the plan 
set. The maximum proposed sign area shall not exceed the existing sign area 
at the subject site. 

 
5 DENSITY: 

 
5.1 Density shall not exceed the existing 296 units at the subject site, which is 

consistent with the “Density Distribution, Sharon Heights Unit 10” exhibit, dated 
November 1964. 
 

6 TRASH AND RECYCLING: 
 
6.1 The applicant shall continue to work with the waste service provider to relocate 

the existing trash collection from the public right-of-ways to on-site locations. 
The applicant shall at a minimum, relocate the trash collection on Monte Rosa 
Drive and Sharon Road to locations within the site, as identified on the Trash 
and Recycling plan dated received January 17, 2014 and approved by the City 
Council on March 4, 2014.  
 

7 HERITAGE TREES: 
 
7.1 The applicant shall maintain a minimum of 186 heritage trees on the campus at 

all times, which shall be considered the baseline number of heritage trees. 



 

 
7.2 To ensure compliance with the proposed baseline, the applicant shall submit an 

annual report identifying the number of heritage trees on-site, and the existing 
health and overall condition of each individual tree. The annual report shall be 
submitted to the City for the first five years after approval of this amendment. 

 
7.3 If the applicant fails to maintain the baseline number of heritage trees at the 

site, the applicant shall be required to replace the deficient number of trees at a 
four-to-one ratio. The replacement trees shall be a minimum of 24-inch box 
size, and shall be subject to review and approval of the Planning Division and 
City Arborist.  

 
8 RECORDATION: 

 
8.1 Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the 

applicant shall record the amended Conditional Development Permit with the 
County of San Mateo County. The applicant shall provide a conformed copy of 
the recordation prior to building permit issuance and the official recorded copy 
prior to building permit final. 

 
8.2 The Conditional Development Permit shall be in force on the effective date of 

the resolution approving the amendment. 
 
9 MODIFICATIONS: 

 
9.1 Modifications to the approved Project may be considered according to the 

following four tier review process: 
 

9.1.1 Substantially Consistent Modifications are made at the staff level. 
Substantially Consistent Modifications are changes to or modifications of 
the Project that are in substantial compliance with and/or substantially 
consistent with the Project Plans and the Project approvals. Substantially 
Consistent Modifications are generally not visible to the public and do not 
affect permitted uses, density or intensity of use, restrictions and 
requirements relating to subsequent discretionary actions, monetary 
obligations, conditions or covenants limiting or restricting the use of the 
Property or similar material elements based on the determination that the 
proposed modification(s) is consistent with other building and design 
elements of the approved Conditional Development Permit, and will not 
have an adverse impact on the character and aesthetics of the Property. 
The determination as to whether a requested change is a Substantially 
Consistent modification will be made by the Community Development 
Director (in his/her reasonable discretion).   

 
9.1.2 Minor Modifications are made at the staff level, but the Planning 

Commission is provided information regarding these modifications. The 
determination as to whether a requested change is a Minor Modification is 
determined by the Community Development Director (in his/her 
reasonable discretion).  A Minor Modification is similar in nature to a 



 

Substantially Consistent Modification, except that Minor Modifications 
generally are visible to the public and result in minor exterior changes to 
the Project aesthetics. Any member of the Commission may request within 
seven (7) days of receipt of the informational notice that the item(s) be 
reviewed by the Planning Commission.  

 
9.1.3 Major Modifications are reviewed by the Planning Commission through 

Architectural Control. Major Modifications include, but are not limited to, 
significant changes to the exterior appearance of the buildings or 
appearance of the Property, and changes to the approved plans, including 
the addition of building coverage and modifications to the building 
setbacks, provided that the proposed modification meets all other 
development regulations set forth in the Section 2 of this document. The 
determination as to whether a requested change is a Major Modification is 
determined by the Community Development Director (in his/her 
reasonable discretion). In reviewing Major Modifications, the Planning 
Commission shall evaluate the project using the Zoning Ordinance 
findings for architectural control applications. 

 
9.1.4 Conditional Development Permit Amendments are reviewed by the 

Planning Commission and the City Council.  Conditional Development 
Permit Amendments are required where the Applicant seeks revisions to 
the Project which involve (a) the relaxation of the development standards 
identified in Section 2 (with the exception of setbacks and building 
coverage) (b) material changes to the uses identified in Section 3, 
(c) exceedance of the maximum permissible signage area identified in 
Section 4, or (d) material modifications to the conditions of approval 
identified in Section 8. If the Applicant wishes to make a change that 
requires an amendment to this Conditional Development Permit, it shall 
apply, in writing, to the Planning Division for review and recommendation 
to the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission shall then 
forward its recommendation to the City Council for amendment(s) to the 
Conditional Development Permit. 

 
10 PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS - GENERAL: 

 
10.1 Indemnity by Owner: The Owner shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 

City, and its elective and appointive boards, commissions, officers, agents, 
contractors and employees (collectively, “City Indemnified Parties”) from any 
and all claims, causes of action, damages, costs or expenses (including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of or in connection with, or caused on 
account of, the development and occupancy of the Project, any Approval with 
respect thereto, or claims for injury or death to persons, or damage to 
property, as a result of the operations of Owner or its employees, agents, 
contractors, representatives or tenants with respect to the Project (collectively, 
“Claims”); provided, however, that Owner shall have no liability under this 
Section 7.1 for Claims arising from the gross negligence or willful misconduct 
of any City Indemnified Party, or for Claims arising from, or alleged to arise 



 

from, the repair or maintenance by the City of any improvements that have 
been offered for dedication by Owner and accepted by the City. 
 

10.2 Project Plans: Development of the Project shall be substantially in 
conformance with the following plans submitted by BDE Architecture dated 
received by the Planning Division on October 22, 2013, consisting of 83 plan 
sheets, recommended for approval to the City Council by the Planning 
Commission on March 18, 2013, and approved by the City Council on 
_________, 2013, except as modified by the conditions contained herein and 
in accordance with Section 6 (modifications) of this document. 

 
10.3 Requirements of External Agencies: Prior to building permit issuance, the 

applicant shall comply with all Sanitary District, Menlo Park Fire Protection 
District, Recology, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly 
applicable to the project. 

 
10.4 Requirements of Internal Departments: Prior to building permit issuance, the 

applicant shall comply with all requirements of the Building Division, 
Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly applicable to 
the project. 

 
10.5 Demolition and Recycling: Prior to demolition permit and building permit 

issuance, the applicant shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 12.48 
(Salvaging and Recycling of Construction and Demolition Debris) of the City of 
Menlo Park Municipal Code, and is subject to review and approval by the 
Engineering and Building Divisions. 

 
10.6 Construction Safety and Erosion Control Plan: Prior to demolition permit 

issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for 1) construction safety fences 
around the periphery of the construction area, 2) dust control, 3) erosion and 
sedimentation control, 4) tree protection fencing, and 5) construction vehicle 
parking. The plans shall be subject to review and approval by the Building and 
Engineering Divisions prior to issuance of a demolition permit. The fences and 
erosion and sedimentation control measures shall be installed according to the 
approved plan prior to commencing demolition.  

 
10.7 Heritage Trees: Prior to demolition permit issuance, the applicant shall submit 

a heritage tree preservation plan, detailing the location of and methods for all 
tree protection measures, as described in the arborist report. The project 
arborist shall submit a letter confirming adequate installation of the tree 
protection measures. The project sponsor shall retain an arborist throughout 
the term of the project, and the project arborist shall submit periodic inspection 
reports to the Building Division. The heritage tree preservation plan shall be 
subject to review and approval by the Planning Division. 

 
10.8 Truck Route Plan: Prior to demolition permit issuance, the applicant shall 

submit a truck route plan and permit to be reviewed and approved by the 
Transportation Division. 

 



 

10.9 Utilities: Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building permit 
application, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility installations or 
upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering, and Building 
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that 
cannot be placed underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The 
plan shall show exact locations, dimensions, and colors of all meters, 
transformers, junction boxes, relay boxes, and other equipment boxes. The 
utility plans shall also show backflow and Double Check Detector Assembly 
(DCDA) devices.  

 
10.10 Grading and Drainage Plan: Concurrent with the submittal of a complete 

building permit application, the applicant shall submit a Grading and Drainage 
Plan for review and approval by the Engineering Division. The Grading and 
Drainage Plan shall be prepared based on the City’s Grading and Drainage 
Plan Guidelines and Checklist and the Project Applicant Checklist for the 
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit 
Requirements. The erosion and sediment control plans shall be attached to 
the Grading and Drainage plans and may be similar to the erosion control plan 
provided for the demolition permit. The Grading and Drainage Plan shall be 
approved prior to or concurrent with the issuance of a building permit. 

 
10.11 Geotechnical Report: Concurrent with the submittal of a complete building 

permit application, a design-level geotechnical investigation report shall be 
submitted the Building Division for review and confirmation that the proposed 
development fully complies with the California Building Code. The report shall 
determine the project site’s surface geotechnical conditions and address 
potential seismic hazards. The report shall identify building techniques 
appropriate to minimize seismic damage. 

 
10.12 Stormwater: Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall enter into and 

record a “Stormwater Treatment Measures Operations and Maintenance 
(O&M) Agreement” with the City subject to review and approval by the 
Engineering Division. With the executed agreement, the property owner is 
responsible for the operation and maintenance of stormwater treatment 
measures for the project. The agreement shall run with the land and shall be 
recorded by the applicant with the San Mateo County Recorder’s Office. 

 
 



ATTACHMENT C 
 

 
DRAFT – March 4, 2014 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK, CALIFORNIA APPROVING HERITAGE TREE REMOVAL 
PERMITS FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 350 SHARON PARK 
DRIVE. 

 
 
WHEREAS, on March 20, 2013, the City of Menlo Park (“City”) received applications 
from BRE properties, Inc. (“Project Sponsor”) for removal of 65 heritage trees at the 
property located at 350 Sharon Park Drive in Menlo Park (“Project Site”), which have 
since been reduced to 42 heritage tree removals; and  

 
WHEREAS, 11 of the requested tree removals are necessary in order to construct site 
improvements, including a new leasing office and site access, and 31 trees are 
necessary to remove due to their existing health or structure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the removal of Heritage Trees within the City is subject to the requirements 
of Municipal Code Chapter 13.24, Heritage Trees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City contracted with an independent arborist (“Contract Arborist”) to 
review the requested tree removals; 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract Arborist reviewed the requested tree removals on October 21, 
2013 and the revised tree removal request on December 11, 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract Arborist determined that 31 of the heritage trees contained 
poor health or structure and that 11 heritage trees were necessary to enable 
construction of the proposed site improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract Arborist reviewed the Project Arborist assessment and agreed 
that the 42 Heritage Trees proposed for removal were in poor to fair health; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Arborist reviewed the Contract Arborist’s report and agreed with 
the determinations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Arborist determined that the proposed approximately 159 
replacement trees would be more compatible with the site; and 
 
WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held 
according to law; and  
 



Resolution No. XXX 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park on February 10, 2014 
whereat the Planning Commission considered a recommendation from the EQC and 
whereat all persons interested therein might appear and be heard; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park having fully reviewed, 
considered and evaluated all the testimony and evidence submitted in this matter voted 
affirmatively to recommend to the City Council of the City of Menlo Park to approve the 
Heritage Tree Removal Permits; and 

 
WHEREAS, after notice having been lawfully given, a public hearing was scheduled and 
held before the City Council of the City of Menlo Park on March 4, 2014 whereat all 
persons interested therein might appear and be heard.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
hereby approves the Heritage Tree Removal Permits.   
 
I, Pamela Aguilar, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the ___ day of ____________, 2014, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this ___ day of ____________, 2014. 
 
 
  
Pamela Aguilar 
City Clerk 
 



1011

325

2245

350

600

2250

24
20

21
80

11
85

24
00

2225

2275

23
33

7

8

8 777

4

74

3

2

7
1

9

3

4

5

6

5

7

5

2

8

927

11

26

2198

70

23

28

15

49

3

149

80

84
5

20

12

30

20

24

12

941

45

122

16

5

96
4

98
4

10

6

2

48

10

10

4

15

1

931

40

988

44

30

23
23

815

9

30
21

41

2075

90

55

30

13
5

20

940
12

15

25

10

40

7

25

15

10

1020

730

30

20

750

975

820
835

25

35
15

968

35

11
35

25

35

720
81

5

760

85
5

150

913

750

45

923

740
755

949

735

745

710

910

940

865

905

98
0 96
0

996

11

920

730

21
55

90
0

97
0

825

830

850

740

760

910

930

710

83
0

11
90

914

810

70
4

120

715

835

94
5

151

10
0

13
9

1010

965

73
5

21
21

21
31

855

2328

21
45

960

91
5

820

840
840

860

940

23
27

22
40

23
19

23
20

2324
95

5

850

3812

1035

905

92
5

12
5

21
01

93
5

23
15

2323

2316

860

21
71

2316

2324

2398

2311

1018

1015

23
04

23
08

21
94

23
03

23
12

23
94

980
970

23
27

23
36

21
60

23
11

1135

2324

32
5

23
12

2307

2308

1030

22
10

2391

1025

21
70

2168

2320

23
31

1145

10
10

1045

23
19

2308

22
00

23
12

23
16

140

23
95

230823
07

145

2327

2307

2335

2315

2312
23

15

23
39

2320

2311

2192

22
20

23
32

38
38

2332

23
16

2319

2311

3826

2304

21
99

1155

23
23

23
08

231223
28

21
30

21
10

23
07

2319

2324

11
65

23
31

21
00

21
452327

21
50

21
40

22
70

21
74

21
58

21
42

2315

21
82

23
23

2331

40

22
80

21
89

23
03

23
31

11
60

1010

23
24

1115

932

23
16

2308 21
36

2375

2386

2378

2368

23
90

2311

23
20

901

23
71

2316

23
27

21
51

21
61

2319

1150

11
25

1140

2242

1005

1015
1025

1085

1020

2246

1065

1020

1055
1050

1040

1095

2364

2372

2382

1030

21
76

1130 1060

3876

3880

3890

2101

3868

21
98

21
99

21
81

21
91

  SAND HILL  RD

  SHARON PARK  DR   AVY  AVE

  SHARON  RD
  M

O
N

TE
 R

O
S

A  D
R

  A
LT

S
C

H
U

L 
 A

V
E

  A
LA

M
E

D
A 

D
E

 L
A

S
 P

U
LG

A
S

   

  BRANNER  DR

  S
A

N
TA

 C
R

U
Z 

 A
VE

  CREST  LN

  EASTRIDGE  AVE

  ASHTON  AVE

  OLYMPIC  AVE

  GORDON  AVE

  S
AGA  L

N

  S
U

N
SE

T 
 L

N   HARKINS  AVE

  CLAYTON  DR

  DEANNA  DR   B
E

LL
A

IR
  W

Y

  BLUERIDGE  AVE

  PROSPECT  ST

  S
U

N
R

IS
E

  C
T

CITY OF MENLO PARK
LOCATION MAP

350 SHARON PARK DRIVE

´

DRAWN: KTP CHECKED: KTP DATE:11/04/13 SCALE: 1" = 900' SHEET: 1

A1

Legend

CDP Boundary

PROJECT SITE

03/04/14

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT E

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text





vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT F

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text







 
BRE Properties, Inc. Frances Ouellette 
5141 California, Ste 250 Sr. Director Reinvestments Capital Improvements 
Irvine, CA 92617  

Telephone:     949-863-4255  

Facsimile: 949-863-4202  

 

January 29, 2014 

 
Kyle Perata 
City Of Menlo Park 
Planning Commission 
701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 

Dear Mr. Perata, 

Outlined below is the construction execution plan for each component of the Sharon Green 

Renovation Project.  The execution of the work is based on the existing field conditions as we know 

them today.  Several site inspections of the exterior and interior buildings, site topography and pot 

holing have been completed to support the execution assumptions. The construction plan is subject to 

change if there are unknown field conditions that may arise during the renovation process. 

Exterior Phasing Plan 

The exterior renovation will consist of 6 phases as outlined below.  Each phase will include the 

completion of the residential building exteriors and the site amenities associated with each phase.  The 

work will continue in occupied buildings and all construction and building codes will be enforced 

during the construction process to ensure the safety of the residents, guests, workers and vendors 

associated with the renovation and operations of the property.  Included are the interior upgrades in 

the corridors of buildings Type 1 and 2, the work will be in process while the apartment homes are 

occupied.  All work will take place Monday through Friday from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm. 

The table below includes the sequencing of the Heritage Tree Removals associated with each phase of 

the renovation process. 

  Phase #0 Fire line Installation   12 ea Heritage 

Tree Removals 

Impacting Phases 

1-5 

Phase #1 Exterior Renovation of 3 

Residential Buildings/New 

Construction of Leasing Office 

Includes Landscape 

Amenities  

8 ea Heritage 

Tree Removal 

Phase #2 Exterior Renovation of 4 Buildings Includes Landscape 

Amenities 

8 ea Heritage 

Tree Removal 

Phase #3 Exterior Renovation of  3 

Residential Buildings/Reconstruct 

Clubhouse Building in current 

location 

Includes Landscape 

Amenities 

7 ea Heritage 

Tree Removal 



Phase #4 Exterior Renovation of  3 

Residential Buildings 

Includes Landscape 

Amenities 

2  ea Heritage 

Tree Removal 

Phase #5 Exterior Renovation of  4 

Residential Buildings 

Includes Landscape 

Amenities 

5  ea Heritage 

Tree Removal 

 

Site work 

The site work consists of installing the fire line for a complete fire sprinklers system, grading, 

plumbing, electrical and foundation work for the new leasing office and reconstruction of the 

clubhouse.  The installation of the fire line is expected to take an estimated 4-6 months to 

complete. The work will occur around the buildings and throughout the property. All Heritage Tree 

Ordinance, Building Code, Bay Area Air Quality Management and OSHA requirements will be in place 

prior to and during the course of construction. 

Exterior Buildings 

The renovation of the exterior building includes new roofs, new windows, new privacy patio and 

ornamental iron railings. The building envelope will include new stucco and Hardy Plank 

Siding.  During the exterior construction the new gas and plumbing line infrastructure will be installed 

for the washer and dryers and fire sprinkler system.  The exterior work will require the installation of 

lighted scaffolding around at each building and will remain until each individual building is complete.  

Each building is expected to take 4-6 months depending on the individual building type and the 

construction will run concurrently with at least three buildings under construction at one time. 

NOTE:  The feasibility of installing the new upgraded window replacements as a separate 

project before the exterior renovation starts has been reviewed.  The upgrades included a 

50/50 blend of retrofit and nail in windows.  Where the nail in windows occurs there is a flange 

that would require the stucco and siding work to be completed while the windows are being 

replaced.  Replacing the windows at the time of the building exterior improvements is the 

most reasonable and best practice for completing the upgrades. 

Unit Interior Upgrades 

The unit interior upgrades include new cabinets, quartz countertops, stainless steel appliances, 

plumbing and electrical fixtures and new flooring throughout.  The work also includes the final tie in 

for the washer/dryer hook ups, fire sprinkler systems and gas line for the new appliances.  The unit 

upgrade work will take place when the apartment home is vacant and expected to take about 20-25 

work days to complete the upgrades. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
BRE Properties, Inc. 
 
 
 
Frances C. Ouellette 
Sr. Director, Reinvestments/Capital Improvements 
 
Cc:  Bob Linder Director Sr. Director Real Estate Investments 
 



Begin forwarded message: 

From: Gino Gasparini <ggasparini@recology.com> 
Date: November 19, 2013 at 5:14:35 PM PST 
To: "'mwiford@Breproperties.com'" <mwiford@Breproperties.com> 
Cc: "'afitzwater@cassinfo.com'" <afitzwater@cassinfo.com>, Yvette Madera <ymadera@recology.com> 
Subject: Sharon Green Recology San Mateo County Collection Services 

Good afternoon Michael—Per our phone conversation regarding the Sharon Green/BRE Properties 
location in Menlo Park and our Recology San Mateo County recycling and waste services, I have included 
my comments/directions pertaining to the realities of the service situation at the complex.  
  
As I mentioned to you, at one time (in my much younger days) I worked on the collection vehicles and 
we/I did service the Sharon Green complex in much the same way.  It was three times a week service (as 
it is now, M/W/F).  Our trucks stayed on the streets as the collection containers were brought out to the 
street area.  This is not unusual in many “older” Multi-Family/Apartment/Condo developments where 
there is no truck access to the containers and/or limited space/height to dump the containers.  There 
are also current developments being built (as we speak) in Redwood City that fall within the guidelines 
of the Redwood City Downtown Precise Plan that require the containers to be brought out to an area for 
dumping that is not unlike Sharon Green.    
  
With that said, we would be happy to work with BRE regarding your redevelopment of the site and to 
discuss and be a part of the design that has an “on site/property location” to stage the dumpsters and 
keep them off the streets. 
  
In the meantime, we can look at exchanging the recycling bins/containers for larger containers.  By 
doing this, we may be able to cut down on the service days which means less bins on the streets and we 
can certainly look at the possibility of doing this with the waste bins/containers as well.  Also, and on the 
service days, I would like to investigate if we can “tighten up” the service times so that the containers 
are only on the streets for no more than an hour—of course this would take coordination with your 
team at the Sharon Green Complex.  As an example, if your team can get the carts out (and only out) by 
9AM on the service days, we would have them all dumped by 10AM and ready to get them off the 
streets.  
  
Looking forward to working with you and if you have any further questions or concerns, please do not 
hesitate to contact me. 
  
All the best—Gino 
  
Gino Gasparini 
Public Affairs Manager 
  
Recology San Mateo County 
225 Shoreway Road | San Carlos,  CA 94070 
T: 650.598.8254 | M: 650-333-5915 | ggasparini@recology.com 
(a Recology™ company) 
  
WASTE ZERO 
  

mailto:ggasparini@recology.com
mailto:mwiford@Breproperties.com
mailto:mwiford@Breproperties.com
mailto:afitzwater@cassinfo.com
mailto:afitzwater@cassinfo.com
mailto:ymadera@recology.com
mailto:ggasparini@recology.com


A cleaner, greener environment...one stop at a time.  
  
 





vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT G

vmalathong
Typewritten Text







































































































































































Sharon Green Rec Center Pool 

Shade Study – Existing Conditions 
January 2014 

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT H

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



2:05 PM 



2:15 PM 



2:30 PM 



2:45 



3:00 PM 



3:15 PM 



3:30 PM 



3:45 PM 



4:00 PM 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

  

 

 

 

 

465 CALIFORNIA STREET 

SUITE 1200   

SAN FRANCISCO, CA  94104    

Phone: (415) 677-0966   

FAX : (415) 677-0964 

 

 

EDWARD G. DETMER, A.I.A. ARCHITECT 

JONATHAN ENNIS, A.I.A. ARCHITECT 

 

Project Description 
Updated February 4, 2014 

 
 

 
 
BRE’s Sharon Green Apartments is an existing multi-family project in Menlo Park that is 
comprised of seventeen (17) two and three-story buildings on a 15 acre site. The renovations 
being proposed are intended to update and preserve our community by modernizing the 
residential buildings, landscaping and community open space. Our proposal also includes the 
construction of a new 2,069 square foot leasing office and replacement of our clubhouse and 
fitness center.  
 
The new Leasing Office will create a welcoming gesture to future residents, while the new 
community amenities provide a modern clubhouse/fitness center and a variety of redesigned 
outdoor spaces for residents to enjoy.  Updating the exterior building materials and landscaping 
improves the aesthetics of our property, while other improvements, such as the addition of fire 
sprinklers, laundry rooms and new windows, improve the safety and quality of the apartments.  
Minor renovations and repairs have occurred over the past 40 years, but the proposed project is 
intended to provide a comprehensive upgrade necessary to extend the life of the community. 
 
We understand that any change to the Sharon Green Apartments can be seen as a disruption to 
current residents and a real concern for the surrounding community.  BRE sent letters to the 
community in July of this year informing them that an application was filed with the City for the 
proposed improvements.  BRE also sent emails in early October to individuals that sent 
comments to the City. That effort resulted in a meeting at the site on October 29, 2013.  We 
encourage people to stay in contact with BRE during this process should they have additional 
questions or comments. BRE also tagged all of the trees with color coded ribbons prior to the 
EQC hearing but they were removed by the next day by unknown individuals. We tagged trees 
again on February 3 for the Planning Commission to view before the hearing on February 10th.  
 
Furthermore, BRE will schedule a Town Hall meeting with our residents to outline the 
construction schedule and development plans upon project approval and at least 3 months prior 
to any work occurring at the site.  
 
The proposed scope of work is outlined in greater detail below: 
 

1.  Provide Fire Sprinklers to the all existing and new buildings: 

 
 Provide new underground fire water mains throughout the site to supply new fire sprinkler 

systems   
 Automatic sprinkler protection will be added to all new buildings and provided for two new 

buildings, the Leasing Office and Recreation Center 
 Fire alarm systems will be extended or replaced as necessary to account for new 

initiating devices (water flow alarms) and valve supervisory devices 
 
 
 

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT I

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



 

  

 

 

 

 

465 CALIFORNIA STREET 

SUITE 1200   

SAN FRANCISCO, CA  94104    

Phone: (415) 677-0966   

FAX : (415) 677-0964 

 

 

EDWARD G. DETMER, A.I.A. ARCHITECT 

JONATHAN ENNIS, A.I.A. ARCHITECT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  2.  Modify and add landscaping throughout the site: 

 
 Reduced the total number of Heritage Tree removals from 62 to 42: 

 11 Heritage Trees to be removed for construction reasons – fire loop and 
building construction/renovation 

 31 removed due to health concerns 
 23 re-designated for preservation since Planning Commission hearing 

o We are planting 159 replacement trees which represents a 3.7:1 ratio where 1:1 
is the required mitigation ratio per the City’s Heritage Tree Ordinance 

o Additionally, we are planting a total of 239 new trees for the site which is 80 trees 
above the 159 Heritage replacements 

o Majority of the proposed trees are similar types to existing trees, both heritage 
and non-heritage and we will look to include as many drought tolerant species as 
feasible 

o All of the proposed trees are 24” box or larger including large box specimen trees 
for the landscape areas adjacent to leasing office along the “public edge” of the 
project 

o All proposed trees can reach 30 feet or more at maturity based on documented 
standards for their size/growth habits 

 Upgrade the existing irrigation system 
 Improve and introduce exterior common areas such as an outdoor fireplace, outdoor 

seating, BBQ areas, a bocce ball court, tot-lot and a dog run area 
 Enhance the presence of landscape along the edge of property with new planting 

materials 
 
 
3. Renovate the exterior of all existing buildings:  
 

 Update building exteriors with smooth, skim coat plaster and horizontal fiber cement 
siding, as indicated in the elevations 

 Replace existing wood deck railings with new metal railings 
 Update decks with new waterproofing membrane 
 Replace privacy fences on the first floor units with new, painted, wood grain Trex or cedar 

fences 
 Remove window sash and insert replacement windows into existing openings 
 Update the roof with parapet walls and dormers as shown in the roof plans and 

elevations 
 Replace the roof with new 30-year asphalt shingle roofing 
 Replace roofing and gates on all existing trash and meter rooms 

 
 
 
 



 

  

 

 

 

 

465 CALIFORNIA STREET 

SUITE 1200   

SAN FRANCISCO, CA  94104    

Phone: (415) 677-0966   

FAX : (415) 677-0964 

 

 

EDWARD G. DETMER, A.I.A. ARCHITECT 

JONATHAN ENNIS, A.I.A. ARCHITECT 

 

4.   Modify units to include exterior laundry closets: 
 

 Renovate exterior closets on decks to provide laundry services 
 Enlarge exterior closets on first floor patios to provide laundry services 
 Modify sewer connections to units to provide laundry services 

5.   Renovate unit interiors: 
 

 Update finishes, new cabinetry and appliances 
 Rewire kitchens and add electrical panels, as required to meet code 

6.   Build new Leasing Office and replace the Club House/Fitness Center: 
 

 Construct a new Leasing Office, and accompanying parking lot, along Sharon Park Drive 
 Demolish existing Leasing Office, Club and Fitness areas after the new Leasing Office is 

constructed.  The new Recreation Center will include a fitness area, a clubhouse and an 
exterior gathering area 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
Frances Ouellette        December 5, 2013 
Senior Director, Capital and Renovations    
BRE Properties, Inc.        
5141 California Avenue, Suite 250 
Irvine, CA 92617 
 

RE: Sharon Green Apartments, 350 Sharon Park Drive 
 
 
Assignment 
 
It was requested that Arborwell re-evaluate the 62 proposed heritage trees that were 
recommended for removal on the Tree Inventory report dated October 30, 2013.   
 
The purpose of this re-evaluation is:  
 

 Identify trees that could potentially be considered for preservation.  

 Propose mitigation techniques to lessen associated risks with their retention.   

 Provide further information for trees that must be removed.  

 Evaluate proposed fire line installation plan and its relationship to existing trees on site. 
 

Background 
 
In the Tree Inventory report dated 10/30/13, 464 trees were assessed and reported on.  As is 
stated above, 62 Heritage trees were recommended for removal.  Of this number, 12 removals 
were classified as such due to proposed development and the remaining 50 were 
recommended due to health, structural, or location (proximity to structures) concerns.  Of this 
group of 50, the majority of these trees are Monterey pine, Eucalyptus (various species) and 
Acacia.  The inherent problems with these types of trees are well documented. 
 
Thus, these 50 trees were recommended for removal for one or more of the following reasons: 
1) Poor health: meaning the trees health was poor enough to call into question its viability and 
or it safety.  2)  Poor structure: meaning the limbs and or leaders in the tree are poorly attached 
and pose a significant risk to structures and or pedestrians.  Or 3) poor location, meaning the 
trees close proximity to a structure is actively causing damage or poses a significant risk to do 
damage to the structure to which it is adjacent. 
 
 

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT J

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

An Arborist representing the City of Menlo Park, Mr. Walt Fujii of Fujii Tree Consulting,   
produced a peer review document dated 10/9/13 of Arborwell’s earlier Tree Inventory report 
dated 9/4/13 and supported all 62 heritage removals.  In addition he recommended that an 
additional 12 heritage trees be removed. 
 

 
Trees that may be considered for preservation 
 
All trees listed in this section were recommended for removal.  These conclusions were 
supported by the City Arborist.  At BRE’s request, these heritage tree removals have been re-
examined and 23 trees have been identified as having the potential to be preserved if proper 
mitigation is performed.  The 23 trees are as follows: 8, 74, 97, 124, 165, 166, 192, 193, 205, 
299, 324, 325, 342 – 344, 355, 406 – 409, 439 – 441.  These trees are individually discussed 
below. 
 
Please note that in some cases the required mitigation techniques may be detrimental to the 
health of the tree.  For example, in most cases the trees are noted for their poor structure 
which poses a danger of limb failure.  The necessary mitigation in this case would include 
pruning the tree significantly to reduce risk to a satisfactory level.  The required pruning may be 
such that it strains the health of the subject tree. 
 
Tree #8 Monterey pine – 24” dbh building F.  Comments:  Representatives of BRE would like to 
preserve this tree.  Because of its lean, and its potential for failure, this is not recommended.  
Mitigation:  If this tree is retained, significantly reduce branch end-weight (side closest to the 
street) through pruning and monitor. 
 
Tree #74 Red gum – 20”dbh building N.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but limbs are poorly 
attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-weight 
through pruning and monitor. 
 
Tree #97 Red Gum – 25” dbh building N. Comments:  Tree is in good health, but limbs are poorly 
attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-weight 
through pruning and monitor. 
 
Tree #124 Red Iron Bark – 29” dbh building  A.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but limbs are 
poorly attached with included bark and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly 
reduce branch end-weight through pruning and monitor. 
 
Tree #165 Monterey pine – 39” dbh building F.  Comments:  Tree is in fair health, but limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-
weight through pruning, remove large limb over Eastridge Avenue and monitor.  Please note 



 

 
 
 

 

that the extent of pruning required to reduce the risk of failure, may negatively impact the 
tree’s health. 
 
Tree #166 Monterey pine – 36” dbh building F.  Comments:  Tree is in fair health, but limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  This tree has two main leaders with significant 
bark inclusion.  Meaning that there is a risk that one or both of these leaders could fail 
potentially impacting pedestrians, building F and the parking structure.  Mitigation:  
Significantly reduce branch end-weight through pruning, install cable and monitor.  Please note 
that the extent of pruning required to reduce the risk of failure, may negatively impact the 
tree’s health. 
 
Tree #192 Monterey pine – 32” dbh building G.  Comments:  Tree is in poor health, limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure. Root system is lifting side walk. Mitigation:  
Significantly reduce branch end-weight through pruning and monitor.  Please note that the 
extent of pruning required to reduce the risk of failure, may negatively impact the tree’s health. 
 
Tree #193 Monterey pine – 34” dbh building G.  Comments:  Tree is in poor health, limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Root system is lifting side walk.  Mitigation:   
Significantly reduce branch end-weight through pruning and monitor.  Please note that the 
extent of pruning required to reduce the risk of failure, may negatively impact the tree’s health. 
 
Tree #205 Red Ironbark – 18” dbh building H.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, however limbs 
are poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-
weight through pruning and monitor.   
 
Tree #299 Monterey pine – 35” dbh building N & parking structure.  Comments:  Tree is in fair 
health, but limbs are poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Root system is lifting side 
walk.  Also, tree has a significant lean to the West.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-
weight through pruning, take additional weight off of West side of canopy and monitor.  Please 
note that the extent of pruning required to reduce the risk of failure, may negatively impact the 
tree’s health. 
 
Tree #324 Silver dollar eucalyptus – 20“dbh building S.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but 
limbs are poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce 
branch end-weight through pruning and monitor. 
 
Tree #325 Silver dollar eucalyptus – 22“dbh building S.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but 
limbs are poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce 
branch end-weight through pruning and monitor. 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
Tree #342 Monterey pine – 42” dbh building Q.  Comments:  Tree is in fair health, but limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Falling pine cones are a risk in pool area.  Root 
system is lifting side walk.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-weight and spread of 
canopy through pruning and monitor.  Please note that the extent of pruning required to 
reduce the risk of failure, may negatively impact the tree’s health. 
 
Tree #343 Monterey pine – 27” dbh building S.  Comments:  Tree is in fair health, but limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Root system is lifting side walk.  Mitigation:  
Significantly reduce branch end-weight through pruning and monitor.  Please note that the 
extent of pruning required to reduce the risk of failure, may negatively impact the tree’s health. 
 
Tree #344 Monterey pine – 27” dbh building S.  Comments:  Tree is in fair health, but limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Root system is lifting side walk.  Mitigation:  
Significantly reduce branch end-weight through pruning and monitor.  Please note that the 
extent of pruning required to reduce the risk of failure, may negatively impact the tree’s health. 
 
Tree #355 Shamel ash – 17” dbh building S.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-
weight through pruning and monitor.   
 
Tree #406 Silver dollar eucalyptus – 20” dbh building E.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but 
limbs are poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce 
branch end-weight through pruning and monitor.   
 
Tree #407 Silver dollar eucalyptus – 16” dbh building E.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but 
limbs are poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce 
branch end-weight through pruning and monitor.   
 
Tree #408 Silver dollar eucalyptus – 22” dbh building E.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but 
limbs are poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce 
branch end-weight through pruning and monitor.   
 
Tree #409 Silver dollar eucalyptus – 17” dbh building E.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but 
limbs are poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce 
branch end-weight through pruning and monitor.   
 
Tree #439 Cottonwood – 23” dbh building D.  Comments:  Tree is in fair health, but limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-
weight through pruning and monitor.   
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
Tree #440 Cottonwood – 26” dbh building D.  Comments:  Tree is in fair health, but limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-
weight through pruning and monitor.   
 
Tree #441 Cottonwood – 23” dbh building D.  Comments:  Tree is in fair health, but limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Mitigation:  Significantly reduce branch end-
weight through pruning and monitor.   
 

 
Trees recommended for removal 
 
Tree # 33 - 36 Monterey pine –  Average 24.5” dbh building I. Comments: These trees are 
grouped close to each other and the building.  The health of these trees is poor as is exhibited 
by their thin canopies.  Trees 34 & 36 have a significant lean over building I.  Trees 33 & 35 lean 
towards Sharon Road.  Each of these trees represents a risk to residents and pedestrians.  Due 
to the fact that these trees are clustered together these trees and their canopies have grown 
somewhat reliant on each other.  Therefore it is advisable that they are all removed at the same 
time.  No amount of mitigation can reduce the risk that these trees represent. 
 
Tree # 47 Evergreen pear –  20” dbh building L. Comments: Tree has significant lean due to 
overcrowding, structure is fair but will never develop correctly due to close proximity to 
building and other trees. 
 
Tree # 48 Evergreen pear –  15” dbh building L. Comments: Tree has significant lean due to 
overcrowding, structure is fair but will never develop correctly due to close proximity to 
building and other trees. 
 
Tree # 75 Red gum – 15”dbh building N.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, but the structure of 
this tree is very poor, imbalanced and weighted towards the building, limbs are poorly attached 
and pose a risk of limb failure.  Its close proximity to the building makes preservation 
impractical. 
 
Tree #’s 87 & 88 Monterey pine – 42” dbh building L.  Comments: These very large trees are 
located between buildings M and L.  The root systems are exerting pressure on the foundation 
of building M and a retaining associated with building L.  These canopies have long and 
dangerously heavy branches that extend over the roof line that pose a risk to residents.  Due to 
the close proximity to the structures, mitigating these risks is not possible. 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
Tree # 90 Tulip – 22” dbh building N.  Comments:  Health of this tree is very poor.  Branches are 
weakly attached with included bark.  The trunk has significant decay and the tree is at high risk 
of failure.   
 
Tree # 95 Monterey pine – Average 30.5” dbh building P.  Comments:  This very large tree is 
located between buildings P and N.  The root system is exerting pressure on the foundation of 
both buildings.  The canopy has long and dangerously heavy branches that extend over the roof 
line that pose a risk to residents.  Due to the close proximity to the structures, mitigating these 
risks is not possible. 
 
Tree #177 Monterey pine – 30”dbh building F.  Comments: Base of tree is in contact with the 
building.  Tree is still actively growing and serious damage to structure is likely.  Additionally, 
the canopy is very heavy over the structure and the walkway.  Due to the close proximity to the 
structures, mitigating these risks is not possible. 
 
Tree #206 Red Ironbark – 19” dbh building H.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, however, it is 
located very close to the structure and root system is actively lifting adjacent patio.  Limbs are 
poorly attached and pose a risk of limb failure.  Due to the close proximity to the structures, 
mitigating these risks is not possible. 
 
Tree #’s 294 & 295 Acacia – Average 19” dbh building T.  Comments:  Trees have extremely 
poor structure.  Both trees have had multiple limb failures in the past and future limb failure is 
likely.  They are located in a tight space between building T and the parking structure.  The 
canopies are currently growing over both the building and the parking garage.  The potential of 
limb failure combined with many potential targets (cars & residents) makes preservation of 
these trees impractical. 
 
Tree # 296 & 297 Red flowering gum – Average 19” dbh building T.  Comments:  Trees have 
extremely poor structure.  They are located in a tight space between building T and the parking 
structure.  The canopies are currently growing over both the building and the parking garage.  
The potential of limb failure combined with many potential targets (cars & residents) makes 
preservation of these trees impractical. 
 
Tree # 298 Monterey pine – 28”dbh building T.  Comments:  Tree has significant lean over 
parking structure and poses a significant risk of failure.  Due to the close proximity to the 
parking structure and the nature of its lean, mitigating these risks is not possible.  The potential 
of limb failure combined with many potential targets (cars & residents) makes preservation of 
this tree impractical. 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 

 
Tree #’s 350 – 354 Shamel ash – Average 20” dbh building R.  Comments: This group of 5 trees is 
located between building R and the walk way.  The collective root systems of these trees are 
exerting pressure on the walkways as well as the foundation of the building.  These trees are 
still actively growing and will do further damage.  Additionally, the canopies have weak branch 
attachments and long heavy limbs that extend over the roof line.  Due to the close proximity to 
the structures, mitigating the risks in these trees is not possible. 
 
Tree # 356 Monterey pine – 35” dbh building S.  Comments:  This tree is much too large for its 
location and is in poor health.  Canopy has many long heavy branches extending over the tennis 
court and building S.  The risk of failure of these limbs poses a significant threat to pedestrians 
and those that utilize the court.  Root system is heaving the side walk and is near utilities that 
could also be damaged. 
 
Tree # 373 Silver dollar eucalyptus – 16” dbh building T.  Comments:  Tree is located close to 
building and is structured very poorly.  Due to topping many years ago, the resulting re-growth 
is poorly attached as is at risk of failure.  No amount of mitigation pruning can fix these defects.   
 
Tree # 402 Red Ironbark – 24” dbh building B.  Comments:  Tree is in good health, however, it is 
located very close to the structure and is exerting pressure on the foundation.  Limbs are poorly 
attached and pose a risk of limb failure both over the building and over the pedestrian area.  
Due to the close proximity to the structures, mitigating these risks is not possible. 
 
Tree # 405 Silver dollar eucalyptus – 32” dbh building E.  Comments:  Tree is much too large for 
its location.  Canopy is comprised of 3 main leaders all of which are appear to be very heavy and 
poorly attached. These leaders (or trunks) extend over the building and the pedestrian area.  
Due to the close proximity to the structure, mitigating these risks through pruning is not 
possible. 
 
Tree # 411 Red ironbark – 27” dbh building C.  Comments:  Tree is much too large for its 
location between buildings C and D and is very close to the structure.  The canopy has 4 main 
leaders some of which are poorly attached and extend over the roof line of the adjacent 
structures.   Additionally, many years ago the tree was topped and the resulting regrowth is 
also poorly attached and at risk of failure.  Due to the close proximity to the structure, 
mitigating these risks through pruning is not possible. 
 
Tree # 412 Red ironbark – 31” dbh building C and laundry.  Comments:  The structure of this 
tree is very poor in part due to the nature of the species and due to the fact that years ago the  
tree was topped and the resulting regrowth is poorly attached and poses a risk of failure.  
Despite a regular maintenance program, this tree has had multiple limb failures in the past 5 
years. 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
Tree #417 Silver dollar eucalyptus – 17” dbh building B.  Comments:  Tree has very poor 
structure and an imbalanced canopy.  Additionally, it is located too close to the building. 
 
Tree # 450 Monterey pine – 26” dbh building C.  Comments: This tree is located between 
building C and the parking garage.  It has two main leaders that are attached at approximately 
3’ above grade.  This branch attachment is severely included.  With this condition, the leader 
that is growing over the parking garage is at significant risk of failure. 
 
 

 
Construction removals 
 
Tree #’s 91 – 94, 96, 98, 99, 246 are listed as construction removals. 

 
 
Additional construction removals for fire line installation 
 
A site review of the proposed fire line was done.  During this process 3 additional heritage trees 
were identified as needing to be removed to allow for its installation.  Listed below are 
comments on each tree. 
 
Tree # 315 Blue oak – 27” dbh building L.  Comments:  Though the original tree inventory 
recommended removal, BRE representatives desired to preserve this tree because of it being an 
Oak.  However, the original comments show that the tree is in poor condition showing signs of 
trunk and limb decay and is located against the parking structure.  Additionally, it is now 
apparent that it will be adversely affected by the installation of the fire line.  Thus, it is 
recommended for removal. 
 
Tree # 317 Sycamore – 15” dbh building L.  Comments:  Though the health of this tree is good, 
the City Arborist’s representative noted extensive trunk decay and encouraged this tree to be 
re-considered for removal.   
 
Tree # 122 Monterey pine – 30” dbh near the tennis court.  Tree is in good health, however it 
does have a significant lean towards the street.  Tree is located approximately 3’ from the 
sidewalk.  The plans for the fire line show the installation trench running between the side walk 
and the tree.  Meaning that large roots will be impacted causing the tree to potentially become 
a hazard. 
 

 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
Conclusion 
 
Sharon Green has many mature trees that truly add value to the community of Menlo Park.  
Unfortunately, there are also a number of large trees that were unwisely planted too close 
buildings many years ago that now are causing significant problems to the community and are 
threatening the safety of its residents.  One of the fundamental principles of arboriculture is 
having the right tree in the right location.   Moving forward with the proposed removals and 
their replacements will help this site to have many more trees that are placed in such a way so 
that the community can truly benefit from them. 
   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Jonathan Cardenas 
Certified Arborist WC #4333A 
925-260-3186 



WW

W
W

W

IR

IR

W

W

W

Symbol Description Quantity

Existing Heritage Trees Re-designated for
Preservation Since Planning Commission Meeting
10-4-2013

Existing Heritage Trees to be Removed due
to health and / or structural concerns

Existing Heritage Trees to be Removed per
Construction

Menlo Park, CA
January 16, 2014

SCALE: 1" = 30'

0 30'10' 20'5' 60' 120'

11

31

Total Heritage Trees to be Removed

23

42



 

 
 

City of Menlo Park        December 10, 2013 
Engineering Division 
701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 

Tree Protection Measures for Sharon Green Apartments 
 
The objective of this report is to reduce the negative impacts of construction on trees to 
a less-than-significant level. Trees vary in their ability to adapt to altered growing conditions, 
while mature trees have established stable biological systems in the preexisting physical 
environment. Disruption of this environment by construction activities interrupts the tree’s 
physiological processes, causing depletion of energy reserves and a decline in vigor. This 
sometimes can result in death. Typically, this reaction may develop several years or more after 
disruption. 
 
The tree protection regulations are intended to guide a construction project to ensure that 
appropriate practices will be implemented in the field to eliminate undesirable consequences 
that may result from uninformed or careless acts, and preserve both trees and property values. 
 
The following are required to be implemented along with the Tree Protection Plan (TPP): 
 

1) The project arborist or contractor shall verify, in writing, that all preconstruction 
conditions have been met (tree fencing, erosion control, pruning, etc.) 

2) The demolition, grading and underground contractors, construction superintendent and 
other pertinent personnel are required to meet with the project arborist at the site prior 
to beginning work to review procedures, tree protection measures and to establish haul 
routes, staging, areas, contacts, watering, etc. 

3) Fenced enclosures shall be erected around trees to be protected to achieve three 
primary goals: 

a) To keep the foliage crowns and branching structure of the trees to be preserved 
clear from contact by equipment, materials and activities; 

b) Preserve roots intact and maintain proper soil conditions in a non-compacted state; 
c) To identify the tree protection zone (TPZ) in which no soil disturbance is permitted 

and activities are restricted. 
 
 

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT K

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



 

 
 

Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) 
 
Each tree to be preserved shall have a designated TPZ identifying the area sufficiently large 
enough to protect the tree and roots from disturbance. The recommended TPZ area can be 
determined by the canopy footprint. The TPZ shall be shown on all site plans for the project. 
Improvements or activities such as landscape enhancements, paving, utility and irrigation 
trenching and other ancillary activities shall occur outside the TPZ, unless authorized by the 
project arborist. Unless otherwise specified, the protective fencing shall serve as the TPZ 
boundaries. 
 
Activities prohibited within the TPZ include: 
• Storage or parking of vehicles, building materials, refuse, excavated spoils or dumping of 

poisonous materials on or around trees and roots. Poisonous materials include, but are not 
limited to, paint, petroleum products, concrete or stucco mix, dirty water or any other 
material which may be deleterious to tree health. 

• Lighting of fires under or near the tree. 
• The use of tree trunks as a winch support, anchorage, as a temporary power pole, sign posts 

or other similar function. 
• Cutting of tree roots by utility trenching, foundation digging, placement of curbs and 

trenches and other miscellaneous excavation without prior approval of the project arborist. 
• Soil disturbance or grade/drainage changes. 

 
Activities permitted or required within the TPZ include: 
• Mulching: During construction, wood chips shall be spread within the TPZ to a six (6) inch 

depth, clear of the trunk by twelve (12) inches to avoid inadvertent compaction and 
moisture loss from occurring. The mulch may be removed if improvements or other 
landscaping is required. Mulch material shall be two (2) inch unpainted, untreated wood 
chip mulch or approved equal. 

• Root Buffer: When areas under the tree canopy cannot be fenced, a temporary buffer is 
required and shall cover the root zone and remain in place at the specified thickness until 
final grading stage. 

• Irrigation, aeration, fertilizing or other beneficial practices that have been specifically 
approved for use within the TPZ. 

• As stated in the Menlo Park Tree Protection Specifications document: “Where the City 
Arborist or Project Arborist has determined that tree protection fencing will interfere with 
the safety of work crews, Tree Wrap may be used as an alternative form of tree protection. 
Wooden slats at least one inch thick are to be bound securely, edge to edge, around the 
trunk. A single layer or more of orange plastic construction fencing is to be wrapped and 
secured around the outside of the wooden slats. Major scaffold limbs may require 
protection as determined by the City Arborist or Project Arborist. Straw waddle may also be 
used as a trunk wrap by coiling the waddle around the trunk up to a minimum height of six 



 

 

 
 

feet from grade. A single layer or more of orange plastic construction fencing is to be 
wrapped and secured around the straw waddle.” 
 

Size and type of fence 
 
All trees to be preserved shall be protected with six (6) foot high chain link fences installed 
around the dripline of the tree. The fences may be moved to a distance of no less than two (2) 
feet from the trunk of any tree, if approved by the project or city arborist. Fences are to be 
mounted on one and a half (1.5) inch diameter galvanized iron posts, driven into the ground to 
a depth of at least two (2) feet at no more than ten (10) foot spacing. This detail shall appear on 
grading, demolition and improvement plans. 
 
 
 
Type of Tree Protection for Project 
  
Type I Tree Protection: The fences shall enclose the entire area under the canopy dripline or 
tree protection zone (TPZ) of the tree(s) to be saved throughout the life of the project, or until 
final improvement work within the area is required, typically near the end of the project.  
 
Parking Areas: If the fencing must be located on paving or sidewalk that will not be demolished, 
the posts may be supported by an appropriate grade level concrete base. 
 
Duration of Tree Protection Fencing:  Tree fencing shall be erected prior to demolition, grading 
or construction and remain in place until final inspection. 
 
“Warning” Signage 
A warning sign of a minimum of 8.5x11 inches shall be prominently displayed on each fence. 
The sign shall clearly state:  “WARNING - Tree Protection Zone - This fence shall not be removed 
and is subject to penalty.” 
 
 



 

 
 

Pruning, Surgery and Removal 
 
Prior to construction, trees may require that branches be pruned clear from structures, 
activities, building encroachment or may need to be strengthened by means of mechanical 
support (cabling) or surgery. Such pruning, surgery or the removal of trees shall adhere to the 
following standards: 
 

1) Pruning limitations: 
• Minimum Pruning: If the project arborist recommends that trees be pruned, and the 

type of pruning is left unspecified, the standard pruning shall consist of ‘crown 
cleaning’ as defined by ISA Pruning Guidelines. Trees shall be pruned to reduce 
hazards and develop a strong, safe framework. 

• Maximum Pruning: Maximum pruning should only occur in the rarest situation 
approved by the project arborist. No more than one-fourth (1/4) of the functioning 
leaf and stem area may be removed within one (1) calendar year of any tree, or 
removal of foliage so as to cause the unbalancing of the tree. It must be recognized 
that trees are individual in form and structure, and that pruning needs may not 
always fit strict rules. The project arborist shall assume all responsibility for special 
pruning practices that vary from the standards outlined in this TPP. 

• Tree Workers: Pruning shall not be attempted by construction or contractor 
personnel, but shall be performed by a qualified tree care specialist or certified tree 
worker. 

 
 



 

 
 

Activities During Construction and Demolition Near Trees 
 
Soil disturbance or other injurious and detrimental activity within the TPZ is prohibited unless 
approved by the project arborist. If an injurious event inadvertently occurs, or soil disturbance 
has been specifically conditioned for project approval, then the following mitigation is required:  
 

• Soil Compaction: If compaction of the soil occurs, it shall be mitigated by using the 
following methods: 
• Air spading to loosen up compacted soil, without disturbing the roots themselves, 

and incorporating organic matter to improve the soil structure.  
• Mulching: During construction, wood chips shall be spread within the TPZ to a six (6) 

inch depth, clear of the trunk by twelve (12) inches to avoid inadvertent compaction 
and moisture loss from occurring. The mulch may be removed if improvements or 
other landscaping is required. Mulch material shall be two (2) inch unpainted, 
untreated wood chip mulch or approved equal. 

• Root Buffer: When areas under the tree canopy cannot be fenced, a temporary 
buffer is required and shall cover the root zone and remain in place at the specified 
thickness until final grading stage. 

 
• Grading Limitations within the Tree Protection Zone: 

• Grade changes outside of the TPZ shall not significantly alter drainage to the tree. 
• Grade changes within the TPZ are not permitted. 
• Grade changes under specifically approved circumstances: the Project Arborist shall 

not allow more than six (6) inches of fill soil added or allow more than four (4) inches 
of existing soil to be removed from natural grade unless mitigated. 

 



 

 
 

Trenching, Excavation and Equipment Use 
Avoid placing of underground utilities within the drip line of any tree. When utilities are run 
through the root zone of a tree, horizontal coring should be used instead of trenching. If it is 
not possible to use horizontal coring, the onsite certified arborist should be contacted before 
trenching begins. Excavation or boring activity within the TPZ is restricted to the following 
activities, conditions and requirements if approved by the project arborist: 
 

• Notification: Contractor shall notify the project arborist a minimum of twenty-four (24) 
hours in advance of the activity in the TPZ. 

• Root Severance: Roots that are encountered shall be cut to sound wood and repaired. 
Roots two (2) inches and greater must remain injury free. 

• Excavation: Any approved excavation, demolition or extraction of material shall be 
performed with equipment sitting outside the TPZ. Methods permitted are by hand 
digging, hydraulic or pneumatic air excavation technology. Avoid excavation within the 
TPZ during hot, dry weather. 

a) If excavation or trenching for drainage, utilities, irrigation lines, etc., it is the duty 
of the contractor to tunnel under any roots two (2) inches in diameter and 
greater. 

b) Prior to excavation for foundation/footings/walls, grading or trenching within 
the TPZ, roots shall first be severed cleanly one (1) foot outside the TPZ and to 
the depth of the future excavation. The trench must then be hand dug and roots 
pruned with a saw, sawzall, narrow trencher with sharp blades or other 
approved root pruning equipment. 
 

• Heavy Equipment: Use of backhoes, steel tread tractors or any heavy vehicles within the 
TPZ is prohibited. 



 

 
 

Root Severance 
 
Cutting and removal of roots smaller than two (2) inches in diameter shall be done by chain saw 
or hand saw to provide a flat and smooth cut and cause the least damage possible to the root 
and tree's health. Cutting roots by means of tractor-type equipment or other than chain saws 
and hand saws is prohibited. The Project Arborist is to perform or supervise the cutting of 
damaged roots two inches or greater in diameter. 
 
Proper pruning technique shall encourage callusing of the roots. Root cutting and removal shall 
not exceed thirty-five (35) percent of total root surface.  
 
The Contractor shall remove any wood chips or debris that may be left over from root removal 
that may affect the construction of improvements as directed by the Project Arborist. 
 
If any roots over two (2) inches in diameter are severed during any excavation, the following 
procedure shall be followed: 

1) The Contractor is to properly notify and schedule the Project Arborist to perform or 
supervise the cutting of any damaged roots two inches or greater in diameter.  As with 
any site visit, the Project Arborist is to submit a written report of his/her findings and 
results to the City Arborist. 

2) The roots shall be shaded by immediately covering the entire trench with plywood, or 
by covering the sides of the trench with burlap sheeting that is kept moist by watering 
twice per day. 

3) When ready to backfill, each root shall be severed cleanly with a handsaw. Where 
practical, they should be cut back to a side root. Immediately, a plastic bag shall be 
placed over the fresh cut, and secured with a rubber band or electrical tape. Shading 
should immediately be placed until backfilling occurs. 

4) Plastic bags shall be removed prior to backfilling. 
5) Backfill shall be clean, native material free of debris, gravel or wood chips. 

 
 
Irrigation Program  
 
Irrigate to wet the soil within the TPZ to a depth of twenty-four to thirty (24-30) inches at least 
once a month. Begin irrigating immediately prior to any construction activity. Alternatively, sub-
surface irrigation may be used at regular specified intervals by injecting on approximate three 
(3) foot centers, ten (10) gallons of water per inch trunk diameter within the TPZ. Duration shall 
be until project completion or monthly until seasonal rainfall totals at least eight (8) inches of 
rain, unless specified otherwise by the project arborist. 



 

 
 

Damage to Trees - Reporting 
 
Any damage or injury to trees shall be reported within six (6) hours to the project arborist so 
that mitigation can take place. All mechanical or chemical injury to branches, trunk or to roots 
over two (2) inches in diameter shall be reported in the monthly inspection report. The Project 
Arborist is to perform or supervise the cutting of damaged roots two inches or greater in 
diameter. In the event of injury, the following mitigation and damage control measures shall 
apply: 
 

• Root injury: If trenches are cut and tree roots two (2) inches or larger are encountered 
they must be cleanly cut back to a sound wood lateral root. The end of the root shall be 
covered with either a plastic bag and secured with tape or rubber band, or be coated 
with latex paint. All exposed root areas within the TPZ shall be backfilled or covered 
within one (1) hour. Exposed roots may be kept from drying out by temporarily covering 
the roots and draping layered burlap or carpeting over the upper three (3) feet of trench 
walls. The materials must be kept wet until backfilled to reduce evaporation from the 
trench walls. 

• Bark or trunk wounding: Current bark tracing and treatment methods shall be 
performed by a qualified tree care specialist within two (2) days. 

• Scaffold branch or leaf canopy injury: Remove broken or torn branches back to an 
appropriate branch capable of resuming terminal growth within five (5) days. If leaves 
are heat scorched from equipment exhaust pipes, consult the project arborist within six 
(6) hours. 

 



 

 
 

Inspection Schedule 
 
The project arborist retained by the applicant shall conduct the following required inspections 
of the construction site: 
 

• Inspections shall verify that the type of tree protection and/or plantings re consistent 
with the standards outlined within this TPP. For each required inspection or meeting, a 
written summary of the changing tree related conditions, actions taken, and condition 
of trees shall be provided to the contactor. 
• Inspection of Protective Tree Fencing. 
• Pre-Construction Meeting. Prior to commencement of construction, the contractor 

shall conduct a pre-construction meeting to discuss tree protection with the job site 
superintendent, grading equipment operators, and the project arborist. 

• Inspection of Rough Grading. The project arborist shall perform an inspection during 
the course of rough grading adjacent to the TPZ to ensure trees will not be injured 
by compaction, cut or fill, drainage and trenching, and if required, inspect aeration 
systems, tree wells, drains and special paving. The contractor shall provide the 
project arborist at least forty-eight (48) hours advance notice of such activity.  

• Monthly Inspections. The project arborist shall perform monthly inspections to 
monitor changing conditions and tree health. The City Arborist shall be in receipt of 
an inspection summary during the first week of each calendar month or, 
immediately if there are any changes to the approved plans or protection measures. 

• Any special activity within the Tree Protection Zone. Work in this area (TPZ) requires 
the direct on-site supervision of the project arborist. 

 



 

 
 

 
Trees Identified for Type 1 Tree Protection 
Listed by Phase, based on Phasing Plan Sheet A1.1 

 
Phase I 
 
76 Redwood
77 Redwood
78 Redwood
79 Redwood
80 Redwood
89 Tulip Tree
100 Tulip Tree
101 Tulip Tree
102 Tulip Tree
103 Valley Oak
104 Valley Oak
105 Redwood
106 Redwood
107 Redwood
108 Redwood
110 Redwood
111 Monterey Pine
112 White Oak
304 White Birch
305 White Birch
306 White Birch
307 White Birch
331 White Birch
332 White Birch
333 White Birch
337 Shamel Ash
338 Shamel Ash
339 Shamel Ash
340 Shamel Ash
341 Redwood   
 



 

 
 

Phase II 
 
116 Tulip Tree
120 Monterey Pine
248 Stone Pine
249 Stone Pine
250 Tulip Tree
251 Tulip Tree
252 Tulip Tree
253 Tulip Tree
322 White Birch
323 White Birch
326 White Birch
327 White Birch
328 White Birch
329 White Birch
330 White Birch
358 White Birch
365 White Oak
366 White Oak
367 White Birch  



 

 
 

Phase III 
 
37 Monterey Pine
38 Chinese Elm
50 Monterey Pine
59 Redwood
60 Redwood
61 Redwood
81 Redwood
255 Valley Oak (Large)
264 Monterey Pine
265 Sycamore
266 Sycamore
267 Sycamore
269 Sycamore
270 Sycamore
271 Sycamore
272 Sycamore
274 Sycamore
275 Sycamore
276 Sycamore
278 Redwood  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
279 Redwood
282 Redwood
284 Redwood
285 Sycamore
286 Sycamore
287 Sycamore
288 Sycamore
289 Sycamore
293 Sycamore
315 Valley Oak
316 Valley Oak
317 Sycamore
318 Sycamore
319 Sycamore
320 Sycamore
321 White Birch
462 Holly Oak
463 Valley Oak
464 Monterey Pine  
 



 

 
 

Phase IV 
 

 

1 Liquidambar
3 Liquidambar
8 Monterey Pine
9 Liquidambar
11 Liquidambar
13 Liquidambar
14 Liquidambar
15 Liquidambar
16 Liquidambar
17 Holly Oak
18 Liquidambar
19 Liquidambar
20 Liquidambar
21 Liquidambar
22 Liquidambar
23 Redwood
24 Redwood
26 Redwood
164 Holly Oak
165 Monterey Pine
166 Monterey Pine
170 Sycamore
171 Sycamore
172 Sycamore
173 Sycamore
174 Sycamore
175 Sycamore
179 Sycamore
180 Sycamore
181 Sycamore
182 Sycamore
183 Sycamore
184 Sycamore
185 Sycamore
194 Sycamore
195 Sycamore
196 Sycamore
197 Sycamore  

198 Sycamore
199 Sycamore
200 Sycamore
214 Sycamore
215 Sycamore
216 Sycamore
217 Sycamore
218 Sycamore
221 Chinese Elm
222 Chinese Elm
223 Chinese Elm
224 Chinese Elm
225 Sycamore
226 Sycamore
227 Sycamore
228 Sycamore
229 Sycamore
230 Sycamore
231 Sycamore
232 Sycamore
233 Valley Oak
234 Valley Oak
235 Valley Oak
237 Tulip Tree
238 Tulip Tree
239 Tulip Tree
256 Sycamore
257 Sycamore
258 Sycamore
259 Sycamore
260 Sycamore
261 Sycamore
262 Sycamore
263 Sycamore
377 Tulip Tree
378 Tulip Tree
379 Tulip Tree
449 Monterey Pine



 

 

Phase V 
 
125 Tulip Tree
126 Tulip Tree
127 Tulip Tree
137 Camphor
138 Redwood
139 Redwood
143 Redwood
144 Redwood
145 Redwood
146 Redwood
147 Redwood
148 Redwood
149 Redwood
150 Redwood
154 Redwood
155 Redwood
156 Redwood
157  Redwood
158 Monterey Pine
159 Monterey Pine
384 Redwood
385 Redwood
386 Redwood
387 Redwood
388 Redwood
389 Redwood
391 Monterey Pine
392 Sycamore
393 Sycamore
394 Sycamore
395 Sycamore  

396 Sycamore
397 Sycamore
398 Sycamore
399 Sycamore
400 Sycamore
419 Holly Oak
420 Coast Live Oak
421 Coast Live Oak
422 Monterey Pine
423 Monterey Pine
424 Monterey Pine
425 Sycamore
426 Sycamore
427 Sycamore
428 Sycamore
429 Sycamore
430 Sycamore
431 Sycamore
432 Sycamore
433 Sycamore
434 Sycamore
435 Sycamore
436 Sycamore
437 Sycamore
438 Sycamore
456 Sycamore
457 Sycamore
458 Sycamore
459 Sycamore
460 Monterey Pine
461 Laurel  



 

 

Assumptions and Limiting Conditions 
 
While trees vary in their tolerance to changed conditions, disruption in any form of the 
environment to which the trees have grown accustomed may result in adverse reaction. Human 
activity among and near trees is inherently contrary to tree welfare and there are inherent risks 
associated. The following are limitations to this report: 

• All information presented herein covers only the trees examined at the area of 
inspection, and reflects the conditions observed of said trees at the time of inspection. 

• Observations were performed visually without probing, dissecting, coring, or exaction, 
unless noted above, and in no way shall the observer be held responsible for any defects 
that could have only been discovered by performing said services in specific area(s) 
where a defect was located. 

• No guarantee or warranty is made, expressed or implied, that defects of the trees 
inspected may not arise in the future.  

• No assurance can be offered that if the recommendations and precautionary measures 
are accepted and followed, that the desired results may be attained. 

• No responsibility is assumed for the methods used by any person or company executing 
the recommendations provided in this report. 

• The information provided herein represents an opinion, and in no way is the reporting 
of a specified finding, conclusion, or value based on the retainer. 

• This report is proprietary to Arborwell, and may not be reproduced in whole or part 
without written consent. This report has been prepared exclusively for use of the parties 
to which it has been submitted. 

• Should any part of this report be altered, damaged, corrupted, or lost the entire 
evaluation shall be invalid. 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

TREE 

NO.
BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME DBH

CONDITION           

1=Poor 2=Fair 

3=Good 4=Very 

Good 5=Excellent

COMMENTS, RECOMMENDATIONS
REMOVE / 

PRESERVE

REMOVAL REASON 

(STRUCTURAL/HEALTH, 

CONSTRUCTION)

HERITAGE TREE?

1
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 11 3 Young tree; excellent health Preserve Non-heritage

2
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 16 3 Healthy tree; heavy on the ends Preserve Heritage

3
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 13 3 Tree failed  & was removed 10/29/13

4 Prunus cerasifera Plum 8 1
Tree damaged by the failure of tree 

#3.  Was removed on 10/29/13

5
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 18 3 Good health and vigor Preserve Heritage

6 Prunus cerasifera Plum 10 1

Removal recommended; tree has very 

poor structure and is a poor specimen.  

It is showing signs of trunk and root 

decay.

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

7
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 14 3 Good health and vigor Preserve Non-heritage

8 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 24 2

Removal recommended; heavily 

weighted on one side, showing signs 

of uprooting and is causing damage to 

patio.

Preserve Heritage

9
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 14 3 Good health and vigor Preserve Non-heritage

10
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 15 3

Removal recommended; poor 

structure at very top and could lose 

large limbs at any time; is located near 

a walkway

Preserve Heritage

11
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 14 3 Healthy tree; many water sprouts Preserve Non-heritage

12 Prunus cerasifera Plum 7 1

Removal recommended; this tree has 

very poor structure and is a poor 

specimen.  It is showing signs of trunk 

and root decay.

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

13
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 17 3 Heavy on the ends; good health Preserve Heritage

14
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar

12 3 Healthy with good structure Preserve Non-heritage

15
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar

11 3 Healthy young tree Preserve Non-heritage

16
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 8 1

Removal recommended; overcrowded 

with severe trunk decay
Preserve Non-heritage

17 Quercus ilex Holly Oak 13 2 Good health; thin canopy Preserve Non-heritage

18
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 13 3 Good structure, good health Preserve Non-heritage

19
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 7 1

Removal recommended; overcrowded 

with severe root decay
Preserve Non-heritage

20
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 12 3 Poor structure; good health Preserve Non-heritage

21
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 8 2

Removal recommended; may have 

root decay; poor structure and will be 

growing over the building in the future

Preserve Non-heritage

22
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 10 3

Heavy on one side - slightly 

imbalanced
Preserve Non-heritage

23
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 40 4 Good health Preserve Heritage

24
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 19 4 Good health Preserve Heritage

25 Prunus cerasifera Plum 13 3 Poor structure Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

26
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 26 4 Good health Preserve Heritage

27
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 27 4 Good health Preserve Heritage

28
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 26 4 Good health Preserve Heritage

29
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 25 4 Good health Preserve Heritage

30
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 20 4 Good health Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

31
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 15 4 Excellent health Preserve Heritage

32
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 19 4 Excellent health Preserve Heritage

33 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 24 2

Removal recommended; canopy looks 

thin; tree is in close proximity and 

leaning over building and may cause 

damage to foundation and pipes.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

34 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 25 2

Removal recommended; canopy looks 

thin; tree is in close proximity and 

leaning over building and may cause 

damage to foundation and pipes.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

35 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 23 2

Removal recommended; tree is in 

close proximity to building and may 

cause damage to foundation and 

pipes.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

36 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 26 2

Removal recommended; canopy looks 

thin; tree is in close proximity and 

leaning over building and may cause 

damage to foundation and pipes.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

37 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 30 2

Removal recommended; tree is in 

close proximity to building and may 

cause damage to foundation and 

pipes.

Preserve Heritage

38 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 18 3 Good health and vigor Preserve Heritage

39
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 9 3 Good health and vigor; heavy ended Preserve Non-heritage

40
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 18 3 Good health and vigor; heavy ended Preserve Heritage

41
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 11 3 Good health and vigor; heavy ended Preserve Non-heritage

42
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 13 3 Good health and vigor; heavy ended Preserve Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

43
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 15 3 Good health and vigor; heavy ended Preserve Heritage

44
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 14 3 Good health and vigor; heavy ended Preserve Non-heritage

45
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 14 3 Good health and vigor; heavy ended Preserve Non-heritage

46
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 15 3 Good health, heavy ended Preserve Heritage

47 Pyrus kawakamii Evergreen Pear 20 3

Removal recommended; has 

developed a heavy lean due to 

overcrowding, structure is fair but will 

never develop correctly due to close 

proximity to the building and other 

trees.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

48 Pyrus kawakamii Evergreen Pear 15 3

Removal recommended; has 

developed a heavy lean due to 

overcrowding, structure is fair but will 

never develop correctly due to close 

proximity to the building and other 

trees.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

49 Pyrus kawakamii Evergreen Pear 9 3

Removal recommended; has 

developed a heavy lean due to 

overcrowding, structure is fair but will 

never develop correctly due to close 

proximity to the building and other 

trees.

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

50 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 58 2 Deadwood Preserve Heritage

51
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 25 3 Good health, heavy ended Preserve Heritage

52
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 23 3 Good health, heavy ended Preserve Heritage

53 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 13 1

Removal recommended; tree is in 

decline, has minimal branches and is 

overcrowded; removal will allow 

others to grow.

Preserve Heritage

54 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 42 3 Some branches have decay Preserve Heritage

55 Betula pendula White Birch 8 5 Young tree; excellent health Remove Construction Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

56 Betula pendula White Birch 8 5 Young tree; excellent health Remove Construction Non-heritage

57 Lagerstroemia Crape Myrtle 4.5 5 Young tree; excellent health Remove Construction Non-heritage

58 Lagerstroemia Crape Myrtle 4.5 5 Young tree; excellent health Remove Construction Non-heritage

59
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 13 5 Healthy tree Preserve Non-heritage

60
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 56 5 Low Branches Preserve Heritage

61
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 40 2

Removal recommended; tree has a 

hard lean and is showing signs of 

uprooting; is located near a walkway.

Preserve Heritage

62 Malus floribunda Crab Apple 4 3 Good health, poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

63 Alnus rhombifolia Alder 22 3 Good health; heavy ended Preserve Heritage

64 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 19 3 Canopy looks thin Preserve Heritage

65 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 27 3 Good health; heavy ended Preserve Heritage

66
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 12 3 Good health and vigor Preserve Non-heritage

67
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 29 3 Good health and vigor Preserve Heritage

68
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 17 3 Good health and vigor Preserve Heritage

69
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 20 3 Good health and vigor Preserve Heritage

70 Malus floribunda Crab Apple 10 3 Overgrown Remove Construction Non-heritage

71 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 35 3 Good health Preserve Heritage

72 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 33 3 Good health Preserve Heritage

73 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 24 3 Good health Preserve Heritage

74 Corymbia ficifolia Red Gum 20 2
Removal recommended; Good health, 

poor structure
Preserve Heritage

75 Corymbia ficifolia Red Gum 15 2
Removal recommended; Good health, 

poor structure
Remove Structural/Health Heritage

76
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 32 4 Good health and structure Preserve Heritage

77
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 38 4 Good health and structure Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

78
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 39 4 Good health and structure Preserve Heritage

79
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 32 4 Good health and structure Preserve Heritage

80
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 41 4 Good health and structure Preserve Heritage

81
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 40 4 Good health and structure Preserve Heritage

82 Malus floribunda Crab Apple 7 3 Poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage
83 Malus floribunda Crab Apple 6 3 Poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

84
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 23

Good health and structure, but thin 

canopy
Preserve Heritage

85
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 25

Good health and structure, but thin 

canopy
Preserve Heritage

86
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 25

Good health and structure, but thin 

canopy
Preserve Heritage

87 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 42 2

Removal recommended; located very 

close to building and retaining wall 

and is causing damage to foundation 

and pipes.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

88 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 42 2

Removal recommended; located very 

close to building and retaining wall 

and is causing damage to foundation 

and pipes.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

89
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 17 3 Good health Preserve Heritage

90
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 22 1

Removal recommended; included bark 

and poor health; severe trunk decay, 

potential failure.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

91
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 16 3 Good health; poor structure Remove Construction Heritage

92
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 21 3 Good health; poor structure Remove Construction Heritage

93
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 19 3 Good health; poor structure Remove Construction Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

94
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 17 3 Good health; poor structure Remove Construction Heritage

95 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 30 2

Removal recommended; too close to 

building and causing damage to 

foundation and pipes.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

96 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 31 2

Removal recommended; too close to 

building and causing damage to 

foundation and pipes.

Remove Construction Heritage

97 Eucalyptus spp. Gum 25 1

Removal recommended; overgrown 

and poorly structured; limbs break 

often and is a danger to residents

Preserve Heritage

98 Juniperus chinensis Juniper 19 3 Good Health; canopy is dense Remove Construction Heritage

99
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 19 3

End weight is a problem, but 

otherwise healthy
Remove Construction Heritage

100
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 19 3

End weight is a problem, but 

otherwise healthy
Preserve Heritage

101
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 22 3

End weight is a problem, but 

otherwise healthy
Preserve Heritage

102
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 20 3

End weight is a problem, but 

otherwise healthy
Preserve Heritage

103 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 38 3 Good health and structure Preserve Heritage

104 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 46 3 Good health and structure Preserve Heritage

105
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 31 3 Good health Preserve Heritage

106
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 28 4 Overcrowded Preserve Heritage

107
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 18 4 Overcrowded Preserve Heritage

108
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 14 3

Canopy looks thin and the trunk has a 

gash
Preserve Non-heritage

109 Arbutus marina Arbutus 11 3 Healthy young tree, poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

110
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 11 3 Very thin canopy Preserve Non-heritage

111 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 39 2 Poor vigor and lot of deadwood Preserve Heritage

112 Quercus alba White Oak 26 3 Young tree; excellent health Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

113
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 19 2 Under stress Preserve Heritage

114
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 12 3

Young healthy tree; potentially over 

watered
Preserve Non-heritage

115
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 18 3

Young healthy tree; potentially over 

watered
Preserve Heritage

116
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 14 3 Stressed; potentially over watered Preserve Non-heritage

117 Malus floribunda Crab Apple 6 3 Young tree; excellent health Preserve Non-heritage

118 Betula pendula White Birch 9 3 Healthy vigor and structure Preserve Non-heritage

119 Betula pendula White Birch 10 3 Heavy on the ends; good health Preserve Non-heritage

120 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 52 2

Removal recommended; very large 

tree close to buildings; poor structure 

and presents a risk of failure.

Preserve Heritage

121 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 36 3 Healthy trees, but heavy on the ends Preserve Heritage

122 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 30 3 Healthy trees, but heavy on the ends Remove Construction Heritage

123 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 30 3 Healthy trees, but heavy on the ends Preserve Heritage

124 E. sideroxylon Red Ironbark 29 2

Removal recommended; very large 

tree close to buildings; poor structure 

and presents a risk of failure.

Preserve Heritage

125
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 20 3 Large healthy tree, heavy ended Preserve Heritage

126
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 17 3 Large healthy tree, heavy ended Preserve Heritage

127
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 19 3 Large healthy tree, heavy ended Preserve Heritage

128
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 13 2

Removal recommended; young tree; 

may be receiving to much water
Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

129
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 17 4

Healthy trees, lots of crossing 

branches
Preserve Heritage

130
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 23 4

Healthy trees, lots of crossing 

branches
Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

131
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 10 4

Healthy trees, lots of crossing 

branches
Preserve Non-heritage

132
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 17 4

Healthy trees, lots of crossing 

branches
Preserve Heritage

133
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 18 4

Healthy trees, lots of crossing 

branches
Preserve Heritage

134
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 38 4

Healthy trees, lots of crossing 

branches
Preserve Heritage

135
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 33 3 Healthy trees, being over watered Preserve Heritage

136
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 40 3 Healthy trees, being over watered Preserve Heritage

137
Cinnamomum 

camphora
Camphor 16 3 Young healthy tree Preserve Heritage

138
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 36 3

Large healthy tree, good vigor and 

structure
Preserve Heritage

139
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 26 3

Large healthy tree, good vigor and 

structure
Preserve Heritage

140 Betula pendula White Birch 12 3
Healthy tree, overcrowded by 

Redwood
Preserve Non-heritage

141 Betula pendula White Birch 11 3
Healthy tree, overcrowded by 

Redwood
Preserve Non-heritage

142 Betula pendula White Birch 13 3
Healthy tree, overcrowded by 

Redwood
Preserve Non-heritage

143
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 15 3

Young tree, seems to be browning due 

to over crowding and possibly too 

much water

Preserve Heritage

144
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 15 3

Young tree, seems to be browning due 

to over crowding and possibly too 

much water

Preserve Heritage

145
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 13 3

Young tree, seems to be browning due 

to over crowding and possibly too 

much water

Preserve Non-heritage

146
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 14 3

Young tree, seems to be browning due 

to over crowding and possibly too 

much water

Preserve Non-heritage

147
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 19 3

Young tree, seems to be browning due 

to over crowding and possibly too 

much water

Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

148
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 30 3

Young tree, seems to be browning due 

to over crowding and possibly too 

much water

Preserve Heritage

149
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 6 2

Removal recommended; small; over 

crowded and declining; should be 

removed to allow others to grow

Preserve Non-heritage

150
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 15 3 Good Health and vigor Preserve Heritage

151 Betula pendula White Birch 10 3 Good Health and vigor Remove Construction Non-heritage

152 Betula pendula White Birch 9 3 Over crowded and poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

153 Betula pendula White Birch 13 3 Over crowded and poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

154
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 14 3 Good health, vigor and structure Preserve Non-heritage

155
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 19 3 Good health, vigor and structure Preserve Heritage

156
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 18 3 Good health, vigor and structure Preserve Heritage

157
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 16 3 Good health, vigor and structure Preserve Heritage

158 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 24 2
Trees in decline; thin and heavy on 

ends
Preserve Heritage

159 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 39 2
Trees in decline; thin and heavy on 

ends
Preserve Heritage

160 Quercus ilex Holly Oak 11 3 Canopy seems thin Preserve Non-heritage

161
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 24 2 Has included bark but good health Preserve Heritage

162
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 12 2 Tree is in decline Preserve Non-heritage

163
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 10 2 Tree is in decline Preserve Non-heritage

164 Quercus ilex Holly Oak 9 2
Tree has lots of water spots, and is 

stressed
Preserve Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

165 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 39 2

Removal recommended; tree has large 

potential for failure and has lost large 

limbs in the past, poor structure 

indicates it will lose more; located 

over parking garage and poses a 

danger to residents

Preserve Heritage

166 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 36 2

Removal recommended; tree has large 

potential for failure and has lost large 

limbs in the past, poor structure 

indicates it will lose more; located 

over parking garage and poses a 

danger to residents

Preserve Heritage

167 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3 Healthy young trees Remove Construction Non-heritage

168 Juniperus chinensis Juniper 9 3 Healthy young trees Remove Construction Non-heritage

169
Liquidambar 

styraciflua
Liquidambar 10 3 Healthy young trees Preserve Non-heritage

170 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 2
Healthy vigor and structure, but over 

crowded and one-sided
Preserve Non-heritage

171 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 8 2
Healthy vigor and structure, but over 

crowded and one-sided
Preserve Non-heritage

172 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 2
Healthy vigor and structure, but over 

crowded and one-sided
Preserve Non-heritage

173 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 8 2
Healthy vigor and structure, but over 

crowded and one-sided
Preserve Non-heritage

174 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 2
Healthy vigor and structure, but over 

crowded and one-sided
Preserve Non-heritage

175 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 2
Healthy vigor and structure, but over 

crowded and one-sided
Preserve Non-heritage

176 Prunus cerasifera Plum 6 3 Good health, but poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

177 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 30 2

Removal recommended; tree is 

growing directly against the building 

and is causing damage to foundation 

and pipes

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

178 Prunus cerasifera Plum 6 3 Good health, but poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

179 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 3 Very thin due to over crowding Preserve Non-heritage

180 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 3 Tree is overgrown due to crowding Preserve Non-heritage

181 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 3 Tree is overgrown due to crowding Preserve Non-heritage

182 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 3 Tree is overgrown due to crowding Preserve Non-heritage

183 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 3 Tree is overgrown due to crowding Preserve Non-heritage

184 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 3 Tree is overgrown due to crowding Preserve Non-heritage

185 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 3 Tree is overgrown due to crowding Preserve Non-heritage

186
Cinnamomum 

camphora
Camphor 10 2.5 Fair health; canopy is thin Remove Construction Non-heritage

187
Cinnamomum 

camphora
Camphor 11 2.5 Fair health; canopy is thin Remove Construction Non-heritage

188
Cinnamomum 

camphora
Camphor 12 2.5 Fair health; canopy is thin Remove Construction Non-heritage

189
Cinnamomum 

camphora
Camphor 13 2.5 Fair health; canopy is thin Remove Construction Non-heritage

190
Cinnamomum 

camphora
Camphor 12 2.5 Fair health; canopy is thin Remove Construction Non-heritage

191
Cinnamomum 

camphora
Camphor 11 2.5 Fair health; canopy is thin Remove Construction Non-heritage

192 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 32 2

Removal recommended; showing 

potential for failure; causing damage 

to walkways and posing a danger to 

residents

Preserve Heritage

193 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 34 2

Removal recommended; showing 

potential for failure; causing damage 

to walkways and posing a danger to 

residents

Preserve Heritage

194 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3 Healthy tree, but over crowded Preserve Heritage

195 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3 Tree is overgrown and very one-sided Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

196 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 3 Tree is overgrown and very one-sided Preserve Non-heritage

197 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3 Tree is overgrown and very one-sided Preserve Heritage

198 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 16 3 Tree is overgrown and very one-sided Preserve Heritage

199 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 17 3 Tree is overgrown and very one-sided Preserve Heritage

200 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 17 3 Tree is overgrown and very one-sided Preserve Heritage

201
Pittosporum 

eugenioides
Pittosporum 10 3 Lots of crossing and dead branches Remove Construction Non-heritage

202
Pittosporum 

eugenioides
Pittosporum 10 3 Lots of crossing and dead branches Remove Construction Non-heritage

203 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 19 3

Removal recommended; high risk tree; 

significant lean, overgrown and is 

causing damage to pipes and 

foundation; very poor structure, with 

pruning risk can be somewhat 

mitigated

Preserve Heritage

204 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 18 3

Removal recommended; high risk tree; 

significant lean, overgrown and is 

causing damage to pipes and 

foundation; very poor structure, with 

pruning risk can be somewhat 

mitigated

Preserve Heritage

205 E. sideroxylon Red Ironbark 18 2

Removal recommended; high risk tree; 

significant lean, overgrown and may 

damage building; very poor structure 

and has had numerous limb failures; 

located near walkways and pose a 

danger to residents

Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

206 E. sideroxylon Red Ironbark 19 2

Removal recommended; high risk tree; 

significant lean, overgrown and may 

damage building; very poor structure 

and has had numerous limb failures; 

located near walkways and pose a 

danger to residents

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

207 Prunus caroliniana Carolina Cherry 9 3 Healthy tree, but heavy ended Preserve Non-heritage

208
Cinnamomum 

camphora
Camphor 15 3 Healthy tree, but heavy ended Preserve Heritage

209
Magnolia 

grandiflora
Magnolia 14 3 Good health, vigor and structure Preserve Non-heritage

210 Prunus cerasifera Plum 10 3 Good health, very poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

211
Magnolia 

grandiflora
Magnolia 9 1

Removal recommended; tree shows 

large amounts of die back; declining 

due to lack of light and overcrowding

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

212
Magnolia 

grandiflora
Magnolia 10 1

Removal recommended; tree shows 

large amounts of die back; declining 

due to lack of light and overcrowding

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

213 Prunus cerasifera Plum 10 3
Good health; but overcrowded and 

overgrown
Remove Construction Non-heritage

214 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 18 2

Removal recommended; tree is one-

sided; overgrown and lifting the 

sidewalk; located too close to building 

and will soon cause damage to 

foundation.

Preserve Heritage

215 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 2

Removal recommended; tree is one-

sided; overgrown and lifting the 

sidewalk; located too close to building 

and will soon cause damage to 

foundation.

Preserve Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

216 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 2

Removal recommended; tree is one-

sided; overgrown and lifting the 

sidewalk; located too close to building 

and will soon cause damage to 

foundation.

Preserve Heritage

217 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 11 2

Removal recommended; tree is one-

sided; overgrown and lifting the 

sidewalk; located too close to building 

and will soon cause damage to 

foundation.

Preserve Non-heritage

218 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 20 2

Removal recommended; tree is one-

sided; overgrown and lifting the 

sidewalk; located too close to building 

and will soon cause damage to 

foundation.

Preserve Heritage

219 Prunus cerasifera Plum 6 1

Removal recommended; poor 

structure, canopy looks poor; not 

aesthetically pleasing.

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

220 Prunus cerasifera Plum 12 2 Healthy and vigorous; fair structure Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

221 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 10 3
Healthy and vigorous; but very heavy 

ends
Preserve Non-heritage

222 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 15 3
Health and vigorous; but very heavy 

ends
Preserve Heritage

223 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 11 3
Healthy and vigorous; but very heavy 

ends
Preserve Non-heritage

224 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 11 3
Healthy and vigorous; but very heavy 

ends
Preserve Non-heritage

225 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 21 3 Tree is healthy; but overgrown Preserve Heritage

226 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 17 3 Tree is healthy; but overgrown Preserve Heritage

227 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 8 1

Removal recommended; 

overcrowded, and poor structure; 

should be removed so others can grow

Preserve Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

228 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 22 3 Healthy tree with long heavy branches Preserve Heritage

229 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 21 3 Healthy tree with long heavy branches Preserve Heritage

230 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 1

Removal recommended; 

overcrowded, and poor structure; 

should be removed so others can grow

Preserve Non-heritage

231 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 16 3 Large healthy tree Preserve Heritage

232 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 19 3 Large healthy tree Preserve Heritage

233 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 11 3
Young healthy tree; one-sided, due to 

overcrowding
Preserve Heritage

234 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 10 3
Young healthy tree; one-sided, due to 

overcrowding
Preserve Heritage

235 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 10 3
Young healthy tree; one-sided, due to 

overcrowding
Preserve Heritage

236 Prunus caroliniana Carolina Cherry 9 3

Removal recommended; 

overcrowded, and poor structure; 

should be removed so others can grow

Preserve Non-heritage

237
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 19 3 Healthy tree, but has heavy ends Preserve Heritage

238
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 15 3 Healthy tree, but has heavy ends Preserve Heritage

239
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 13 3 Healthy tree, but has heavy ends Preserve Non-heritage

240
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 13 3

Removal recommended; bad case of 

included bark; located too close to 

drain and is causing damage to pipes.

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

241 Betula pendula White Birch 8 3 Tree died, removed summer of 2013

242 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3 Tree died, removed summer of 2013

243 Pyrus kawakamii Evergreen Pear 9 3 Healthy, but overgrown Remove Construction Non-heritage

244 Pyrus kawakamii Evergreen Pear 10 3 Healthy, but overgrown Remove Construction Non-heritage
245 Pyrus kawakamii Evergreen Pear 8 3 Healthy, but overgrown Remove Construction Non-heritage

246 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 17 3 Healthy tree, poor structure Remove Construction Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

247 Pyrus kawakamii Evergreen Pear 10 3 Good health and vigor, poor structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

248 Pinus pinea Stone Pine 32 4 Healthy tree, but heavy on ends Preserve Heritage
249 Pinus pinea Stone Pine 29 4 Healthy tree, but heavy on ends Preserve Heritage

250
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 13 3

Healthy tree; good structure, ends are 

weighted
Preserve Non-heritage

251
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 9 3

Healthy tree, good structure, ends are 

weighted
Preserve Non-heritage

252
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 12 3

Healthy tree, good structure, ends are 

weighted
Preserve Non-heritage

253
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 11 3

Healthy tree, good structure, ends are 

weighted
Preserve Non-heritage

254
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 10 1

Removal recommended; tree shows 

signs of root decay may be due to over-

watering

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

255 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 36 3 Old healthy tree; heavy on one side Preserve Heritage

256 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 18 3 Large healthy tree; good structure Preserve Heritage

257 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 2

Removal recommended; small 

overcrowded tree with poor structure; 

should be removed to allow others to 

grow.

Preserve Non-heritage

258 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 3 Healthy tree with long ends Preserve Non-heritage

259 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3 Healthy tree with long ends Preserve Heritage

260 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 3

Removal recommended; small 

overcrowded tree with poor structure; 

should be removed to allow others to 

grow.

Preserve Non-heritage

261 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 7 2

Removal recommended; small 

overcrowded tree with poor structure; 

should be removed to allow others to 

grow.

Preserve Non-heritage

262 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3 Healthy tree overcrowding others Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

263 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 8 2

Removal recommended; small 

overcrowded tree with poor structure; 

should be removed to allow others to 

grow.

Preserve Non-heritage

264 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 28 3

Removal recommended; located too 

close to building and is causing 

damage to the foundation, pipes, and 

walkways.

Preserve Heritage

265 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 20 3
Healthy tree one-sided due to 

crowding
Preserve Heritage

266 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3
Healthy tree one-sided due to 

crowding
Preserve Heritage

267 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3
Healthy tree one-sided due to 

crowding
Preserve Heritage

268 Prunus cerasifera Plum 8 3
Healthy tree one-sided due to 

crowding
Remove Construction Non-heritage

269 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 18 3
Removal recommended; showing 

signs of trunk decay; lifting sidewalk.
Preserve Heritage

270 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 14 3  Some trunk decay Preserve Non-heritage

271 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 14 3 Large tree one-sided Preserve Non-heritage

272 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3 Large tree one-sided Preserve Heritage

273 Prunus cerasifera Plum 8 3
Healthy tree, but over crowded with 

poor structure
Remove Construction Non-heritage

274 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Heritage

275 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage

276 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 14 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage

277 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 31 2 Showing signs of decline Preserve Heritage

278
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 25 3

Young healthy tree;  a little 

overcrowded
Preserve Heritage

279
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 25 3

Young healthy tree; a little 

overcrowded
Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

280
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 22 3

Young healthy tree, a little over 

crowded
Preserve Heritage

281
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 19 3

Young healthy tree, a little over 

crowded
Preserve Heritage

282
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 20 3

Young healthy tree, a little over 

crowded
Preserve Heritage

283
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 18 3

Young healthy tree, a little over 

crowded
Preserve Heritage

284
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 7 1

Removal recommended; small over-

crowded tree; should be removed to 

allow others to grow

Preserve Non-heritage

285 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 17 3
Healthy tree with good structure, but 

lifting sidewalk
Preserve Heritage

286 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 14 3
Healthy tree with good structure, but 

lifting sidewalk
Preserve Non-heritage

287 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3
Healthy tree with good structure, but 

lifting sidewalk
Preserve Heritage

288 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 11 3
Healthy tree with good structure, but 

lifting sidewalk
Preserve Non-heritage

289 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3
Healthy tree with good structure, but 

lifting sidewalk
Preserve Heritage

290 Prunus cerasifera Plum 6 3 Young healthy tree, but overcrowded Remove Construction Non-heritage

291 Prunus cerasifera Plum 10 3 Young healthy tree, but overcrowded Remove Construction Non-heritage

292 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 29 3

Removal recommended; growing into 

parking garage and could cause 

damage to the structure.

Preserve Heritage

293 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 2 Showing signs of die back Preserve Non-heritage

294 Acacia melanoxylon Acacia 17 1

Removal recommended; tree has lost 

large limbs in the past and structure 

shows it will lose many more in the 

future; is a danger to residents.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

295 Acacia melanoxylon Black Acacia 21 1

Removal recommended; tree has lost 

large limbs in the past and structure 

shows it will lose many more in the 

future; is a danger to residents.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

296 Eucalyptus spp. Gum 22 2

Removal recommended; poor 

structure; tree has very few branches 

due to overcrowding and is too close 

to building; removal will allow for 

planting of a more suitable species.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

297 Eucalyptus spp. Gum 16 2

Removal recommended; poor 

structure; tree has very few branches 

due to overcrowding and is too close 

to building; removal will allow for 

planting of a more suitable species.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

298 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 28 2

Removal recommended; has a  heavy 

lean over parking garage and is at risk 

of failure.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

299 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 35 2

Removal recommended; has a bad 

lean and could fail; located far too 

close to drain and is causing damage 

to pipes and walkways.

Preserve Heritage

300 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 22 2 Healthy tree, minor deadwood Preserve Heritage

301 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 26 2 Healthy tree, minor deadwood Preserve Heritage

302 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 12 2

Removal recommended; healthy tree 

with a significant lean; showing signs 

of uprooting

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

303 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 13 3 Tree is healthy, but heavy ended Remove Construction Non-heritage

304 Betula pendula White Birch 11 3
Healthy tree, a little overcrowded; 

needs structure
Preserve Non-heritage

305 Betula pendula White Birch 11 3
Healthy tree, a little overcrowded; 

needs structure
Preserve Non-heritage

306 Betula pendula White Birch 10 3
Healthy tree, a little overcrowded; 

needs structure
Preserve Non-heritage

307 Betula pendula White Birch 12 3
Healthy tree, a little overcrowded; 

needs structure
Preserve Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

308 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 18 3
Healthy tree; but overgrown on 

garage side
Preserve Heritage

309 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage

310 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 11 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage

311 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage

312 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Heritage

313 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage

314 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Heritage

315 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 27 2

Removal recommended; tree is 

overcrowded and growing into parking 

structure.

Remove Construction Heritage

316 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 33 2
Good health; but shows signs of trunk 

decay
Preserve Heritage

317 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 15 3
Large healthy tree, but overcrowded; 

ends of branches need reduction
Remove Construction Heritage

318 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 16 3
Large healthy tree, but overcrowded; 

ends of branches need reduction
Preserve Heritage

319 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 17 3
Large healthy tree, but overcrowded; 

ends of branches need reduction
Preserve Heritage

320 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 21 3
Large healthy tree, but overcrowded; 

ends of branches need reduction
Preserve Heritage

321 Betula pendula White Birch 5 2 Young tree, over crowded Preserve Non-heritage
322 Betula pendula White Birch 10 3 Young tree, over crowded Preserve Non-heritage
323 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3 Young tree, over crowded Preserve Non-heritage

324 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 20 2

Removal recommended; tree has 

been topped in the past, therefore 

attachments are poor; located over a 

walkway and is a danger to residents

Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

325 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 22 2

Removal recommended; tree has 

been topped in the past, therefore 

attachments are poor; located over a 

walkway and is a danger to residents

Preserve Heritage

326 Betula pendula White Birch 9 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage
327 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage
328 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage
329 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage
330 Betula pendula White Birch 7 3 Healthy tree; heavy ends Preserve Non-heritage
331 Betula pendula White Birch 10 3 Healthy tree; heavy ends Preserve Non-heritage
332 Betula pendula White Birch 11 3 Healthy tree; heavy ends Preserve Non-heritage
333 Betula pendula White Birch 12 3 Healthy tree; heavy ends Preserve Non-heritage

334 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 10 2

Removal recommended; poorly 

structured tree, has been topped; 

recommend starting over with a new 

tree

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage

335 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 13 2 Thin tree due to building clearance Remove Construction Non-heritage

336 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 12 1 Thin tree due to building clearance Remove Construction Non-heritage

337 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 23 1 Thin tree due to building clearance Preserve Heritage

338 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 20 1 Thin tree due to building clearance Preserve Heritage

339 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 17 1 Thin tree due to building clearance Preserve Heritage

340 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 17 1 Thin tree due to building clearance Preserve Heritage

341
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 12 1 Young healthy tree Preserve Non-heritage

342 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 42 2

Removal recommended; tree is in 

decline;  too large for its location and 

is lifting sidewalk; falling cones pose a 

danger over the pool area

Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

343 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 27 2

Removal recommended; tree is in 

decline;  too large for its location and 

is lifting sidewalk; falling cones pose a 

danger over the pool area; too close 

to building and causing damage to 

foundation and pipes

Preserve Heritage

344 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 27 2

Removal recommended; tree is in 

decline;  too large for its location and 

is lifting sidewalk; falling cones pose a 

danger over the pool area; too close 

to building and causing damage to 

foundation and pipes

Preserve Heritage

345 Pyrus kawakamii Evergreen Pear 7 3
Young healthy tree; needs end-weight 

reduction
Remove Construction Non-heritage

346 Pyrus calleryana Bradford Pear 8 3
Young healthy tree; needs end-weight 

reduction
Remove Construction Non-heritage

347 Prunus cerasifera Plum 4 3
Young healthy tree; needs end-weight 

reduction
Remove Construction Non-heritage

348 Prunus cerasifera Plum 4 3
Young healthy tree; needs end-weight 

reduction
Remove Construction Non-heritage

349 Pyrus kawakamii Evergreen Pear 9 3
Young healthy tree; needs end-weight 

reduction
Remove Construction Non-heritage

350 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 18 1
Removal recommended; Tree is heavy 

on the ends due to building clearance
Remove Structural/Health Heritage

351 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 28 1
Removal recommended; Tree is heavy 

on the ends due to building clearance
Remove Structural/Health Heritage

352 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 15 1
Removal recommended; Tree is heavy 

on the ends due to building clearance
Remove Structural/Health Heritage

353 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 15 1
Removal recommended; Tree is heavy 

on the ends due to building clearance
Remove Structural/Health Heritage

354 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 25 1
Removal recommended; Tree is heavy 

on the ends due to building clearance
Remove Structural/Health Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

355 Fraxinus uhdei Shamel Ash 17 1
Removal recommended; Tree is heavy 

on the ends due to building clearance
Preserve Heritage

356 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 35 2

Removal recommended; tree is much 

too large for its location and is 

damaging sidewalk, pipes, and garage; 

poses a danger to residents

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

357 Betula pendula White Birch 7 3 Young healthy tree Remove Construction Non-heritage
358 Betula pendula White Birch 10 3 Young healthy tree Preserve Non-heritage
359 Betula pendula White Birch 9 3 Young healthy tree Preserve Non-heritage

360 Betula pendula White Birch 11 3
Good health and vigor, however heavy 

on tops
Preserve Non-heritage

361 Betula pendula White Birch 11 1
Good health and vigor, however heavy 

on tops
Preserve Non-heritage

362 Betula pendula White Birch 9 3
Good health and vigor, however heavy 

on tops
Preserve Non-heritage

363 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3
Good health and vigor, however heavy 

on tops
Preserve Non-heritage

364 Betula pendula White Birch 10 3
Good health and vigor, however heavy 

on tops
Preserve Non-heritage

365 Quercus alba White Oak 21 3 Healthy tree, however, looks thin Preserve Heritage

366 Quercus alba White Oak 21 3

Removal recommended; healthy tree, 

however it is growing into the building 

and will soon damage it.

Preserve Heritage

367 Betula pendula White Birch 10 3 Healthy tree, needs structure Preserve Non-heritage
368 Betula pendula White Birch 9 3 Healthy tree, needs structure Remove Construction Non-heritage
369 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3 Healthy tree, needs structure Remove Construction Non-heritage
370 Betula pendula White Birch 9 3 Healthy tree, needs structure Remove Construction Non-heritage
371 Betula pendula White Birch 8 3 Healthy tree, needs structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

372 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 14 2

Removal recommended; tree is a poor 

example of species, it has been 

topped in the past and is in a poor 

location; falling branches pose a 

danger to residents.

Remove Structural/Health Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

373 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 16 2

Removal recommended; tree is a poor 

example of species, it has been 

topped in the past and is in a poor 

location; falling branches pose a 

danger to residents.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

374 Betula pendula White Birch 5 2 Young tree in decline Remove Construction Non-heritage

375 Betula pendula White Birch 6 2 Young tree in decline Remove Construction Non-heritage

376 Betula pendula White Birch 6 2 Tree died, removed summer of 2013

377
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 10 3

Healthy tree with significant end-

weight
Preserve Non-heritage

378
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 11 3

Healthy tree with significant end-

weight
Preserve Non-heritage

379
Liriodendron 

tulipifera
Tulip Tree 10 3

Healthy tree with significant end-

weight
Preserve Non-heritage

380 Betula pendula White Birch 12 3
Healthy tree with significant end-

weight
Remove Construction Non-heritage

381 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3
Healthy tree with significant end-

weight
Remove Construction Non-heritage

382 Betula pendula White Birch 5 3
Healthy tree with significant end-

weight
Remove Construction Non-heritage

383 Betula pendula White Birch 9 3
Healthy tree with significant end-

weight
Remove Construction Non-heritage

384
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 31 4 Healthy, well-structured tree Preserve Heritage

385
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 21 4 Healthy, well-structured tree Preserve Heritage

386
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 14 4 Healthy, well-structured tree Preserve Non-heritage

387
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 27 4 Healthy, well-structured tree Preserve Heritage

388
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 14 4 Healthy, well-structured tree Preserve Non-heritage

389
Sequoia 

sempervirens
Redwood 15 4 Healthy, well-structured tree Preserve Heritage

390 Betula pendula White Birch 14 3
Healthy tree, somewhat lacking in 

vigor
Remove Construction Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

391 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 32 2 Large tree, with good structure Preserve Heritage

392 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 3
Healthy tree, but overgrown and 

crowded
Preserve Non-heritage

393 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 3
Healthy tree, but overgrown and 

crowded
Preserve Non-heritage

394 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 3
Healthy tree, but overgrown and 

crowded
Preserve Non-heritage

395 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 14 3
Healthy tree, but overgrown and 

crowded
Preserve Non-heritage

396 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 3
Healthy tree, but overgrown and 

crowded
Preserve Non-heritage

397 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 3
Healthy tree, but overgrown and 

crowded
Preserve Non-heritage

398 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 3 Healthy tree, but overgrown Preserve Non-heritage

399 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 3
Healthy tree, but overgrown and 

crowded
Preserve Non-heritage

400 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 14 3
Healthy tree, but overgrown and 

crowded
Preserve Non-heritage

401
Pittosporum 

eugenioides
Pittosporum 10 3 Good health; has good structure Remove Construction Non-heritage

402 E.sideroxylon Red Ironbark 24 3

Removal recommended; much too 

large for its location; there is a risk of 

limb failure due to poor structure and 

is a danger to residents.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

403 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 13 3
Tree is overcrowded by the Euc. 

behind
Remove Construction Non-heritage

404 Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Elm 12 3
Tree is overcrowded by the Euc. 

behind
Remove Construction Non-heritage

405 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 32 1

Removal recommended; much too 

large for its location; there is a risk of 

limb failure due to poor structure and 

is a danger to residents.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

406 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 20 1

Removal recommended; 

overcrowded; tree has been topped 

therefore structure is poor and poses 

a danger to the patios below.

Preserve Heritage

407 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 16 1

Removal recommended; 

overcrowded; tree has been topped 

therefore structure is poor and poses 

a danger to the patios below.

Preserve Heritage

408 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 22 1

Removal recommended; 

overcrowded; tree has been topped 

therefore structure is poor and poses 

a danger to the patios below.

Preserve Heritage

409 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 17 1

Removal recommended; 

overcrowded; tree has been topped 

therefore structure is poor and poses 

a danger to the patios below.

Preserve Heritage

410 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 31 2

Removal recommended; tree appears 

to be in decline and is damaging 

walkway, creating a trip hazard.

Preserve Heritage

411 E.sideroxylon Red Ironbark 27 2

Removal recommended; much too 

large for its location; there is a risk of 

limb failure due to poor structure and 

is a danger to residents.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

412 E.sideroxylon Red Ironbark 31 2

Removal recommended; much too 

large for its location; there is a risk of 

limb failure due to poor structure and 

is a danger to residents.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

413 Prunus cerasifera Plum 9 3 Tree is healthy and young Remove Construction Non-heritage
414 Prunus cerasifera Plum 10 3 Tree is healthy and young Remove Construction Non-heritage

415
Pittosporum 

eugenioides
Pittosporum 10 3 Good health, but overgrown Remove Construction Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

416
Pittosporum 

eugenioides
Pittosporum 10 3 Good health, but overgrown Remove Construction Non-heritage

417 E. polyanthemos Silver Dollar Eucalyptus 17 3

Removal recommended; tree is a poor 

example of species, it has been 

topped in the past and is in a poor 

location; falling branches pose a 

danger to residents.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

418 Juniperus chinensis Juniper 10 3 Good health and vigor Remove Construction Non-heritage

419 Quercus ilex Holly Oak 11 4 Tree is one-sided due to overcrowding Preserve Non-heritage

420 Quercus agrifolia Live Oak 19 2 Tree is overcrowded and thin Preserve Heritage
421 Quercus agrifolia Live Oak 12 2 Tree is overcrowded and thin Preserve Heritage

422 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 33 2

Removal recommended; tree appears 

to be in decline and is damaging 

walkway, creating a trip hazard.

Preserve Heritage

423 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 27 2 Tree is well pruned, but a little thin Preserve Heritage

424 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 29 2 Tree is well pruned, but a little thin Preserve Heritage

425 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Non-heritage

426 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 14 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Non-heritage

427 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 14 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Non-heritage

428 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Non-heritage

429 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Non-heritage

430 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 11 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Non-heritage

431 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 9 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Non-heritage

432 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Non-heritage

433 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 18 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

434 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 16 3 Healthy tree, but branches too long Preserve Heritage

435 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 14 3
Good health and vigor, in need of 

structure prune
Preserve Non-heritage

436 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 3
Good health and vigor, in need of 

structure prune
Preserve Non-heritage

437 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 3
Good health and vigor, in need of 

structure prune
Preserve Non-heritage

438 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 8 3
Good health and vigor, in need of 

structure prune
Preserve Non-heritage

439 Populus tremula Cottonwood Poplar 23 2 Large tree over park areas, heavy ends Preserve Heritage

440 Populus tremula Cottonwood Poplar 26 2 Large tree over park areas, heavy ends Preserve Heritage

441 Populus tremula Cottonwood Poplar 23 2 Large tree over park areas, heavy ends Preserve Heritage

442 Malus floribunda Crab Apple 8 3 Young, vigorous tree Remove Construction Non-heritage
443 Malus floribunda Crab Apple 8 3 Young, vigorous tree Remove Construction Non-heritage
444 Malus floribunda Crab Apple 6 3 Young, vigorous tree Remove Construction Non-heritage
445 Malus floribunda Crab Apple 10 3 Young, vigorous tree Remove Construction Non-heritage
446 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3 Young, vigorous tree Remove Construction Non-heritage
447 Betula pendula White Birch 6 3 Young, vigorous tree Remove Construction Non-heritage
448 Betula pendula White Birch 10 3 Young, vigorous tree Remove Construction Non-heritage

449 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 31 3  Included bark, fair health Preserve Heritage

450 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 26 1

Removal recommended; tree is 

declining and has severely included 

bark on the limb over garage.

Remove Structural/Health Heritage

451 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 12 3
Good health, but needs to be 

structure pruned
Preserve Non-heritage

452 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 11 3
Good health, but needs to be 

structure pruned
Preserve Non-heritage

453 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 11 3
Good health, but needs to be 

structure pruned
Preserve Non-heritage

454 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 3
Good health, but needs to be 

structure pruned
Preserve Non-heritage

455 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 10 3
Good health, but needs to be 

structure pruned
Preserve Non-heritage



Sharon Green Apartments

Arborist Report

456 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 11 3
Good health, but needs to be 

structure pruned
Preserve Non-heritage

457 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 11 3
Good health, but needs to be 

structure pruned
Preserve Non-heritage

458 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 3
Good health, but needs to be 

structure pruned
Preserve Non-heritage

459 Platanus hispanica Sycamore 13 3
Good health, but needs to be 

structure pruned
Preserve Non-heritage

460 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 36 3 Good health and vigor Preserve Heritage

461 Prunus caroliniana Carolina Cherry 6 3
Good health and vigor; however, tree 

has lean
Preserve Non-heritage

462 Quercus ilex Holly Oak 10 3
Good health and vigor; however, tree 

has lean
Preserve Non-heritage

463 Quercus lobata Valley Oak 33 3
 Appears healthy, but is showing some 

trunk decay
Preserve Heritage

464 Pinus radiata Monterey Pine 27 2

Removal recommended; located much 

too close to building and is causing 

damage to foundation and pipes.

Preserve Heritage

Heritage Removal Heritage Trees for removal 42

Heritage Construction Removal
Non - Heritage Removal

Tree formerly classified as Heritage Removal

For futher comments on these trees please see Sharon Green Re-evaluation 12-5-13



 

December 11, 2013 
 
 
Mr. Kyle Perata, Planner 
City of Menlo Park 
Community Development Department 
701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA  94025 
 
Re: Sharon Green Apartments   

Updated Arborist Report 
  
Dear Mr. Perata, 
 
As requested, Fujiitrees Consulting (FTC) completed a peer review of the 
Heritage Tree Reevaluation Report, November 19, 2013; Tree Protection 
Measures, December 3, 2013 and the Updated Tree Inventory Report.  
These updated reports were submitted on behalf of the Sharon Green 
Apartments located at 350 Sharon Park Drive in the City of Menlo Park.  
 
This peer review would be equivalent to the work typically conducted by 
the City Arborist for development projects.  An earlier peer review 
conducted by FTC included a visit to the site and was submitted October 
21, 2013 
 
The FTC Assignment: 
1. Review the Heritage Tree Reevaluation Report, November 19, 2013. 
2. Review the Tree Protection Measures, December 3, 2013 
3. Review the Updated Tree Inventory Report 
 
Background 
The Applicant submitted a tree report to the City of Menlo Park dated 
August 23, 2013.  After review of the submitted report the City requested 
the Applicant to reevaluate the Heritage trees proposed for removal for 
the purpose of preserving more Heritage trees.  
 
Findings 
1. Review the Heritage Tree Reevaluation Report, November 19, 2013. 
FTC summarized the updated status of Heritage trees in the following 
table: 
 
 
 

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT L

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



Sharon Green Apartments 
Menlo Park, California 
December 11, 2013 
 

 

Summary of Reevaluated Heritage Trees 
 

             Proposed Tree Status                        Count 
Possible Trees for Preservation 
 

23 

Tree Removals for Poor Condition 
 

31 

Tree Removals for Construction 
 

8 

*Tree Removals for Fire Service 
 

3 

Total Revaluated Heritage Trees                   65 
 

*This is a new line item. 
 
The above trees were cross checked for verification in the tree inventory. 
 
2. Review the Tree Protection Measures, December 3, 2013 
FTC comments for the Tree Protection Measures were submitted to City staff and relayed to the 
Project Arborist. 
 
3. Review the Updated Tree Inventory Report 
The Updated Tree Inventory contained corrections recommended by FTC but did not reflect the 
change of status summarized in the above table. 
 
Conclusion 
After careful review of the Heritage Reevaluation Report, Tree Protection Measures and 
Updated Tree Inventory including verification of the tree data FTC has no further comment. 
 
Submittal of this report completes the FTC assignment for this second Arborist peer review of the 
Sharon Green Apartments Project. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Walter Fujii 
Consulting Arborist 
 
 
Attachments:  Certificate of Performance 

Terms and Conditions 
 

Copyright 2013 Fujiitrees Consulting; All rights reserved. 



Certification of Performance 
 
 
That I have personally inspected the tree(s) and /or property referred to in this 
report and have stated my findings accurately.  The extent of the evaluation 
and appraisal is stated in the attached report and the Terms and Conditions; 
 
That I have no current or prospective interest in the vegetation or the property 
that is the subject of this report and I have no personal interest or bias with 
respect to the parties involved; 
 
That the analysis opinions and conclusions stated herein are my own and are 
based on current scientific procedures and facts; 
 
That my compensation is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined 
conclusion that favors the cause of the client or any other party nor upon the 
results of the assessment the attainment of stipulated results or the occurrence of 
any subsequent events; 
 
That my analysis opinions and conclusion were developed and this report has 
been prepared according to commonly accepted Arboricultural practices; 
 
I further certify that I am a Registered Consulting Arborist® by the American 
Society of Consulting Arborists (ASCA) and a Certified Arborist by the 
International Society of Arboriculture (ISA). 
 

Disclosure Statement 
 
Arborists are tree specialists who use their education, knowledge, training and 
experience to examine trees and recommend measures to enhance the beauty 
and health of trees and attempt to reduce the risk of living near trees. Clients 
may choose to accept or disregard the recommendations of the arborist or to 
seek additional advice. 
 
Arborists cannot detect every condition that could possibly lead to the structural 
failure of a tree.  Trees are living organisms that fail in ways we do not fully 
understand.  Certain conditions are often hidden within trees or below the 
ground.  Arborists cannot guarantee that a tree will be healthy or safe under all 
circumstances or for a specific period of time.  Likewise remedial treatments 
cannot be guaranteed. 
 
Trees can be managed but they cannot be controlled.   
To live near trees is to accept some degree of risk.   
 
Signed:      Date: 12/11/13 
 

Walter Fujii 
 
 



Fujiitrees Consulting 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
 
 
The following terms and conditions apply to all oral and written reports and correspondence pertaining 
to the consultations, inspections and activities of Fujiitrees Consulting hereinafter referred to as 
“Consultant”. 
 
1. Any legal description provided to the Consultant is assumed to be correct.  No responsibility is 
assumed for matters legal in character nor is any opinion rendered as to the quality of any title.  
 
2. It is assumed that any property referred to in any report or in conjunction with any services 
performed by the Consultant, is not in violation of any applicable codes, ordinances, statutes, or other 
governmental regulations, and that any titles and ownership to any property are assumed to be good 
and marketable.  Any existing liens and encumbrances have been disregarded. 
 
3.   Possession of this report or a copy thereof does not imply any right of publication or use for 
any purpose, without the express permission of the Consultant and the Client to whom the report was 
issued.  Loss, removal or alteration of any part of a report invalidates the entire appraisal/evaluation. 
 
4. The scope of any report or other correspondence is limited to the trees and conditions 
specifically mentioned in those reports and correspondence.  The Consultant assumes no liability for 
the failure of trees or parts of trees, either inspected or otherwise.  The Consultant assumes no 
responsibility to report on the condition of any tree or landscape feature not specifically requested by 
the named client. 
 
5. No tree described in this report was climbed, unless otherwise stated.  The Consultant cannot 
take responsibility for any defects, which could only have been discovered by climbing.  A full root 
crown examination (RCX), consisting of excavating the soil around the tree to uncover the root crown 
and major buttress roots was not performed unless otherwise stated.  We cannot take responsibility for 
any root defects, which could only have been discovered by such an inspection.  
  
6. The Consultant shall not be required to provide further documentation, give testimony, be 
deposed, or attend court by reason of this appraisal/report unless subsequent contractual 
arrangements are made, including payment of additional fees for such services as described by the 
consultant or in the fee schedules or contract. 
 
7. The Consultant offers no guarantees or warrantees, either expressed or implied, as to the 
suitability of the information contained in the reports for any purpose.  It remains the responsibility of the 
client to determine applicability to his/her particular case. 
 
8. Any report and the values, observations, and recommendations expressed therein represent the 
professional opinion of the Consultant, and the fee for services is in no manner contingent upon the 
reporting of a specified value nor upon any particular finding to be reported. 
 
9. Any photographs, diagrams, graphs, sketches, or other graphic material included in any report, 
being intended solely as visual aids, are not necessarily to scale and should not be construed as 
engineering reports or surveys, unless otherwise noted in the report.  Any reproductions of graphs 
material or the work produce of any other persons is intended solely for the purpose of clarification and 
ease of reference.  Inclusion of said information does not constitute a representation by the Consultant 
as to the sufficiency or accuracy of that information. 
 
10. Trees can be managed, but they cannot be controlled.  To live near trees is to accept some 
degree of risk.  The only way to eliminate all risk associated with trees is to eliminate all trees. 

 
11.        Payment terms are net payable upon receipt of invoice.  All balances due beyond 30 days of 
invoice date will be charged a service fee of 1.5 percent per month (18.0% APR).  All checks returned 
for insufficient funds or any other reason will be subject to a $25.00 service fee.  Advance payment of 
fees may be required in some cases. 



 

    ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 

Wednesday, December 18, 2013 at 6:30 p.m.  
City Administration Building  

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park 
 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Chris DeCardy at 6:35 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
Present: Allen Bedwell, Chris DeCardy (Chair), Kristin Kuntz-Duriseti, Scott Marshall, Mitchel 

Slomiak (Vice Chair), Christina Smolke 
 
Absent: Deborah Martin 
  
 
A. PUBLIC COMMENT: None 
 
B. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
B1. Approve November 20, 2013 Minutes (Attachment)  
 
ACTION: Motion and Second (Slomiak/Kuntz-Duriseti) to approve the November 23, 2013 
minutes passes (4-0-3), (Absent: Martin, Abstain: Bedwell/Decardy) 
 
B2.  Consider a Recommendation on a Request to Remove 42 Heritage Trees Associated With 

the Construction of a New Recreation Center Building, New Leasing Office, and 
Comprehensive Landscaping and Site Improvements Located at 350 Sharon Park Drive 
(Attachment) 

There was a consensus among the Commission that it greatly appreciates the move by the City 
to include the Commission in this type of review and believes this it is good progress to a better 
process.  Looking at the eight heritage tree ordinance criteria, the EQC believes that one or 
more trees can be preserved with primary reasons based on criteria number six while being 
sensitive to criteria number two.  Given the timing of the proposed project, it was difficult to give 
the same diligence as when the EQC reviews usual heritage tree appeals that include one or a 
few trees (given that this project includes 42 for potential removal plus broader issues).    

While having this type of review is an improvement in the current heritage tree review process, 
the full process of reviewing projects that impact heritage trees must be streamlined to ensure 
the interactions and timing between the City’s Planning department, Planning Commission, 
EQC, and City Council works most efficiently and effectively so that both opponents and 
proponents of a given project are not unnecessarily burdened by the process or believe that 
their points of view have not been adequately reviewed. 

 

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/12/12/file_attachments/257509/November_20_2013_Minutes__257509.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_98/2013/12/12/file_attachments/257502/120813%2B-%2B350%2BSharon%2BPark%2BDrive%2B%2528EQC%2529__257502.pdf
vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT M

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



 
Environmental Quality Commission Minutes – Page 2 

Public Comment 
 Dennis Hanley, former resident of Sharon Green Apartments, stated that he does not 
support the proposed project and stated that there are alternatives to placing the fire line. 
 

 Uzi Bar-Gadda, resident of Sharon Green Apartments, stated that he does not support the 
proposed project because the development plan needs to be reviewed thoroughly, 
improvements need to be made to the design of the project, development will lead to 
increased traffic on Sand Hill Road, and that there needs to be a proper maintenance plan 
for the trees on site. 

 
 Tara Fogel, resident at Sharon Green Apartments, stated that she does not support the 
proposed project because the health and safety of the residents is not being taken into 
consideration. Steps need to be taken in order to minimize the impacts that the 
development will have on the tenants and trees.  

 
 Alexander Fogel, resident at Sharon Green Apartments, stated that he does not support 
the proposed project because construction over a three-year period will pose significant 
health risks to tenants. There are prop 65 warnings throughout the apartment complex and 
tenants will be exposed to toxins such as asbestos which can cause lung disease and 
cancer. Windows alone are not a barrier to these risks and residents need to be provided 
with better protection. 

 
 Amy Poon, former resident at Sharon Green Apartments, stated that she does not support 
the project because there are multiple maintenance issues that need to be addressed prior 
to the proposed project, which include making the property wheelchair accessible, 
installing new windows for each apartment, and ensuring that safeguards are put in place 
to protect tenants. Too many trees are being removed and each tree needs to be 
examined thoroughly prior to moving forward. 

 
 Walt Fujii, of Fujiitrees Consulting, commented that among the trees proposed for removal, 
some are in healthy condition and do not need to be removed. 

ACTION: Motion and Second (Slomiak/Bedwell) that the following recommendations be 
considered prior to the approval of the project, passes (6-0-1), (Absent: Deborah Martin). 

1.       The applicant reconsider trees that will be removed for building construction by submitting   
structure designs that preserve trees; and 

2.       As a condition of the development permit, the project and existing/future property owners 
must ensure that there are “N” number of heritage trees on the whole property at all times going 
forward. The number "N" should be determined to be no less than the current total of heritage 
trees on the entire site, but also could be set at a higher level or set to increase in future years. 
A certified arborist must confirm and document the total number and locations of heritage trees 
on the property and then annually certify that the number of healthy and well maintained 
heritage trees is equal to or greater than "N."  Any new trees planted on the site must be from 
city approved list going forward.  Particular magnificent specimens should be identified and 
singled out for special protection. In addition, the development permit should include the 
following: 



 
Environmental Quality Commission Minutes – Page 3 

a.       Property owner should pay for its own oversight and city oversight of this 
permit requirement; and  

b.       Ensure this permit standard holds when the property is sold; and 

c.       Failure to maintain the required number of trees or proper maintenance to 
keep trees healthy shall result in a 4-to-1 tree replacement in addition to a 
significant financial penalty (which EQC recommends be used to further 
the city's heritage tree protection and maintenance program). 

B3. Consider a Recommendation to the City Council Regarding the Draft 2014-2019 Capital 
Improvement Plan (Memo from City Manager) (Draft 2014-2019 Capital Improvement 
Plan) 

 
ACTION: No Action. Staff presented the commission with an overview of the Capital 
Improvement Plan process and updated the commission on environmentally related projects.  
 
B4. Receive Update on Environmental Quality Awards 
 
ACTION: No Action. The Commission tabled this item for a future commission meeting. 
 
B5. Discuss Environmental Quality Commission Two Year Work Plan Update and 

Subcommittee Changes (Work Plan and Subcommittee Attachment) 
  
ACTION: No Action. The Commission tabled this item for a future commission meeting. 
 
C. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
The following updates were received by commission: 

 
C1.   Staff Update on Environmental Policies to be Considered by City Council 
 
C2.  Commission Subcommittee Reports and Announcements 
 
C3.  Discuss Future Agenda Items 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:44 p.m. 
 
Meeting minutes prepared by Vanessa Marcadejas, Environmental Programs Specialist.  
 
 

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/12/12/file_attachments/257494/Memo%2Bfrom%2BAlex%2Babout%2BDraft%2BCIP%2B2014-19__257494.pdf
http://www.menlopark.org/departments/pwk/cip/Draft5YRCIP.pdf
http://www.menlopark.org/departments/pwk/cip/Draft5YRCIP.pdf
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/12/12/file_attachments/257513/B5%2B-%2BEQC%2BWork%2BPlan__257513.pdf


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

POLICE DEPARTMENT   
  

 
 Council Meeting Date: March 4, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-039 
 

 Agenda Item #: F-1 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Approve an Agreement Between the City of Menlo 

Park and Facebook to Fund a Police Officer for a 
Three-Year Term with a Two-Year Option for 
Facebook, and Adding an Additional Full Time 
Police Officer Position to the Department for the 
Duration of the Agreement 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that Council review and approve an agreement between the City of 
Menlo Park and Facebook to fund a sworn Community Safety Police Officer for a term 
of three years, with an option for Facebook to extend for an additional two years, adding 
an additional full time police officer position to the department for the duration of the 
agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In October 2013, representatives of the City of Menlo Park Police Department, Town of 
Atherton Police Department, Menlo City School District, Ravenswood School District 
and Sequoia High School District met to discuss opportunities for the re-deployment of 
School Resources Officers (SRO) in and around the schools.  Discussed were the 
benefits of such a program including school safety and security, truancy, security and 
crime reduction in neighboring areas and community engagement by the police with 
children in our schools.   
 
Later in the month, Chief Jonsen and Commander Bertini were approached by 
Facebook representatives John Tenanes and Carla Gray to inquire about greater police 
presence in the Belle Haven neighborhood.  Facebook officials had heard about the 
prior SRO discussions and the value of having additional officers who would handle the 
neighborhood issues such as truancy, school and business safety and overall 
neighborhood security. The prospect of having a dedicated officer to work on these 
community concerns would benefit not only the schools in the area but the businesses 
as well.  Facebook expressed interest in funding such a position.  For Facebook to fund 
such a position, one critical condition is that the position be a sworn police officer from 
the Menlo City Police Department.   
 
 

AGENDA ITEM F-1



Staff Report #: 14-039  

 
ANALYSIS 
 
The proposed Community Safety Police Officer would be a sworn, fulltime police officer, 
housed at the new Neighborhood Service Center on Hamilton Avenue, in close 
proximity to several large school and business campuses.  The duties and expectations 
of the new Community Safety Officer are detailed in Attachment A of the proposed 
agreement.  For the position to succeed, the incumbent will need to have an appropriate 
temperament for working with juveniles, families and school staff.   
 
Facebook will only fund this position for Menlo Park, as they wish to benefit and partner 
with the community in which they are headquartered.  This Menlo Park officer will also 
assist as a liaison between Facebook and other large companies and corporations 
within the City.   
 
The proposed agreement is for three years with a two year option.  As the term of the 
agreement nears expiration, the Chief will meet with Facebook representatives and 
review the effectiveness of the Community Safety Police Officer position and, if 
appropriate seek an extension.  If the review results in the agreement being terminated, 
the position would then be eliminated.   
 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
  
Facebook proposed to fully fund direct costs for a full time police officer position for 
three (3) years with an option to extend for another two (2) years, which would act as 
the above described community safety police officer. The position would be hired as 
quickly as possible after the approval of the agreement.  Some indirect costs would 
need to be absorbed by the City would could include any specialized training and patrol 
vehicle.   
 
For the remainder of the Fiscal Year 2013/14, total cost (salary and benefits) for this 
position will be prorated based upon the following annual costs.  Each year thereafter 
would be based upon the full annual cost.  Based upon the attached financial analysis, 
the annual cost for this position would be approximately $194,000.  For the remainder of 
the current fiscal year, it is anticipated that the cost would be $45,000.   
 
The total salary and benefits costs of this position for fiscal years 14/15 through 17/18 
would be similar except for any increase in retirement costs or salary, which would be 
dependent on contract negotiations.  Historically, this increase would be 3-5% a year. 
 
A breakdown of the aforementioned costs is found in Attachment B of the draft 
agreement. 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report #: 14-039  

POLICY ISSUES 
 
This proposal is consistent with the Council adopted goals for 2014 seeking greater 
public safety citywide.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Not applicable. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. DRAFT Agreement between the City of Menlo Park and Facebook and 
attachments  

 
Report prepared by: 
Dave Bertini 
Police Commander 
 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF MENLO PARK AND FACEBOOK, INC., 
REGARDING DONATIONS TO FUND A COMMUNITY SAFETY POLICE OFFICER POSITION 

THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of this ___ day of _______________, 
2014 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF MENLO PARK, a California municipal 
corporation (the “City”), and FACEBOOK, INC., a Delaware corporation, (“Facebook”). 

R E C I T A L S  

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on the basis of the following facts, understandings and 
intentions of the City and Facebook (the “parties”): 

A. Facebook has expressed a willingness to make donations to the City for a term of three 
years (with the option in Facebook’s sole and absolute discretion to extend the term for an additional two 
years) to be used by the City to help fund a new full-time Community Safety Police Officer position at the 
new City Service Center/Police Substation located on Hamilton Drive (the “Position”). 

B. The City desires to receive such donations from Facebook to help fund the Position. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 

1. The “Term” of this Agreement and the parties’ respective obligations hereunder, shall 
commence on the date the City fills the Position and shall end on the third anniversary of such date. 
Facebook in its sole and absolute discretion, but subject to City’s approval, shall have the option to 
extend the Term for an additional two years, for a total Term of five years.  If Facebook elects to 
extend the Term for an additional two years, the Cap (as defined below) will be increased by 
$400,000. Facebook shall have no obligation to fund the Position, and the City shall have no 
obligation to continue the Position, following the expiration of the Term. 

2. The City agrees to create and fill the Position, which shall have the duties and 
responsibilities outlined in Attachment A, at the estimated annualized salary and benefits costs 
described in Attachment B, which attachments are incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. Facebook will make an annual donation to the City for the express purposes of 
funding the Position, in an amount equal to the lesser of: (a) the City’s actual annual salary and 
benefit costs of the Position (which shall be prorated for partial years) or (b) $200,000. Facebook 
will be invoiced annually, to the addresses listed in Section 12 no more than 60 days in advance of 
the commencement of the City’s fiscal year (July 1st), based on the City’s estimated salary and 
benefit costs of the Position for the fiscal year, which invoice shall break down the amount invoiced 
into the expense categories listed in Attachment B (each an “Invoice”). 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Facebook’s cumulative donations under this 
Agreement will be capped at $600,000 (“Cap”). The City, and not Facebook, will be responsible for 
all costs of the Position exceeding, as applicable (a) an annualized amount of $200,000 (prorated for 
any partial fiscal years) and (b) the Cap. 

Within 60 days following each fiscal year and the expiration of the Term, the City shall 
provide an accounting to Facebook of the actual salary and benefit costs of the Position for that fiscal 
year or partial fiscal year (an “Accounting”). Such Accounting shall detail the actual costs of the 
Position for that fiscal year (or partial fiscal year) by the expense categories listed in Attachment B. 
To the extent the amount of any Invoice paid by Facebook exceeds the actual costs disclosed on a 
corresponding Accounting (a “Balance”), the City shall credit such Balance to Facebook on the next 

ATTACHMENT A



 

Invoice or remit the Balance to Facebook with the last Accounting hereunder. Conversely, to the 
extent any Invoice paid by Facebook is less than the actual costs disclosed on a corresponding 
Accounting, subject to the annual and cumulative donation limitations set forth in this Section 3, 
Facebook shall pay such Balance to the City within 60 days of its receipt of such Accounting. 
Accountings shall be sent to Facebook at the addresses listed in Section 12. 

4. The City shall have complete control and responsibility for hiring a qualified 
individual into the Position (the “CS Officer”), for employing the CS Officer and for fulfilling all 
applicable legal and contractual obligations with respect to employment of the CS Officer. The CS 
Officer will be an employee of the City and not an employee of Facebook or its affiliates. Facebook 
shall have no control, and shall have no right of control, over the hiring, employment  or management 
of or payment of compensation or provisions of benefits to the CS Officer. Neither the City, 
Facebook, their respective representatives nor the CS Officer shall represent that the CS Officer is an 
employee or representative of Facebook or its affiliates. The City shall be liable for its own acts and 
omissions with respect to the Position and the CS Officer, as well as for the acts and omissions of the 
CS Officer. Facebook will not be liable for any of the acts and omissions of the CS Officer, or of the 
City with respect to the Position or CS Officer. 

5. Each of the parties to this Agreement may pursue any remedy at law or equity available 
for the breach of any provision of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, temporary or permanent 
injunctive relief or restraining orders. 

6. This Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties. There are 
no oral or written representations, understandings, undertakings or agreements that are not contained or 
expressly referred to herein, and any such representations, understandings or agreements are superseded 
by this Agreement. No evidence of any such representations, understandings or agreements shall be 
admissible in any proceeding of any kind or nature relating to the terms or conditions of this Agreement 
or its interpretation or breach. 

7. This Agreement is made and entered into for the sole protection and benefit of the 
signatory parties. No other persons shall have any right of action based upon any provision of this 
Agreement except for the parties’ respective successors and assigns. 

8. Each party hereby represents and warrants to the other that the person executing this 
Agreement on its behalf has the authority to bind that party. For convenience, the parties may execute this 
Agreement on separate signature pages, which, when attached hereto, shall constitute one complete 
agreement. 

9. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California applicable to contracts entered into and wholly to be performed within the State of 
California, without giving effect to conflict of law or choice of law provisions under California law or any 
other jurisdiction. 

10. The parties agree that this Agreement may not be varied in its terms by an oral agreement 
or representation or otherwise, and may only be amended or modified by an instrument in writing 
executed by all parties. 

11. Each party agrees that it will bear its own costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees 
and costs) incurred in connection with this Agreement. 

12. Any notice, demand, request or other communication required or permitted to be given 
under this Agreement, (1) shall be made in writing, (2) shall be delivered by one of the following 



 

 

methods: (i) by personal delivery (with notice deemed given when delivered personally); (ii) by overnight 
courier (with notice deemed given upon written verification of receipt); or (iii) by certified or registered 
mail, return receipt requested (with notice deemed given upon verification of receipt); and (3) shall be 
addressed to a party as provided in this Section or such other address as such party may request by notice 
given in accordance with the terms of this Section. 

Notice to the City shall be provided as follows: 

City of Menlo Park 
701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Attention: Police Chief 

Notice to Facebook shall be provided as follows: 

Facebook, Inc. 
1 Hacker Way 
Menlo Park, California 94025 
Attention: Director of Facilities 

With a copy to: 

Facebook, Inc. 
1 Hacker Way 
Menlo Park, California 94025 
Attention: Real Estate Counsel 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties as of the day and 
year first above written. 

THE CITY: 
 
CITY OF MENLO PARK, 
a California municipal corporation 
 
By:      
Name:      
Title:      

FACEBOOK: 
 
FACEBOOK, INC., 
a Delaware corporation 
 
By:      
Name:      
Title:      

 



Attachment A 

 
The proposed Community Safety Police Officer will be working from the new City Service Center / 
Police Substation located on Hamilton Drive.  The duties and expectations of the new Community Safety 
Officer are as follows: 
 

 Serve as a first responder to any critical incident occurring at a school within the City of Menlo 
Park or a neighboring jurisdiction 

 Liaise and collaborate with schools in all school districts and with schools within Menlo Park and 
surrounding jurisdictions 

 Liaise and collaborate with School Resource Officers (SRO) from neighboring jurisdictions  
 Gather intelligence (gangs, taggers, narcotics information and other safety issues) 
 Pass pertinent information to patrol / detectives 
 Create, initiate and manage a juvenile diversion program for juvenile first offenders and low 

grade crimes 
o Collaborate with Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (PCRC) for counseling services 

and work with offenders’ families 
o Educate and collaborate with patrol / detective units on the use of the juvenile diversion 

program 
 Create, initiate and manage an area-wide truancy prevention and enforcement program 

throughout the area 
o Work in collaboration with other local police agencies, schools and school districts 
o Educate parents through school presentations on truancy issues and the truancy program  
o Educate patrol officers in truancy prevention and enforcement 
o Conduct truancy sweeps 

 Liaise and collaborate with San Mateo County Juvenile Probation 
 Assist in the creation and revision of school safety plans 
 Conduct yearly school safety plan reviews 
 Conduct periodic school site safety reviews 
 Work with schools and local businesses to conduct periodic safety drills including but not limited 

to: 
o Fire drills 
o Lockdown drills 
o Violent Intruder drills 
o Earthquake drills 

 Work with the Traffic Unit to address pedestrian safety, bicycle safety and traffic congestion 
issues at schools 

 Participate in Parent Teacher Organization meetings when requested 
 Participate in on-going school faculty and employee training when requested 
 Upon request, prepare and provide a variety of presentations related to school safety and 

prevention of juvenile crime 
 Liaise and collaborate with local businesses and with neighborhood and citizen groups to address 

specific issues dealing with juveniles and crime 
 
The requirements for this position will include: 

 Full time police officer who has successfully completed probation 
 Genuine interest in interacting with juvenile’s parents and schools 
 Genuine interest and willingness to work with other city departments, public and private 

agencies, and members of other law enforcement agencies 



 An individual who is outgoing and has the ability to interact and communicate skillfully at all 
levels 

 Ability to operate on a 4/10 schedule, but is willing to adjust their schedule to accommodate 
special details around schools and other community or business events 

 
Due to the specialized nature of this assignment, an officer selected must have a desired skill set that 
includes the aptitude and appropriate temperament for working with juveniles, families and school staff.  
During the selection process for this position, the department will make all efforts to have representatives 
from local schools and businesses as part of the interview process. 



Attachment B 

 
Facebook shall reimburse City for the following salary and benefit components for each year of the term 
of the Agreement. The total costs for FY 13/14 prorated for the partial year will be calculated as follows: 
 
Salary Component   
Hourly Rate 52.41  
    
Annual Salary 108,931 
Special Assignment Pay 5,447 
Longevity Pay 10,508 
POST Incentive Pay 13,135 
Bi-Lingual Pay 1,950 
Uniform Allowance 1,040 
    
Subtotal: Salary $141,011 
    
Benefits Component   
    
PERS Retirement 29,027 
Health Care 15,558 
Dental/Vision 1,380 
Medicare 1,939 
Term Life / LTD 1,393 
OPEB (Retirement Health) 3,267 
    
Subtotal: Benefits $52,564 
    
  

Total: Salary and Benefit Cost 

for FY 13/14 

$193,575  

  

 
The total salary and benefits costs of this position for fiscal years 14/15 through 17/18 would be similar 
except for any increase in retirement costs, salary/hourly rate, health care costs, etc., which would be 
dependent on contract negotiations, and changes to employer contribution for PERS retirement costs 
which are set by PERS. 
 
Facebook shall not be responsible for payment of any overtime payable to the person filling the position, 
or other costs above and beyond those listed above including but not limited to training, equipment, 
vehicle, etc. 



 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT   
  

 

 Council Meeting Date: March 4, 2014 

 Staff Report #: 14-036 
 

 Agenda Item #: F-2 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Accept the 2013-14 Mid-Year Financial Summary 

and Approve Recommended Changes to the 
Expenditure Appropriation and Revenue Forecast 

 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council accept the 2013-14 Mid-Year Financial 
Summary.  This summary contains updates to the current fiscal year’s revenue 
projections, as well as changes to the expenditure appropriation for the General Fund, 
Water Operations Fund, Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Fund, and Rec In-Lieu 
Fund.  Staff recommends Council approve the proposed changes presented in this 
report.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 

This report summarizes the City’s mid-year financial status by providing an analysis of 
revenues and expenditures through the first half of the fiscal year.  The intent of this 
report is to provide Council with an update on how major revenue sources and 
departmental expenditures are tracking in comparison to the adjusted budget.  
Emphasis will be placed on an analysis of the City’s major General Fund revenues, as 
the overall health of those revenues is instrumental to the City’s ability to maintain, and 
potentially enhance, services in the future.    
 
Although the focus of the mid-year review is the City’s General Fund, this report also 
provides an update for other funds where changes to the expenditure appropriation are 
being requested or there are material changes to the revenue projection.  Mid-year 
revenue and expenditure results and projections discussed in this report serve as a 
good baseline position from which to begin developing the fiscal year 2014-15 operating 
budget.  With that said, during the budget development process, revenue projections, 
expenditure outlays, and the long-term forecast will continue to be refined for inclusion 
into the City Manager’s fiscal year 2014-15 recommended budget.  That document will 
include a final update of both revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year, in 
addition to the recommended fiscal year 2014-15 budget and 10-year forecast. 
 
This report also includes a very preliminary update of the 10-year forecast.  This update 
predominantly factors in material changes in assumptions for specific revenue and 
expenditure sources.  For example, development activity remains at a very high level 
and is expected to continue to remain at this level in the near term before tapering off to 

AGENDA ITEM F-2



Staff Report #: 14-036  

a more sustainable level.  This, among other factors, has been incorporated into the 
updated 10-year forecast.  As with the other elements of the recommended budget, the 
10-year forecast will continue to be refined until the budget is delivered to Council in 
June.  One of the most important elements of the 10-year forecast that has not yet been 
updated is the projection for additional increases in the City’s pension contribution rates.  
City staff is currently working with a consulting actuary to develop a projection for long-
term contribution rates that can be included in the forecast.  This particular element of 
the forecast will be discussed in detail in budget transmittal memo.   
 
ANALYSIS 
 

Economic Conditions   
 
National Economy – Broad Economic Indicators 
The economy has continued to improve throughout the year, and several major 
economic indicators released late in 2013 suggest that the national economy is poised 
for a strong 2014.  Improved consumer confidence, better than expected GDP growth, 
and an improved outlook for home sales were among the factors cited when optimism is 
expressed regarding the overall health of the economy.  Further, with the inflation 
outlook remaining below 2.5% and the unemployment rate continuing to improve, the 
Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) began to reduce its monthly bond purchases.  
As of January 31, 2014, the FOMC had reduced purchases from $85 million per month 
to $65 million per month.  While this is another great indicator of current economic 
conditions, the FOMC does still feel it is appropriate to keep the federal funds rate at the 
current near-zero level to continue to keep longer-term interest rates low, support 
mortgage markets, and help improve other financial conditions.  This will remain a factor 
in what the City is able to earn on its investment portfolio, and it also signifies that 
despite a much more positive outlook on the national economy, continued intervention 
through monetary policy is necessary to maintain this recovery. 
 
Furthermore, the market remains volatile, as investors react to any news that could 
potentially threaten the economic recovery.  After an extremely strong 2013, a year in 
which the overall stock market had its best annual gains in over a decade, January 
2014 produced dismal results.  Overall, the Dow Jones Industrial Average dropped 
5.3% in January, while the S&P 500 dropped 3.6%, which represented the worst 
monthly percentage declines for both since May 2012.  Slower growth for U.S. 
manufacturing and construction, concern about growth rates in China and throughout 
global emerging markets, and the impact of the recent easing of the Fed’s economic 
stimulus were among the reasons cited for the market slump.  While the market has 
bounced back through mid-February, continued volatility is expected going forward. 
 
State Economy 
The State’s economy has also continued to improve over the past several years, with 
the second half of 2013 yielding particularly good results.  The State Controller’s Office 
recently issued a statement indicating that revenues during the first half of the 2013-14 
fiscal year were well ahead of estimates, citing the technology industry, rising exports, 
increased consumer confidence, and new housing among the factors causing the 
improved outlook.  As has been the case throughout California’s economic recovery, the 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

Bay Area and other coastal areas have rebounded much more quickly and decisively, 
while the inland areas, particularly the agricultural areas, have lagged behind.  Overall, 
California’s unemployment rate is currently at 8.3%, which is a dramatic improvement 
from the 12.2% rate in 2009.  The regional differences in unemployment, however, 
demonstrate the stark contrast in the economic recovery between the coastal areas and 
the inland areas.  Whereas unemployment is down to 4.6% in San Mateo County and 
5.7% in Santa Clara County, it still hovers in double digits in some of the inland areas 
like Fresno County. 
 
With California’s populous coastal areas driving the economic recovery, the State’s 
budget outlook is better than it has been in a number of years.  The Governor released 
his fiscal year 2014-15 budget proposal in early January, the highlights of which include 
increased reserve levels, prioritization on paying down debts, funding for deferred 
infrastructure maintenance projects, and balanced forecasts through fiscal year 2017-
18. 
 
The Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO), which provides an overview and analysis of the 
proposed budget, indicated that the Governor’s proposal continues to make “substantial 
progress” in addressing its ongoing budgetary problems.  The State’s ability to make 
this progress is the result of updated revenue forecasts that reflect the State’s improved 
economic conditions.  One of the key revenue drivers of the improved economic outlook 
is the State’s largest revenue source, the Personal Income Tax (PIT), which is also its 
most volatile.  In addition to PIT being applied to traditional hourly wages and salaries, it 
is also paid on capital gains from the sale of securities, bonds, and real estate.  This 
portion is what creates the volatility, as capital gains are determined by unpredictable 
stock prices.  With forecasts based on higher PIT than had previously been expected, 
predominantly as a result of capital gains, it is important to note that the balanced 
budget the State has achieved is not without risk.  The reliance on capital gains creates 
volatility and could have a negative impact on the budget going forward.  With that said, 
the State is in as good of a position as it has been in a while due to the recent 
acceleration of the economic recovery.   
 
General Fund    
 
Overall, the General Fund is in better position than was originally projected in the 
adopted fiscal year 2013-14 budget.  Offsetting some of the Council-approved 
expenditure increases that have occurred over the course of the fiscal year, as well as 
the increases being requested as a part of this mid-year update, are increases in 
several of the General Fund’s major revenue sources.  The mid-year status of 
revenues, expenditures, and the projected ending surplus are discussed in more detail 
in the following sections of this report.  
 
General Fund - Revenues  
 
The table below shows the mid-year assessment of fiscal year 2013-14 General Fund 
revenues.  Following the table is a discussion of the significant changes to the various 
revenue sources between the 2013-14 adopted budget and the 2013-14 updated 
amount.  This portion of the report will focus exclusively on the current fiscal year, with 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

modifications to the 10-year revenue forecast being discussed in that section of the 
report. For comparison purposes, the table also includes the City’s actual General Fund 
revenues for fiscal years 2011-12 and 2012-13. 
 

 
 

Property Taxes – The updated projection for fiscal year 2013-14 is up by $760,000, or 
5.4%, over the adopted budget amount.  This increase is almost entirely the result of 
Excess ERAF coming in much higher than expected.  Because Excess ERAF is 
applicable to only three counties in the State and is considered to be an “at risk” 
revenue, the City has been very conservative in its projections for this revenue source.  
The fiscal year 2013-14 adopted budget projected Excess ERAF at half of the prior 
year’s amount, or about $650,000.  The City learned late in 2013 that it would get a full 
share of Excess ERAF this year, which amounts to nearly $1.6 million.   
 
The largest source of property tax is the secured tax, and amount of secured tax the 
City has received over the past several years has fluctuated due to one-time proceeds 
from the dissolution of the former Community Development Agency and ongoing 
uncertainty related to the Excess ERAF.  With the former Community Development 
Agency’s assets sold and its expenditures being primarily debt service going forward, 
fiscal year 2013-14 secured taxes include an additional $150,000 share of the former 
Agency’s tax increment.  This amount is expected to be an ongoing addition to the 
secured tax base.  Excess ERAF, on the other hand, will continue to be an uncertain 
source of revenue and will be discussed further in the section of the report highlighting 
the updates to the 10-year forecast. 
 
Sales Tax – The mid-year updated projection for sales tax is being reduced by nearly 
$200,000, to $6,136,400.  The primary reason sales tax is not expected to meet initial 
expectations is due to the impact of the Triple Flip, which is a State-mandated 
mechanism that takes 25% of our sales tax and replaces it with property tax paid for 
with Education Revenue Augmentation Funds (ERAF).  Because of a reduction in ERAF 
in 2012-13, there were not enough funds to cover the entire Triple Flip obligation, which 

City of Menlo Park

General Fund Revenues - Summary

2013-14 2013-14

2011-12 2012-13 Adopted Adjusted Percent

Actual Actual Budget Budget Change

Property Taxes $13,239,856 $15,731,889 $13,955,000 $14,715,000 5.4%

Sales Tax 5,938,310 6,043,870 6,331,400 6,136,400 -3.1%

Transient Occupancy Tax 2,939,475 3,468,256 3,743,000 4,100,000 9.5%

Utility Users Tax 1,080,435 1,095,256 1,184,620 1,135,000 -4.2%

Franchise Fees 1,758,705 1,765,216 1,812,300 1,812,300 0.0%

Licenses & Permits 3,685,556 4,447,630 4,459,465 6,559,465 47.1%

Intergovernmental 1,158,010 866,287 741,704 836,917 12.8%

Fines 1,067,327 998,259 1,319,980 1,149,980 -12.9%

Interest and Rent Income 761,326 568,051 777,712 627,712 -19.3%

Charges for Services 6,743,126 7,088,405 7,795,222 7,595,222 -2.6%

Transfers & Other 606,176 1,178,628 429,444 1,206,068 180.8%

Total Revenue $38,978,302 $43,251,747 $42,549,847 $45,874,064 7.8%



Staff Report #: 14-036  

negatively impacts the City’s 2013-14 sales tax revenue.  Otherwise, actual sales tax 
revenues are tracking pretty close to expectations for the year, although the impact of 
the Facebook construction on sales tax has been a little slower to materialize than 
expected in the first half of the year.  That has been predominantly offset by $300,000 in 
non-recurring sales tax revenue received in the third quarter of the calendar year. 
 
Transient Occupancy Tax – Based on revenue received through the first half of the 
fiscal year, the projection for Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) has been revised upward 
$357,000, or nearly 10%.  The 2013-14 fiscal year is the first full fiscal year with the 
12% tax rate in place.  This rate increase, along with strong occupancy and room rates, 
is driving the overall increase in revenues. 
 
Utility Users Tax – The adopted 2013-14 budget projected Utility Users Tax (UUT) 
growth of just over 8%.  Based on remittances through December, UUT is tracking 
above last year’s amount, however, not at a level that would suggest 8% year-over-year 
growth is likely.  As such, the mid-year projection for UUT has been revised downward 
by nearly 50,000, or 4.2%, to $1,135,000. 
 
Franchise Fees – The majority of franchise fees are collected later in the fiscal year, 
and as such, it is difficult to determine from the small amount collected so far this fiscal 
year if projections for this revenue source are on track.  For the purpose of this report, 
the current projection will be held flat.  An updated projection will be made later in the 
fiscal year once the revenues start being remitted, and an updated projection will be 
included with the recommended fiscal year 2014-15 budget. 
 
Licenses and Permits – Significant building permitting activity related to large-scale 
projects, as well as a surge in single-family residential development, is driving up 
permitting revenues.  The mid-year projection for this revenue source reflects an 
expected increase of $2.1 million, or 47%, over the initial projection made for the 
adopted budget.  While this is a significant increase in the General Fund’s expected 
revenues, it is extremely important to note that there are corresponding and offsetting 
expenditures that go with these increased revenues.  Further, the revenues lead the 
expenditures, meaning the City receives its revenues in advance of the permitting 
activity taking place.  For example, of the $2.1 million in additional revenue expected 
this fiscal year, there is only expected to be $1.1 million in additional expenditures.  This 
$1 million difference, however, is not available as general purpose revenue, as it will 
need to be expended in future years to complete the permitting work.  This timing issue 
will be reflected in the updated 10-year forecast, which is provided as Attachment A to 
this report. 
 
Intergovernmental Revenues – The mid-year projection for intergovernmental 
revenues reflects an increase of nearly $100,000, or 13%, over the original budget.  
This increase is due to the Police Department receiving a grant in the amount of 
$52,584 from the State for enhanced traffic enforcement operations, which Council 
accepted and appropriated as a part of staff report #13-168, and a $42,629 grant from 
the State that allowed for an additional part-time preschool classroom to be opened at 
the Belle Haven Child Development Center.  Appropriation of the $42,629 in grant 
revenues for the Belle Haven Child Development Center is being requested as a part of 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

the approval of this report.  Because these increases in revenue are due to grant 
funding, there are corresponding increases in expenditures. 
 
Fines – This revenue category consists of traffic-related fines, and initial projections for 
fiscal year 2013-14 reflected expected revenues based on a fully operational traffic 
enforcement program.  This program has not been fully operational for the entire fiscal 
year, but with the recent installation of the fifth red-light camera and the addition of two 
motor officers, revenue should begin to increase, although it is not expected to meet 
initial fiscal year 2013-14 estimates.  To account for this, the mid-year projection for this 
revenue category has been reduced by $170,000, to $1,149,980.  However, because 
the program was not fully functional for the first half of the year, there are some 
offsetting expenditure savings that will also be reflected in this update and discussed 
further later in this report. 
 
Interest and Rent Income – Yields on the City’s investment portfolio are currently 
0.52% and reflect the continued minimal return on safe and liquid investments.  Based 
on actual interest income received through December, the original projection for interest 
is not expected to be met.  As such, the overall revenue projection for the interest and 
rent income category is being reduced at mid-year by $150,000, to $627,712.   
 
Charges for Services – This category covers a broad array of City services, including 
recreation programs, planning activities, and library charges, among other things.  
Aggressive growth in this revenue category was planned to account for the new 
recreation facilities and expanded service offerings, as well as the high level of planning 
activity. Through the end of December, total revenue projections for this category are 
tracking slightly below expectations.  As such, the updated mid-year projection has 
been reduced by $200,000, or 2.6%, to account for potentially lower revenues than 
originally estimated.  This revised estimate still reflects substantial growth, more than 
7%, over fiscal year 2012-13 actuals. 
 
Transfers and Other – This category represents operating transfers into the General 
Fund from other funds to offset some of the cost of General Fund overhead, such as the 
Finance and Human Resources functions, which benefit all funds, as well as any other 
revenues that are not categorized elsewhere.  The projection for this revenue category 
has increased by nearly $777,000 over the original projection to account for the 
proceeds from the sale of the property on Hamilton Avenue (~$772,000), which is a 
non-recurring revenue, and a contribution from the Library Foundation ($4,800). 
 
General Fund - Expenditures  
 
The following table shows the mid-year assessment of 2013-14 General Fund 
expenditures by department.  There are two columns for fiscal year 2013-14, one for the 
original adopted budget and one for the current budget.  The current budget column 
reflects all Council-approved budget amendments made so far this fiscal year, as well 
as the two budget revisions being requested as a part of this report. Two of the most 
significant revisions approved so far this fiscal year include $1.1 million for contract plan 
checkers and building inspectors and the nearly $400,000 carryover of encumbrances 
from fiscal year 2012-13.  The two new revisions include the appropriation of grant 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

revenues from the State to fund a fourth part-time classroom at the Belle Haven Child 
Development Center ($42,629), and the appropriation of funds from the Library 
Foundation to support a monthly Teen Night program ($4,800). In total, all revisions to 
date bring the total General Fund budget to nearly $44.2 million, which is a $1.8 million, 
or 4.3%, increase over the adopted budget.      
 
Based on operating expenditures through December 31, 2013, the General Fund in 
aggregate is tracking below its total current expenditure appropriation, including the 
amendments that have been made so far this fiscal year.  Therefore, some operational 
savings is expected this year.  However, because departmental operating expenditures, 
as well as the different expenditure categories, such as personnel and contract 
services, will fluctuate over the course of the year, an aggregate estimated savings 
amount is being presented in this report, and that amount is estimated at $750,000.  
Departmental operating expenditures will continued to be monitored and analyzed as 
we get deeper into the fiscal year, and the General Fund expenditures table included in 
the recommended budget will include a projection on how each department will finish 
the fiscal year and if there will be any change to the projected operating savings for the 
year. 
 

 
 
General Fund - Operations Summary  
 
The General Fund operations summary reflected below summarizes the revenue and 
expenditure updates previously discussed and presents a revised estimate for the 
current year’s operating surplus.  An additional line has been added below the Gross 
Operating Surplus line to reflect the fact that a portion of the surplus, $1 million, is not 
available for general purpose spending.  As noted previously, this $1 million is related to 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

development permitting revenue received this fiscal year but that will be spent in future 
years.  As such, these funds will need to be reserved for that purpose.  Based on the 
revenue and expenditure adjustments, the net operating surplus as of mid-year is 
projected to be nearly $1.5 million, which is well above the operating surplus forecast in 
the adopted budget.  It should be noted, however, that the $772,000 in proceeds from 
the sale of the Hamilton Avenue property was anticipated last fiscal year and was a part 
of the overall $2.68 million in one-time revenues that Council identified to increase the 
General Fund’s reserve.  Thus, those funds need to remain in reserve and not be 
utilized for other purposes to maintain Council’s original intention for those funds.   
 

 
 

Long-Term General Fund Forecast 
The 10-year forecast included in this report as Attachment A was developed based on 
the adopted 2013-14 budget, with adjustments made for known changes in revenue and 
expenditure assumptions.  As noted earlier in this report, the long-term forecast will 
continue to be refined as more information on key assumptions is available as the fiscal 
year progresses.  
 
To evaluate the ongoing impact of each of the updated General Fund projections 
described in the City’s long-term forecast, it is important to consider which adjustments 
reflect one-time events and which represent a fundamental change in the City’s revenue 
or expenditure baseline.  One-time revenues cannot be relied upon to fund ongoing 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

services, just as non-recurring expenditures will not impact the City’s expenditures on a 
year-over-year basis.  With that said, these one-time revenues and expenditures do 
have an impact on projected surpluses and deficits.  As such, known one-time revenues 
and expenditures are included in the 10-year forecast, and significant one-time events 
are highlighted in the notes to the 10-year forecast. 
  
The 10-year forecast was prepared utilizing the Municast system, a series of Excel 
spreadsheets that allow optimistic, most likely, and pessimistic scenarios, with a 
different scenario possible for each account within a revenue or expenditure category.  
For example, if water franchise fees are anticipated to grow faster than electric 
franchise fees, these different growth rates can be part of the assumptions. The forecast 
shown provides the “most likely” scenario of future revenues and expenditures, with 
notes provided to articulate major deviations. 
 
On the revenue side, the updated version of the 10-year forecast starts with a revised 
projection for the current fiscal year.  In some cases, for example transient occupancy 
tax and utility users tax, the revised fiscal year 2013-14 value sets the new revenue 
baseline, with future growth assumptions then remaining at the same level as the 
existing forecast.  In other cases, especially in relation to revenues affected by 
development activity, the forecast over the next two to three years was adjusted to 
reflect more specific information prior to returning to a more modest growth factor going 
forward.  Specifically, property tax growth is projected to be 5% annually from 2014-15 
to 2016-17 to reflect increased valuations from current development activity being 
added to the assessment role.  Excess ERAF is forecast to be approximately half of the 
current year’s amount in fiscal years 2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17.  No Excess ERAF 
is forecast past 2016-17 to account for the fact that this revenue source is considered to 
be at risk of being eliminated.  This is a departure from the previous forecast, which had 
50% Excess ERAF included in all 10 years.  With the seemingly constant threat of 
elimination, the revised forecast for Excess ERAF attempts to begin reducing the 
General Fund’s reliance on an uncertain revenue source while also recognizing that 
despite the threat of elimination, it has been a consistent source of revenue.  Staff will 
continue to monitor the Excess ERAF situation and update the forecast as necessary.  
Additionally, for next fiscal year, $1.5 million has been added to the baseline amount for 
permitting activity to reflect the high level of activity that is expected to continue in the 
near term.  Other key revenue assumptions in the 10-year forecast are included in the 
notes portion of that forecast. 
As preparation of the City Manager’s recommended fiscal year 2014-15 budget 
continues, the revenue projections for the 10-year forecast will continue to be analyzed 
and refined.  Three areas of focus will be sales tax, property tax, and transient 
occupancy tax.  With respect to sales tax, long-term growth rates will be evaluated to 
ensure they are appropriate given the volatile nature of this revenue source.  For 
property tax, growth rates will be analyzed in relation to the large projects that are in 
various stages of the development process.  These projects have the potential to 
increase the assessed valuation of property in the City beyond the 5% annually that has 
preliminarily been projected for the next three years.  Transient occupancy tax will be 
evaluated with respect to the potential for additional revenue from new hotel 
developments and the timing of that revenue.  Any material updates to the assumptions 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

in the long-term forecast for these three revenue sources, or for any revenue source for 
that matter, will be discussed in detail in the recommended budget.  
 
On the expenditure side, salaries and benefits are the focus areas of any forecast, since 
they make up such a large portion of overall General Fund operations, at approximately 
70% of the total.  For the purposes of this mid-year update, the short-and long-term 
assumptions for salary and benefits growth as a whole have been maintained.  This 
includes the estimated employer contribution rate increases from the California Public 
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) to account for recent changes in actuarial 
assumptions.  Additional increases, which will be implemented beginning in fiscal year 
2016-17, will be required to account for another set of recently approved changes to 
actuarial assumptions.  Specifically, on February 18th, the CalPERS Board approved 
changes to mortality and other demographic assumptions that are expected to increase 
employer contribution rates by between 3.1% and 6.5% of pay for Miscellaneous 
employees and between 5.3% and 9.3% of pay for Safety employees.  City staff is 
currently working with a consulting actuary to establish a Menlo Park–specific forecast 
for contribution rates, which will include these rate increases, to incorporate into the 10-
year forecast that will be included in the recommended fiscal year 2014-15 budget.  As 
such, these potential rate increases are not included in this version of the 10-year 
forecast.  Because it is not likely that these increases can be fully absorbed by any 
increases to the revenue baseline, the next version of the 10-year forecast will include 
assumptions for any necessary actions to mitigate these increases, including potentially 
lowering future salary increase assumptions and/or increasing the amount of the 
employee cost share of the City’s contribution rate, which would need to be negotiated. 
This provision for employees to share the cost of the employer contribution rate should 
it exceed a certain threshold has been a part of the labor agreements with the non-
Safety groups for the past several years.  The current agreement with the Safety units 
calls for a flat 3% cost share of the City’s contribution rate, regardless of how much that 
rate increases.  
 
Spending for both contract services and operating expenses is shown net of 
encumbrances before growing with inflation.  For fiscal year 2014-15, the budget for 
contract services reflects an increase of $2.5 million above the baseline amount. This 
increase reflects the need for continued outside contract support to meet the extremely 
high demand for permitting activity.  $1.5 million of this amount is offset by an increased 
revenue projection in fiscal year 2014-15, with the other $1 million coming from 
permitting revenues exceeding expenditures in the current fiscal year, which was 
discussed in more detail earlier in this report. 
 
With respect to non-personnel expenditures, it should be noted that the General Fund 
transfer out for infrastructure maintenance is subject to the same inflationary growth as 
other General Fund operating expenditures in the 10-year forecast.  The regular transfer 
amount reflects the annual cost of maintaining the City’s current infrastructure in its 
current condition.  As such, the transfer is considered an essential part of a sustainable 
budget. 
  
As noted previously, this version of the 10-year forecast is a very preliminary version 
based on current year performance and new information that has become available as 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

the fiscal year has progressed.  This forecast will continue to be revised and refined up 
until the point it is presented to Council in the recommended budget in June.  As such, 
the projections for future surpluses and deficits are very preliminary and should not be 
utilized to make decisions regarding the City’s resources, especially given that the 
budgetary process to recommend an allocation of the City’s resources amongst service 
areas based on Council’s priorities is just getting underway.  The 10-year forecast 
presented in the recommended budget will incorporate that recommended resource 
allocation within the context of available revenues and the impact of expenditure 
allocations on the overall fund balance.  Material changes in service levels, both 
increases and decreases, will be discussed in detail in the recommended budget. 
 
Other Funds  
 
Although the mid-year report is largely focused on the City’s regular operations, which 
predominantly reside in the General Fund, an update on some of the City’s other funds 
is included when there are material changes from original revenue projections and/or 
expenditure appropriations.  Included in this update is a request to increase expenditure 
appropriations for three funds, the General Fund CIP, the Water Operations Fund, and 
the Rec In-Lieu Fund.  A summary of all recommended increases is included in the 
Impact on City Resources section of this report.  
 
General Fund CIP – It is through the General Fund CIP that the City has annually 
provided an adequate amount of funding to maintain the City’s infrastructure (streets, 
sidewalks, buildings, etc.) in its current condition, thereby preventing the more costly 
repairs and upgrades needed when maintenance is deferred.  This funding occurs 
through an annual transfer from the General Fund to the CIP Fund.  This annual 
transfer, which is approximately $2.3 million, is an integral part of the City’s framework 
for a sustainable budget.  Even during difficult economic times, this transfer has, at 
worst, been reduced, but not eliminated.  This underscores the priority placed on 
maintaining infrastructure in the most cost-effective manner. 
  
It is expected that the General Fund CIP Fund will be impacted in the years to come by 
the elimination of redevelopment resources from the mix of funding that makes up the 
City’s Capital Improvement Plan.  For example, new funding for work involved in 
landscaping, lighting, or other improvements along various streets throughout the 
redevelopment area, which had previously been funded by redevelopment resources, 
will need to be identified over the next several years in order to maintain current 
standards.  
 
During the current fiscal year, there have been a number of Council-approved 
amendments to the CIP Fund.  Some of these include increasing the current fiscal 
year’s appropriation for the Facility Energy Retrofit project by over $460,000 and 
appropriating nearly $59,000 for the review and traffic engineering analysis for the 500 
El Camino Real project.  Because requests for additional appropriations have gone to 
Council as they have come up over the course of the fiscal year, there are only two 
requested modifications to the CIP Fund budget that are included in the mid-year report, 
and both of which are cost-neutral to the fund. 
 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

The first modification is to de-fund the City Admin Energy Audit project, which has a 
budget of $40,000, and utilize those funds for a private/public strategic funding plan for 
the Climate Action Plan.  Funds for the City Admin Energy Audit project were not 
needed because the City was able to get the audit done at no cost.  As such, these 
funds are available for re-appropriation.  The public/private strategic funding plan would 
help meet Council’s approved community greenhouse gas reduction target by 
enhancing incentives and marketing efforts currently offered through the Statewide 
Energy Upgrade Program. 
 
The second modification is to move funding ($52,500) from fiscal year 2014-15 into the 
current fiscal year to accelerate the purchase of a portable stage for the Community 
Services Department.  With the summer concert series approaching and the existing 
stage not in condition to make it through another season, it is important that the 
replacement stage be in place prior to the end of the fiscal year, which necessitates this 
budget amendment.  This project is currently funded in the fiscal year 2014-15 CIP plan, 
and moving it forward does not impact the funding of any other projects.  However, 
initial quotes received for replacement indicate additional funding in the amount of 
$35,000 will be required.  This additional funding is recommended to come from the Rec 
In-Lieu Fund. 
 
Water Operations Fund – This fund accounts for the water sales and operations of the 
Menlo Park Municipal Water District.  Due to the lack of rain this winter season, there 
has been an increase in water usage by our customers.  As a result, the City expects it 
will purchase more water from the SFPUC than originally anticipated, which will require 
an increase in the expenditure budget.  Staff recommends increasing the appropriation 
for purchased water by $1,050,000, to $6,000,000.  This additional expenditure will be 
offset by increased revenues in the amount of $1,300,000. 
 
Water Capital Improvement Fund – This fund accounts for the proceeds of the capital 
surcharge from water usage.  Due to the increase in water sales, there will be more 
revenue received from the surcharge.  As such, the revenue projection for this fund is 
being increased by $200,000, to $1,000,000, as a part of this mid-year update. 
 
Construction Impact Fees – This fund is supported through developer fees assessed 
to mitigate pavement damage due to heavy construction activity.  Recently, revenues 
have approximated $500,000 per year, and the fund currently contributes $1 million to 
the bi-annual street resurfacing project.  Due to increased development activity, the 
fund’s revenue projection is being increased by $600,000, to $1,600,000.  These 
revenues will be needed going forward to fund the additional work required to mitigate 
construction-related damage to the City’s streets.  
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

The fiscal impact of the requested changes to the expenditure appropriation of the 
various funds is discussed in the body of this report.  Council’s approval is requested to 
amend the current fiscal year 2013-14 budget to: 

 Appropriate $42,629 of grant revenues from the State for the Belle Haven Child 
Development Center (General Fund). 



Staff Report #: 14-036  

 Appropriate $4,800 in contributions from the Library Foundation to support a 
monthly Teen Night Program (General Fund). 

 De-fund the City Admin Energy Audit project in the amount of $40,000 and re-
appropriate those funds to a special project for a private/public strategic funding 
plan for the Climate Action Plan (CIP Fund). 

 Appropriate $52,500 for the accelerated replacement of the portable stage for the 
Community Services Department and eliminate $52,500 in funding from the fiscal 
year 2014-15 CIP plan for the same project (CIP Fund). 

 Appropriate $35,000 from the Rec In-Lieu Fund to provide additional funding for 
the replacement of the portable stage.  Sufficient funds are available in the Rec 
In-Lieu Fund to cover this appropriation. 

 Increase the appropriation for purchased water by $1,050,000 (Water Operations 
Fund).  This additional appropriation will be offset by increased revenues. 

 
All revenue projections made for the adopted fiscal year 2013-14 budget have been 
reviewed as a part of the mid-year update.  If applicable, projections have been 
modified to reflect changes in economic conditions or new revenue sources, such as 
grants. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The acceptance of the mid-year report and authorization of the associated budget 
revisions does not represent a change in City policy.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environmental review is not required. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Revised 10-year forecast 
 

Report prepared by: 
Drew Corbett 
Finance Director 
 
 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



City of Menlo Park 
General Fund 10-Year Projection  (1)

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
Revenue Categories 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Property Taxes $13,955,000 (2)    $14,715,000 (2)    $14,560,493 (2)    $15,277,285 (2)   $16,029,468 $15,796,585 $16,428,448 $17,085,586 $17,769,009 $18,479,770 $19,218,960 $19,987,719
Sales Tax 6,331,400              6,136,400       (3)    6,578,416       (3)    6,382,288       (3)   6,564,121       6,845,063       7,121,141       7,408,376       7,707,219       8,018,142       8,341,634      8,678,203       
Transient Occupancy Tax 3,743,000             4,100,000       4,264,000       4,434,560       4,611,942       4,796,420       4,988,277       5,187,808       5,395,320       5,611,133       5,835,578      6,069,002       
Utility Users' Tax     1,184,620             1,135,000       1,179,440       1,225,658       1,273,724       1,323,713       1,375,701       1,429,769       1,486,000       1,544,480       1,605,299      1,668,551       
Franchise Fees    1,812,300             1,812,300       1,884,792       1,960,184       2,038,591       2,120,135       2,204,940       2,293,138       2,384,863       2,480,258       2,579,468      2,682,647       
Licenses and Permit   4,459,465             (4)    6,559,465       (4)    5,997,847       4,756,172       4,914,397       5,178,602       5,349,661       5,527,551       5,712,545       5,904,929       6,204,557      6,412,744       
Intergovernmental Revenue 741,704                836,917          870,394          905,209          941,418          979,075          1,018,237       1,058,967       1,101,326       1,145,379       1,191,194      1,238,842       
Fines & Forfeitures 1,319,980             1,149,980       1,372,779       1,427,690       1,484,798       1,544,190       1,605,957       1,670,196       1,737,004       1,806,484       1,878,743      1,953,893       
Interest & Rent Income 777,712                627,712          810,420          844,437          879,815          916,607          954,872          994,667          1,036,053       1,079,095       1,123,859      1,170,414       
Charges for Services                7,795,222             7,595,222       (5)    7,976,029       8,282,002       8,600,149       8,930,957       9,274,931       9,632,597       10,004,503     10,391,219     10,793,336    11,225,069     
Donations 31,050                  31,050            32,292            33,584            34,927            36,324            37,777            39,288            40,860            42,494            44,194           45,962            
Other Financing Sources 398,396                (6)    1,175,018       419,322          436,095          453,539          471,680          490,547          510,169          530,576          551,799          573,871         596,826          
Total Revenues $42,549,849 45,874,064$   45,946,223$   45,965,164$   47,826,889$   48,939,350$   50,850,489$   52,838,111$   54,905,279$   57,055,182$   59,390,694$  61,729,870$   
Expenditure Categories
Salaries and Wages     $21,080,312 $21,212,632 (7)    $21,849,011 $22,722,971 $23,631,890 $24,577,166 $25,560,252 $26,582,663 $27,645,969 $28,751,808 $29,901,880 $31,097,955
Benefits           8,260,286              8,128,296       (8)    8,494,069       8,918,773       9,337,955       9,776,839       10,236,350     10,717,459     11,146,157     11,592,004     12,055,684    12,537,911     
Operating Expense 3,174,428             3,265,447       3,396,065       3,531,907       3,673,184       3,820,111       3,972,916       4,131,832       4,297,105       4,468,990       4,647,749      4,833,659       
Utilities 1,197,111             1,197,111       1,244,995       1,294,795       1,346,587       1,400,451       1,456,469       1,514,727       1,575,316       1,638,329       1,703,862      1,772,017       
Services 4,392,366             (9)    5,955,834       (9)    6,562,000       4,127,000       4,292,080       4,463,763       4,642,314       4,828,006       5,021,127       5,221,972       5,430,850      5,648,084       
Fixed Assets and Capital Outlay 372,611                513,252          423,433          440,370          457,985          476,304          495,357          515,171          535,778          557,209          579,497         602,677          
Travel 72,705                  73,452            76,390            79,446            82,624            85,928            89,366            92,940            96,658            100,524          104,545         108,727          
Repairs and Maintenance 882,419                858,305          892,637          928,343          965,476          1,004,095       1,044,259       1,086,030       1,129,471       1,174,650       1,221,636      1,270,501       
Special Projects Expenditures 360,500                393,500          409,240          425,610          442,634          460,339          478,753          497,903          517,819          538,532          560,073         582,476          
Capital and Transfers Out 2,554,600             2,554,600       2,656,784       2,763,055       2,873,578       2,988,521       3,108,062       3,232,384       3,361,679       3,496,146       3,635,992      3,781,432       

Estimated Savings (750,000)          
Total Expenditures $42,347,338 $43,402,429 $46,004,625 $45,232,270 $47,103,993 $49,053,518 $51,084,097 $53,199,115 $55,327,080 $57,540,163 $59,841,769 $62,235,440
Subtotal Impact to Fund Balance $202,511 2,471,635$     ($58,402) $732,894 $722,896 ($114,168) ($233,607) ($361,004) ($421,800) ($484,981) ($451,076) ($505,570)
Reserved for Development Permitting  ($1,000,000) $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Impact to Fund Balance 1,471,635$     941,598$        732,894$        722,896$        (114,168)$       (233,607)$       (361,004)$       (421,800)$       (484,981)$       (451,076)$      (505,570)$       

Notes to 10-year Forecast:

(2)   Property Tax increase in 2013-14 due to 100% of Excess ERAF.  Excess ERAF reduced to 50% from 2014-15 - 2016-17 and then eliminated thereafter. Standard increases at 5% from 2014-15 - 2016-17; 4% thereafter.
(3)   Sales Tax increase in 2014-15 due to the impact of the Facebook construction on sales tax.  Sales tax base to grow 2% in 2015-16, 3% 2016-17, and 4% thereafter.
(4)   Licenses and Permits revenue up over baseline in 2013-14 and 2014-15 due to development activity; returning to annual baseline amount in 2015-16.
(5)   Charges for Services increase 5% in 2014-15 due to development activity.
(6)   Other Financing Sources up in 2013-14 due to sale of Hamilton property ($772,000).
(7)  Salary increase assumption is 3% in 2014-15 and 4% thereafter.
(8)  Includes CalPERS rate increases due to changes to actuarial methodology related to the recognition of investment gains and losses.
(9)  Services up in 2013-14 and 2014-15 to reflect development activity.  There is a corresponding increase in revenues.

Other Notes and Assumptions:
Property tax will be analyzed further to incorporate the impact of specific large-scale development projects.
Transient occupancy tax projections do not currently include any new hotels in the City.
Benefits do not incorporate additional CalPERS employer contribution rates that are expected to begin in FY 2016-17 (improvements in mortality).

Forecast
Adjusted
Budget

2014

Adopted
Budget

2014

(1)   Revenues and expenditures are generally anticipated to grow by inflation of approximately 4% unless otherwise indicated. 

Attachment A

Forecast
2015 2016 2017

Forecast



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 


	March 4, 2014 Agenda 
	D1 - Measure A Shuttle Program
	Att A - Resolution

	D2 - Neighborhood Services Center agreement
	Att A - Construction Agreement with SC Builders, Inc., and Facebook, Inc.

	E2 - 350 Sharon Park Drive
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M

	F1 - Facebook Officer Funding
	Att A - DRAFT Agreement between the City of Menlo Park and Facebook

	F2 - Mid-year Financial Summary
	Att A - Revised 10-year forecast.pdf




